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version of events that doesn't make seiise? How do you sort
it out?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 383: Well, let's say first.
time or if the -- if the guest say, hey, listern, I have not

give out the signal to the dealer and the dealer just deal me

_the card, I got busted. So I'll see how large the money he

put up.

¥S. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 383: If it's small one, and
he's a nice customer, I just going to give him back the
money.

MS. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 3837 QOr if the large, then I
can call surveillance, check 1t out, see all the signal clear
and the dealer did the right things and that, that's all.

MS. JOBE: So it's fair to say it depends?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 383: Right.

MS. JOBE: ©Okay. Thank you very much. If you
gould pass the -

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 383 You're welcome.

MS. JORE: ~-- miecropheone to Mr. Terry. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: Kevin Terty, 402.

MS. -JOBE: All right. You have lots of kids so I'm
sure you've had times where they've disagreed?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402; Yes, ma'am.

Verbatim Digial Reporting, LLC'¢ 303-798-0890
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1 MS. JOBE: Ever have a time where one child tells
2| you one version of events, another child tells you another

31 version of events and theéy were in Lhe same Tcom at the same

4| time?

5 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 402: Yes.

6 MS. JOBE: And how do you sort that out?

1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: Like interrogate them a

g1 little bit more.

9 MS., JOBE: .All right.
10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4082: Kind.of a harsh word.
11 MS. JOBE: And —— ckay, and obviocusly, as it -- say

12| one child says one version, one says another version. Is

13} there always a third imdependent eyewlitness?

14 PROSPECTTVE JURCR NO. 402: Sometimes there is.
15 MS. JOBE: Fair to say somefimes there isn't?
16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: And sometimes there

17 isn't, yeah.

18 MS. JOBE: Right. Ever have when your children
19| tell you a story that just doesn't add up or doesn't make

20| sense&?

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 402: All the time, yeah.
22 MS. JOBE: How do you sort that out?
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: By the way they say it

24:| and: then their demeanor and their body language.

25 M. JOBE: If you're selected to be a member of the

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLG ¢ 303-798-0890
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jury, would 'you have any cencerns OF problems in reaching a
verdict if you have to piece together .evidence to reach the
conciusion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402 I think I could do
that..

MS. JOBE: Would you necessarily need an eyewitness
to the events in order to reach —- I Eealize_itfs a
hypothatical, but would you necessarily need an eyewitness or
would it depend on ‘the other evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR. NO., 402: I would like to piece
the evidence, and an eyewitness would help out, yeah.

M5. JOBE: Okay. Bny concerns if there is no
eyEWitneSS?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4022 That would be a bit

M3, JOBE: Okay. All right. And as far as the
situation with your nephéw, I believe, when Judge Leavitt was:
asking you qﬁestiqns, you thought your nephew was treated
fairly; is that accurate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR. NO. 4082: Yes.

MS. JOBE: Okay. BAnd were you involved in the
investigation process or just the court_prBCESS.or both?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ND. 402:; Just the court process.

MS. JOBE: All right. Thank you. If you could.

please pass the microphene to Mr., is it Browning? Okay.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC. ¢ 303-798-0890
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 412:

No., 412,

MS. JOBE: Thank vyou, sir.

children is self-employed, correct?

)

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 412:

MS. JORE: Poing what?

FROSPECTIVE JURQOR NO. 412:

just at odd ends right now.

MS. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 412:

himself s0.

MS. JOBE: And is there any -- I guess, I'll just
cut: to the chase. Any investigative batkdground of that child
or any censulting or medical back ground for that child?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 412:

MS. JOBE: For your child who's self-employed.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 412:

MS. JOBE: Does -- has any of that child's training
or experienceé or work been in the medical Ffield or ~-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 412v

MS. JOBE: ~-- legal field?

PROSPECTIVE .JUROR NO. 412:

MS. JOBE: All right. And how do vou feel about

listening te evidence and having to weigh all the evidence

You said one of your

No.

176

Michael Browning, Juror

Yes.

Well, actually, he's

He's looking to find

You mean --

Uh—huh.

No.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-08%0
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together when it comes to a situation involving a young
child?

PROSPECTIVE JURORfNO? 412+ Well, that's always
diffieult, but if you can get enough information, then vou
have to do the best you can with it,

‘M5. JOBE: Okay. And would you feel comfortable
waiting to make a decision until you've reéceived all the
evidence and are asked to go back and deliberate with the 11.
other people if you are selected?

PROSPECTIVE .JURQR. NO. 412: Sure,

MS. JOBE: Any concerns or problems with talking

with 11 other reople and reaching a verdict one way or the

other?

 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 412: I don't think so.
MS. JOBE: Any thoughts about any of the guestions

I've asked panél.today, and you're like hey, that sounded

Anteresting and you had anything to add?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 412: No, I don't -- I don't
think so.

M3. JOBE: Ckay. If you woild please pass the
microphone -- I've talked to Mr. {leto -— to Mr. Davis,
please. Héw are you, M. Davis?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: Rashaad PDavis, Badge

No. 416. Doing good, thank you.

MS. JOBE: Thank you very much. You -- I believe,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4. 303-798-0890
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1} you said you are a loan spécialist?

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: Correct.
3 MS. JOBE: Okay. What does -~ what does that mean?
4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: So I work in a note

5{ department for Bank of George. So I do a lot of the grunt

6| work for the loans once they're approved, getting the
7| customer's information scanned into the system, I'm

8| processing loan payments, sending out wires, so forth.

8 MS. ‘JOBE: Sounds very détall-priented; is that
18| fair?
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: Yes.

12 MS. JOBE: Okay. So thern -~ I'm terrible with

13| details. So 4f you're -- you have to be detail-oriented

14| because if someone misses a box or checks something wrong,
15| then that. can affect whether or not the loan goes through; is.
16| that correct?

17 PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO. 416: I'm more of ‘a finish
18| product of the loan.

19 MS. JOBE: ©Ckay.

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO, 416: Yeah. That describes
21{ the loan officers.

22 MS. JOBE: ©Okay. So clearly net my in realm. So
23| what is the finished; product, then?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416! Finished product the

25| lgan is approved --

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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1 MS. JOBE: Okay.

2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: -~ and all documents

3| need to be scanned into the system --

g4, MS. JOBE: I see.

H
H
H
13
:
:

5. PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: -~ yearly basis,

61 updated financial decuments and so ferth.
7 M$. JOBE: I was asking about, I believe, it was
8| Mr. Herrera, about concrete thinkers where everything has to

pe -- you have to see everything that's been you in order to

o

10! make a decision and then there would be not so cencrete

11| thinkers who or more like sociology and those types of

12| things. How would you describe yourself as a {inaudible} ?
13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: Basically, I want all
i4| the details to make a decision.

15 MS. JOBE: Okay. How de you féel about making

16| inferences or making -- how do yau féel about making

17| inferences?

18 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4i6: Can you better detail
19 that, please?

20 . Ms. JOBE: ©Okay. Sure. So let's say you have a
21] Ffriend who's at point A, and your friend is supposed to meé;
221 you at point B, and the informationh yeu have is. that your

23| friend text you says, I'm leaving point &, but your friend
24| never shows uUp to point B. Later on you find out that at the

25| time you werg supposed +o be hanging out with your friend at

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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1{ point B, someone saw your friend hanging at the Bellagioc.

2| Would you be comfortable making inferences about your friend

3| going to the Bellagio ingtead of coming Lo see you or

4| figuring out why they may have gone Lo the Bellagio instgad

5| of coming to meet you?

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 416: Yes, if you're meeting
7| someone and they say they're going to be where they're

8| suppesed to --

9 MS. JOBE: And then they're not.

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: -~ then you expect them

11| to be there, but if not; then you want to know what happened.

12 M3. JOBE: Sure.
13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: So -
14 MS. JOBE: Are you comfortable making those types

15| of inferences or thinking about those things?

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: No.

17 MS. JOBE: I'm sorry?

Is PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: No.

19 MS. JOBE: Okay. All right. Any experience with

20| gettirig-a second opinion from a medical doctor?

21 PROSPECTIVE JURQOR NO. 416: No.
22 MS. JOBE: Any experience with law enforceméent?
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: My god father is a

24| school police district, 20 plus years.

25 MS. JORE: Okay. How close are you to your ged

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-06890
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- fathex?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: It's been a 17-year god
father —— god son relationship.

M3. JOBE: Okay. And does your god father tell you
stéries about things they“re-invesﬁiqatihg‘orﬁdoing or -

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NOU. 4161 MNo.

MS. JOBRE: Okay. Any other contacts with law
enforcement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: No.

MS. JOBE: Okay. TIf you are selected to be a
member of this Jjury, would -you have any problems or concerns
with deliberating with 11 other people and reaching a verdict
one way or the othex?

'PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: No,

M5. JOBE: Any concerns about hearing medical
testimony or testimony as it relates to a small child?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416; I d¢ too have 'a handful
of nieces and nephews, s¢ depending on, you know, how graphic
the situation is or, you know, thé injuries to the child
could.be'beﬁapse you would reflect on. your own children or
niecas and nephews, yes.

‘MS. JOBE: Sure. And what's -— you don't have 1o
£ell fme their exact ages, but what's kind of the range?

'PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416:; So there is an age

rahge from 1 to 11.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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MS. JOBE: Wow. And do you see them very often?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: Yes.

MS. JOBE: Qkay. Do you ever get euper frustrated
with one of your nieces and nephews for just acting out and
you're like, what are you doing?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 416: I don't -- I don‘t
parént them. Their fmom is usuglly there. So if there is any
type of -- the, you know; discipline that needs to happen,
she takes care of it. So that's out of my league.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Sco you have the best excuse.
You're like, I am ah uncle, you got to go see mom, right?

PROSPECTIVE (JUROR NO. 41l6: Correct,

MS: JOBE: Excellent. What types of things do you
enjoy deoing with your nieces and neéphews?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: ©Normal stuff, taking
them out, movies, taking them out te arcades; to parks,
spending time with them.

MS. JOBE: Fair to say kind of a range there,
nieces and nephews,_different_ageS;_Qifferent abilities,
different types of things you can da?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 416: Correct.

MS. JOBE: Does your one-year-old -- is it a niece
or. nephew, the youngest?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: The youngest is a boy,

yeah;

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LL.C ¢ 303-798-0890
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MS. JOBE: Does he commuaicate with you very well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO.. 4161 No.

MS. JOBE: Still working on his words and stuff?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 416: Yes.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Al right. Thank you s0 much:.
If you ~—— I've talked to you Ms. Gonzalez-Garcia. 8o let's
go backwards, and 1f you could pass the microphone to
Myr. Martin, please. All right, M. Martin. You said you're
a bartender, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Correct.

MS. JOBE: Okay. And you'd expressed Some Concerns
with if yon were selected to be a member of the juiy, but. I
think at this point, are you okay if you're selected? Okay
ig probably not the right word, but.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: I have no clue as far
as making arrangements for the rest of the week ——

MS. JOBE: Ckay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: -~ per se.

MS. JOBE: And that's for your child, right?

PROSPECTTVE JUROR NO. 4557 Yes.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Do you think that would be
aomething YUu‘d~be'able:tQ-work out or not sure or depends?
You'll have to figure that out later?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR N@. 455 1 kdow I can work out

one be or two other days, depending with Her nmother ——
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M3, JOBE: OQkay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: -- for her days off.
MS. JOBE: Okday. Where do you bartend, sorry?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Sam's Town.

M. JOBE: Fair to say in yeur work as a bartender,

you've probably have heard all kinds of stories from

‘di fferent people in different places; is that fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4535 Yes.

MS. JOBE: As a bartender, do you engage much with
customers and listen to their stories or you just kind of
listen and move onr with whatever wyou're doing?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455; Yes, all the above.

MS. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: It depends.

MS. JOBE: I'm sure you have some regular customers

at. Sam's Town?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 455: Yes.

M%. JOBE: Okay. #As far as listéning to people and

weighing what they're saying, what types of things do you
1ook for when you're trying to judge if what they're telling
you is right or wrong?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Can you repeat that?
MS. JOBE: Sure. When you are listening to
people's stories or, you know, trying to make an asséssment

if the story they're telling you 1§ true or not true, what
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types of things do you look for?

PROSEECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: When they tell me a
story and T give them an opinion on how to correct it, how
often they give me excuses that canpot be =— which are just
really excuses.

MS. JOBE: Okay. You have a young child, se ever
have to tack your young child to the doctor for anything?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yes.

MS., JOBE: FEver have conceérns about what the doctor
said to you and maybe thinkind that might not be the best
advice for my child?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR. NO. 455: No,

MS. JOBE: Or ever needed like a second medical
apinion?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: No.

MS. JOBE: Any concerns if you're selected to be a
member of the Jjury and listening to testimony from different
types of experts; including medical experts, about injuries
and what hdppened?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455%:; No, I have -~ I have a

little bit of experienge in the medical field being my family

background is all medical.
MS. JOBE: ©Oh, what type of experience?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: They are —-- they are

a2ll nurse practitioners.
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M&. JORE: OQkay. Anvone specialize in pediatrics
or anything like that or certain types of Injuries?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 455: No.

MS. JOBE: All right. Would you be &ble to not

discuss the case with your family if you're selected to be on

the jury until a verdict's heen reached and the Judge has
told you, you can talk te other people?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yes.

M3, JOBE: And would you be -- if you're selected,
wauld you Be able to just listen to the evidence presented
and not go Seek out other information or try te do your own
research about the issues?

PROSPRCTIVE JURCR NO: 453: Correct.

MS. JOBE: All right. And how do you -- do you
have any concerns  if you are asked to piece together
information in order to reach a remembered and whether or: riot
thére's a divect éyewitness or not?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: No, I'm fine with that.

MS. JOBE: Thank vou very much., BAll right. T am

going to skip over to, is it Mr. Bouch?

PROSPECTIVE JUROE NO. 448&: Yeah.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Talked to both of you gentlemen.
Thank you very much. So you if you could hand the microphone
to him that would be great. Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: Raron Bouch, 448,
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1 MS. JOBE: All right, Mr. Bouch. You are you say

2| the senior project manager for neon?

3| PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO., 448: Yeah.
4 M5. JOBE: How long is that project going to go on?
5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: For approximately,

& | another three years.

7 MS, JOBE: And what are your kind of

8| responsibilities as the senior project manager?

9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: My job is to manage the
10| personnel, what it fakes to relocate and remove and install
11| utilities, power for street lights, sewer, water, rhone,

12| engineer it, design it arid implement it.

13 MS. JOBE: That's a lot. Qkay. Do you deal with
14| the actiuadl plans of what has 0 be dene or sre you working

15| mostly with people?

16 PROSEEETIVE JURCR NO. 448: 1 am part of the design
17| task force so I do engiieer some of the stuff that comes out
181 that we supply te NDOT for approval.

19 MS. JOBE: Okay. &nd how -- you've heard my

20 | questions about concrete thinkers versus mére abstract

21} thinkers. How would you characterize yourself?

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: I'm a ‘critical thinker.
23| I hnave to reewaluate and make decisions multiple times a day
24| on multiple whims to make sure we're moving in the right

251 direection.
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MS., JOBE: Would you have any concerns about
listening to evidence and piecing things together to reach a
verdict one way or the other?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: As long as I will every
-— as long as everything was made available to the evidence
and the proof of burden, I don't think I would,

MS. JOBE: Okay. Any concerns if there's no direct
eyewitness testimonvy?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 448: ©MNo. Just the more
evidence, the better.

MS. JOBE: Okay. You indicated you have, I
believe, you -said three children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: I have three children.

MS. JOBE: Okay. And one's still at home, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448 {(No andible resporse) .

MS. JOBE: Any concerns zbout listening to evidence.
about.something that happened to a young child and being able
te set aside your children and your experience as a fathexr
dand. just listen. té the evidence. here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448:; No, I've -- 1I've
experienged some ﬁhings in the. Middle East that have allowed.
me to be able to not have a bias, I guess.

M5. JOBE: Okay. Now, you had indicated it might

be & different story if you had to make a decision about

pernalty; is thdbt correct?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303:798-0890

756"




188

1 PROSPECTIVE. JURCR NO. 448: Yes.
2. MS. JOBE: Okay. And obviously, the Judge has

; 3{ explained that's not your role, correct?

: 4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: (N& audible response}.
5 MS. JOBE: And the job of the jury, as she

6| explained earlier, was to be the fact finder .of whdt happened
17| 6r didn't happen; do you have any COBLEInS with that?

8. PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448:. I don't. I just -~ I

9! wanted to verify that. I -- T nad strong feelings for my

10| previous one, and once she said that, cbviously, 1 can be

11{ bias to making a deecision based or evidence and outside of

12| that it would be her job to. détermine 1f yay or nay and what
13| that would be so —=

14 MS. JOBE: Okay. And as you sit here right now,

15| are you leaning for or against either side, the State or the

161 defense?

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: I'm indifferent either
18| way.
19 MS. JOBE: Okay. You indicated, was the. experience

20| with the relatives and their children local?

21 PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO. 448: It was in Waslhice

22| Colinty. It was in Nevada, vyes.

23 M&. JOBE: Oh, that's right,'Washoe and Douglas,
24| that's correct. Sorry about ‘that. Any opinions about thild

251 Protective Services or how that situation plays itself out?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

767




16
17
18
19
20
271
22
23
24

25

190

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: I have strong opinion
of that, actually, ir Washoée County., Not —=- not. in Clark
County I don't.

MS. JOBE: Okay. And would you be able to set
those opinions aside and just listén to the evidence as it
relates to the child?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: Yeah.

MS. JOBE: Okay. All right. Thank you very much,

Csir.  If you could pass the microphone -- we spoke with

Mr. Lozano and Mr. Miller and Ms. Ibay. Let's talk to

Mr. Boreén. If you could pass it down to Mr. Boren, please.
Thank you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Justin Boren, 423.

MS. JOBE: I couldn't help but see you have a very
thick book with you, sir.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Yes.

MS. JOBE: May I ask what vou're reading?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 4%23: It's a bieography of

‘Ronald Reagan.

MS. JOBE: ©Oh. Aand you indicated that you managed,
ig it a banker, I believe?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423; Mortgage banking

company.

Mg, JORE: Okay. And so are you more responsible

for the analytical part or the people part or both?
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Beth.

2 MS. JOBE: All right. You've heard'my concrete,

3| abstract thinker question. Wheré do you fall?

! 4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR ND. 423: Typically, it's

5| abstract because of everybody's situations, finahcial

i 6| situationg are different; se you have to take an abstract

7| idea, which is somebody's financial situation compared to

8| somebody else's and fit it into a box, which includes a loan:
9 So while you deal with the abstract, there aze

10| certain limitations that are guidelines for the lean. 5o you

11| deal with both.
12 M5, JOBE: Would you say you have good critical
13| thinking skills, average critical thinking skills or

14! something else?

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: I think I'm pretty
16| good.
17 MS. JOBE: Okay. And what type of things when

18| you're analyzing -— like you said you have to scometimes -—-—
19| people have different things in whether or not can get along,
20| a1l kinds of variables, correct?

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Correct.

22 Ms. JOEE: Do you ever have-penple.give you

23| misinformation or bad information trying to get a loan?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: A1l the time,

25 MS. JOBE: 2nd what do you do? What kind of
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critiedl thinking skills do you employ in these situvations?

BROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Red flags go up so you
ask more guestions, you do more'background-checking, you look
at. the history of what's happened in that person's life and
~- and make that decision.

MS. JOBE: You sald red flags go up. So it kind of
sounds like something from yvour training or experiences liké
something's not quite right so you lodk into motre?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Scomething doesn't feel
right so you check more.

MS. JOBE: Do yvou ever make snap decisions and go
from there or do . you always look into more information and
you kind of see (inaudible}?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: You look more because

you can always be wrong.

MS. JOBE: Okay. You also indicated you have three
bio children and four stepechildren, correct?

E-RO.SPECT'IVE JUROR N©, 423: Correct.

Ms, JOBE: That is 4 large household, sir.

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 423: Yes.

MS. JOBE: How do you --.if you don't mind my
asking, what's the age ranges? You don't have to give me all
their ages, but just the range.

BROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: My oldest is 17 and the

youngest is 4.
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1 MS. JORE: Let's talk about the four-year-old for a
21 secdnd or even your other children when they were youngexr

3| around that age, How well could your four-year—old or your

4| other children when they were that age Or even younger kind

5{ of explain things that happened?

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: They're not very good

7| at it, obvicusly. With older siblings -- they also have

8| older siblings that talk for them.

3 MS. JOBE: Sure. That makes a diffEIEHCe(-right?
10 PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: It does.
11 M5. JOBE: Se falr to say when they're younger;

12| their ability to deéscribe or explain, obviously, not s8¢

13| great?
14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Absoluately.
15 MS. JOBE: Was there ever something that happened

16| to your young -- children when they were youhger, 4 and under
17| stage, shall we say, and you were able to kind of figure out

18| what happened even though thay couldn't sxplain 21t fto you?

19 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NGO, 423: Yes.
20 M5. JOBE: Okay. How would you figure it out?
21 PROSPECTIVE  JUROR NO. 423: A lot of times, just

221 like you've been doing for us, you kind of spoon feed
23| guestions, you have to redirect .questions, you have fo reask
247 it, tell them what this means, tell them what that means and

25| then they can eventually understand what you're trying to ask
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them and eventually, they'll give you the answer or at least
explain eneugh to make you can make that inferernce.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Fair to say with seven children,
you can ask -- the kids who were about the same age range --
you can ask them the same question and get four different
answers?

PROSEECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Sure.

MS. JOBE: And likewise, you can ask, say, the
cldest child a guestion and they'll understand it the way you

phrase it, but sometimes maybe for another child, you have to

rephrase it to kind of get the same information?

PROSPECTIVE. JURQR NQ. 423: Yes, ma'am.

MS. JOBE: Any -- do all your children react the
same way to. every situation?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: No.

MS. JOBE: &nd do. you and your spouse react the
same way when something happens to one of your kids?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: No.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Who -- leét's say theré's some
sort of kid falls down and gets injurgd or whatever, as
between you and your spouse, who's the more we got té do
this, we got to do that and the other one's mote the
nurturer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: My wife is the

nurturer,
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; 1 MS. JOBE: Okavy.
2 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 423: 1 guess, you would eall

3| me the enforcer.

4 MS. JOBE: Spring into action mode, we need to do

5| this, tHat and the other —-
6 PROSPRCTIVE JUROR NO. 423: Not always. I mean,
71 aftér we've decided what -- what happened or whatever, but
& I'm definitely less of the nurturér and she is moxe.of’the

91 nurturer,
10 MS. JOBE: Okay. What's your -~ what draws you o
11| Ronald Reagan or reéading a book about him?
12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 423: I like to read
13| biographies period. So I've read quite a few, and T like to
141 learn from people that are successful in what they do.
15 MS. JOBE: Sutcessful in mulfiple areas.
16 THE COURT: Okay, at this time, I'm just going éo
171 stop you because we're golng to take a recess. During this
18] recess, you are admonished not to talk or converse amongst
19| yvourselves or with anyone else on any subject connected with
20| this trial or read, watch or listen to any report of orf

21| commentary on the trial or any person c¢onnected with this
22| trial by any medium of information, including without

23] limitation, newspapers, televisidn, the Internet or radic.
241 Or form or axpress any opinion on. any subject connected with

25| this trial until the case ig finally submitted to you.
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Wa'll be in recess for the next 15 minutes. Thank

F—

2| you.
3 THE MARSHAL: Thank you. All rise for the exiting

4t Jury panel.

: 5 (Court recessed at 3:40 p.m. until 3:54 p.m.)
o (Inside the presence of the prospective jurors)
7 THE COURT: Does the State stipulate to presence of

8| the jury panél?

8 M5, JOBE: Yés, Your Hodar.
10 THE COURT: The defense?
11 MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, Your Honeor.
12 THE CQURT: Ckay. You may continue.
13 MS. JOBE: TIf you could pass the microphonée to. Ms.

14} Reodriguez, please. Thank you very much.

15 A1l right, Ms. Rodriguez, you indicated you are a
16| medical assistant, correct?

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466! Yes:

18 MS. JOBE: And what type of medicing ©r practice do
19| you work in?

20 PROSPECTIVE. JURQR NO. 466: Children's Heart

21| Center.

22 MS. JOBE: Okay. 1Is that associated with a

23| hospital dr is it indépendent?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: NO. 46&: Independent.

25 M5, JOBE: Okay. .How'lonq have you ‘done that?
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PROSPESTIVE JUROR NQ. 466: Aboulr ten years.

MS. JOBE: What are your general responsibilities
at the Children’s Heart Center?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: We prep patignts.

MS. JOBE: For surgery or -

PROSFECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: For the doctors.

MS. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Um~h'm.

MS. JOBE: And in prepping patients you have to do
the history and —-

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO, 466: Yes.

MS, JOBE: -- go through all that, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Um-h'm.

MS. JOBE: Is that a yes?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 460: Correct.

MS. JOBE+ T apoLogiZe, only hecause she's --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes.

MS. JOBE: -- typing 1t. And as far as prepping

the patients, d¢ you .speak with the families and kind of get

‘histdries from the parerits as well?

PROSPECTIVE JUROER NO. 466: Yes,

MS. JOBE: Are the histories that the parents

provide, are those always accurate, as far as you know?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 466 Yes.

MS. JOBE: Okay. As far as your training and
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experience, do you have any traiming with respect to burns or
those types of injuries?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NCO. 466: No.

M5. JOBE: Would you be able to set aside your

training and your work at the Chilidren's Heart Specialists

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes.

M5, JOBE: So in other words, would you be willing
to weigh the evidence here; weigh the —- any testimonyzhy
experts or doctors and not substitute your knowledge for
what's testified to?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes.

M¥8. JOBE: Okay. You indicated you have two
children; is that correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 466: Yes.

MS. JOBE: What are their age ranges?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 466: 17 and 11.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Anything about the fact the
testimony you're going te hear and the evidenhce you're going
to hear is related to a small child that would affect your
ability if vou're selected to be on the jury?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 466: HNo.

MS. JOBE: Any concerns about any. of the questions
I've asked the rest of the panel?

PROSPECTIVE_JUROR”NO. 466 MNo.
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1 MS. JOBE: All right. What about are you more oOF
2| an abstracgt thinker or a concrete thinker?
3 'PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 466: Sometimes I over think
4| things, yeah.
5 MS. JOBE: You over think? What types of things do
6| you over think?
7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Situdtions with mY

8| kids, yes.

9 M§. JOBE: Okay. How s0?7 You over think what you

10} should do 6r not do? Ovel think what's going on with them

i1} or --

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 466: Sometimes 1f they -- if
13| they come to me and ask me for certain things or can I come
141 over here or can I come to a friend's house and I over think

15| things. I just am, I think, oveér protective.

16 MS. JOBE: Okay.
17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yeal.
18 M3. JOBE: You're a mandited reporter, right;

19| because you're in the medical field -—

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes.

21 MS. JOBE: ~- with children? Have you ever had to
22| make a report?

2.3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: If we see things on

24| patients that we have, like cuts, and if we see bBruises, then

25| we have to report it to one of our doctors. She's a
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1| behavipral health --
2 MS, JOBE: Okay.

3 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 46863 -~ and a psychologlist

4| so thén she gets involved, And if she feels that they needs

5| to eall cPg, then we -- they're called.

6 M3. JOBE; Okay. And have you ever been involved

71 4in £hat process?

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: We have.
9 M3, JOBE: All right.

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes, I have.
11 MS. JOBE: How —-- bow invelved were you? DId you

12 | have to talk to anybody, be interviewed, of did ydu_just pass
13 | information élong to. that —

14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Just pass —- passed on
15| the information te the doctor.

16 MS. JOBE: Okay. All right, thank you very much.
171 If you could -- I've already spoken te Mr. Gaytan, and I

18 :appreciate it -—- te Ms. Wazxren. We have spoken aboul .you but
191 not with youw just yet: So you have lots of experience with
20| kids, correct?

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: Yes.

22 MS. JORE: Okay. ©h, and your name and your badge
231 rhumber?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 470: Oh, sorry: Heather

25| wWarren, 470..
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1 MS. JOBE: Great. And I got off track with what we
2| have to do. You indicated you'd been arrested for
3 obstruqting a police officer, correct?
4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: OUm=h'm.
3 MS. JOBE: Is that a yes or is a no?
6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: Yes.
7 M3. JOBE: Okay. -Any lingering feelings about
8| vfficers or detectives from that situation?
9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: No.
10 MS. JOBE: Okay. Anid you indicated there was &
11| time your mother's car was stolen; is that correct?
1z PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: Yes.
13 ‘MS. JOBE: Did you réport that?
-14. PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: She did.
15 MS. JOBE: What, 1f anything, came of that?
16 PREOSPECTIVE JURQOR NO. 470: They found -- found out
17] it was ended up being & ring and they prosecuted.
18 M3. JOBE: Any lasting impressions, good dr bad, as
19| far as detectives go or the prosecution process from what
201 happened with your mem's car?
21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: N,
22 M$. JOBE: All right. &s far as when your mom's
23| car was stoleén, do you know if there were any eyvewlitnesses?
24 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 4-7'0-:_ I don't -~ I don't
251 recall. Its with like ten years ago.
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MS, JOBE: Okay, and you said --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO, 470: S0 --

MS. JORE: =-- at least as far as you know it was a
ring --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: Um=h'm.

MS. JOBE: -- of people stealing cars?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 470: Um—h'm.

MS. JOBE: Is that .a yes of a no?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: Yes, sorry.

M$, JOBE: I'm very sorry. After our jury's
settled, va'll won't have Lo worry about this again. And as
far as it'd be fair to say they had to pilece together the
information ¢Of whatever they were investigating to reach a
conclusion in vour mom's case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470 Yes.

MS. JOBF: If you had to piece together information
or to reach a decision in this case, would you have any
concerns or problems with that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 470: No,

MS. JOBE: All right. BAnything that we've talked

about today with myself, with the panel you thought hey, I

should probably weigh in on that or have any special concerns

about?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: No, not that I can

think of.
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MS. JOBE: And if you were asked to deliberate with
11 other individuals, would you be able okay with that
Drocess?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 470r Yes.

MS. JOBE: Would you go-along-to-get-along or would
you be able to flesh ocut the evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 470: Wo, I'd make my own
decisien..

MS. JOBE: Okay. If you could pass the microphone
to, is it Pypkowski?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NCO, 473: Yes.

MS. JOBE: All right, ©Did I actually say that
right or are you just -- okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473; BHNeo, it's just how it
looks. Pypkowski.

MS. JOBE; Okay. A&ll right. ¥You indicated you
test concrete and asphalt for quality assurance, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.

MS. JOBE: S0 that sounds -~ I might be wrong

technical; is that fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Somewhat, yeah.

MS. JOBE: What do you, ¢enerally speaking, do you
have to use instruments and do readings and that kind of

stuff?

Verbatim Digita’l Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798:-0890

781




e e s A A A Tt 0

204

1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR N@. 473: Yeah, some instruments

2| and then a lot of math calculatiocns.

3 MS. JOBE: ©Oh. Are there threshbolds or protocols

4{ you have to follow in doing your gqudality assurance?

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Well, the test methods

6| are clearly defined, and I'm certified on those every two

7| vyears. So I ‘have to go by the book and then report the
8| answers correctly?

9 - M3, JOBE: Okay. And is thére -- are there levels
10§ or is it just a clear yes or no, it passed orx didn't pass?
11 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 473: It's wvsually a pass and
12| didn't pass.

13 MS. JOBE: All right. And you said you are

14 engaged, correct?

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.

16 MS. JORE: Congratulations.

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG, 473: Thank you.

18 'M§. JOBE: And congratulations to you as well, Ms.
19 _ Warren,

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 470: Thank .you.

21 MS. JOBE: And vou said your fiance's an assistant
22{ manager at. Smith's?

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.

24 MS. JOGBE: A1l right: And you also indicated you
251 have two young girls?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR=NO.-473& Yes..
MS. JOBE: What's the age range?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: 12 weeks and 2-and-a-

half years.

MS. JOBE: Getting much dleep?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: UNot much.

MS. JOBE: All right. Has anything evér happened
to your two-and-a-half-year-old where you've kind of had to
sort out what happened without her being able to explain
everything to you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 473: Yeah, she still doesn't
talk too well yet so most every day pretty much I have to do
that with her.

MS. JOBE: And how do you go about deing that with

her?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: I just look around what

could have happened and, you know, loock —-- like if she fell

down the stairs, you know, she would have a mark here.

M5, JOBE: Sure,

PROSPECTIVE .JURCOR NO. 473: You'd hear noises from
it and stuff like that.

MS. JOBE: Okay. And you -- all right. And then
as far as if you're selected to be a member of the jury in
this case, would you have arly concerns or problems with

deliberating with 11 ether individuals?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: No.

MS. JOBE: &And have you ever sought .a sacond
medical opinion?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Ho.

MS. JOBE: Any cOncerns listening to experts and
their testimony or dogtors and weighing their testimony and
what they say in making a decision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: No.

MS. JOBE: Would you take thelr testimony as --
give it any more weight necessarily just because they're a
doctor or_just'because-theyrre-an expert?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Well, in a subject that
I don't know much about; then I would have to because they're
experts, But if there's something that clearly deesn't sound
right, then it doesn't sound right.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Would you be able to listen to
the testimony and make a determination as far as
reasonableness of it and whether you acoept it or reject it?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 473: Yes.

14S. JOBE: Okay. Fair to say they would khow —-
sbviodsly, they know more .information About whatever they're
-- well, let's do the hypothetical with you. You know more
about testing concrete (inaudible) than clearly I do because
I don't do it, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.
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MS. JOBE: So to some extent if you -- cbviously,

you have more information about the subjeéct than zomeone like

myself would, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.

MS. JOBE: But if you -- if you were required —-

this is kind of backwards, so I apologize. But if someane

were to weigh your testimony as a tester of asphalt and

conerete, ohviously, you'd provide some facts, some knowledge
they don't know about, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.

MS. JOBE: But then we still have to see if it
actually makes any sense, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yeah, Well, I would
present my informatien in a way so that the person I'm
telling 1t to can understand it.

MS. JOBE: Sure. And if you listen to doctors or
experts; would you be able to discuss or assess the
reasonableness of it or whether it makes sense at all to
other evidence presented?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yes.

MS. JOBE: All right. T have no additional
gquestion, Your Honor, but I do have challenges.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you want to approach?

(Bench conference begins)

THE- COURT: I usually like the challenges for cause
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1| to be made when we have them.
3 2 MS. JOBE: OH, I apologize, Your. Honor.
3 THE COURT: That's okay.
4 MS. JOBE: I'm 50 S0rry.
5 THE COURT: So I can rule on them.
6 MS. JOBE: We have a challénge to Ms, ~— number 6,
7| Marilyn Hernandez.
8 MS. KIERNY: We agrée and would stipulate to that
9| challendge; Your Honor, on ~—-
10 THE COURT: So number 67
i1 MS.IJOBE: Unm-h'm.
12 THE COURT: Qkay, so what I'm gbing’to;do'right now
13] is I'm going to let her down.
14 MS. JOBE: Okay.
15 THE COURT: I'11 let -- I'll grant the challenge
16| and then I'm golng to seat the next person up.
17 MS. JOBE: OCkay.
18 THE COURT: $o the person who will become number @
18! is Belinda Hightower.
20 M3. KIERNY: Do you hawe any other challenges?
21 MS. JOBE: I do. The other challenge is to Ms.
22| Pineda, seat --
23 THE COURT: Okay.
24 MS. JOBE: Ms. Pineda, seat number 2.
25 MS. KIERNY: With their uncomfortableness to judge.
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1 ' MS. JOBE: And she said she would do a -— go along

2| to get —-
3 MS. KIERNY: Yes,.

4 MS. JOBE: -- whatever the other 11 do, I would do.

5{ 1 tried to parse that out if she'd be able to stand =~

6 MS, KIERNY: 1 would agree. I would stipulate.
7 THE COURT: T .apologize.
8 MS. JOBE: That's okay. I'm sorry, Your Honor.

9| Number 2, she said she'd essentially go-along—te-—get-along,
10| whatever the 11 did, she weuld just do. I tried to se& if

11{ she would stand by her guts and she said no.

12 MS, KIERNY: I would stipulate. I would agree.
13 THE COURT: Ckay. So number &, number 2.°
14 MS. JOBE: I'm sorry, Your Honer, 1'm not going in

151 any order that makes .any sense, s¢ I apologize. As to number
16 -- gedalb number 1, Mz, Evans —-

17 THE COURT: Uh-huh.

18 M5. JOBE: -- he said he'd have the financial

19| difficulty of being able to pay his bills because heé said he
20 works five'days-a week, was calling im as &8 substitute. A&And
21 then he also had issues with, sorry, his friends being

22| wrongly accused. An, and so based on theose, Your Honer, we
23| would challenge for <¢ause.

24 THE COURT: Okay. TI'm not going to excuse him for

25| bthe finandial, but I didn't hear the second part.
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1 MS. JOBE: His statements about his friends being
2| wrongly accused of some crimes and so I would challenge for

3{ cause on him.

4 MS. KIERNY: We would -+ I don't agree on that one.

5/ I would like =--
6 THE COURT: Yeah.
7 MS, KIERNY; =-- I know you have an issue

8| (inaudible) I'd like a chance to try to talk to him about

2| these issues..
10 THE GOURT: And so I'm.going to grant number 6 and
11| number 2; and number 1 I'm going to overrule. And 50 let me

12] put the -- I'm going to put two HGW'jUIOIS-Up\

13 M3, JOBE: I have one meore, Your Honor,

141 THE COURT: Okay.

15 MS. JOBE: Mr. Lewis, nuirber 18,

IS THE COURT: Okay.

17 MS. JOBE: Your Honor, T asked him multiple times

181 if he'd be able to set his feelings aside about —-- you asked
19! him at the bench about his own abuse. He hemmed and hawed

20| and couldn't glve a straight answer about belng able to set
21| aside his féelings. I asked him about his feelings about law
22| enforcement, 1if heé'd able to set those aside, and he hemmed
23] and hawed and couldn't give a definite yes or a definite no
24| about it and his feelings would become part of his

25| deliberations. He couldn't say ves or no because he couldn't
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give a clear answer. We're challenging for cause.

MS. KIERNY: And I disagree. I think he did say he
could try te be fair, but he had an issue if it was child
sexual assault, but obviously, that is not the case here
50

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to overrule that one.

MS. KIERNY: Thank you.

MS. JOBE: QOkay.

THE COURT: But I'm gaing to number 2 --

M5. JORE: And number 6,

THE COURT: You did number 2. Which one did you
challenge first?

MS. JOBE: I did 6 first. I should have not, but.

THE. COURT: 8o that will be number & first, number

MS. JOBE: Okay.
THE COURT: And then 1 and 15 is overruled.
MS, JOBE: Okay.
THE COURT: Se I'll put two new jurors in there.
MS. KIERNY: Okay, thank you.
MS. JOBE: Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you.
(Bench conference concluded)
THE COURT: All right. At this time, I'm going to

‘ask Ms. Marilyn Lopez-Hernandez if you'll step down out of
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the bex. And Ms. Belinda Hightower, you're geing -- if

you'll just step down and go sit out in the gallery. I'm

sorry, I should give better instructions. I apologize. Ms.

Belinda Hightower, you're going te be Juror Number 6. Ms.
Lourdes Pineda, if vyou'll step down as well. Serkalem
Woldermariam is going to become Jiror Number 2,

THE MARSHAL: Who has the microphone, please? Can
you pass the mic up here, please?

THE COURT: Ms. Hightower, How long have you lived
in Clark County?

THE MARSHAL: Ms. Hightower, please.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: 20 véars.

THE COURT: I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: 20 years.

THE COURT: Your employment, training, education
backgropnd?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: High school, employment
at Unilever Ice Cream Factory.

THE COURT: Okay, I'm sorry, I can't hear you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: ‘Unilever Ice Cream
Factory and a high school employment —-- I mean, education.

PHE COURT: All right. Your marital status?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 48B4: Single.

THE CGOURT: Do you have childiren?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: One.
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1 THE .COURT: Is that child old enough to be

2| enmplayed?

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes,

4 THE COURT: Can you tell me what that child does

5 im.

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: He's self-employed.

7 THE - €OURT: And what is --

g PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO©. 484: A handyman.

9 THE GOURT: Self-smployed handyman. Do you know of

10| any reason why you could not be a completely fair and

11| dimpartial juror?

12 -PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 484: I don't feel

13| comfortable judging someone else no matter what it is.

14 THE COURT: ©Dkay. And remember what I told you

15| earlier, that's not necessarily disgualifyinhg,

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I know, but I'm just

171 saying that's how I feel.

18 THE CCOURT: Sure. Most pepple do feel a little bit
19. uncemfortable with it. But do you have -- is there -- do you
20} have any opinions or anv beliefs that prevent vou from -=-

21 PROSPECTIVE JURCR MNO. 484: I —-

22 THE COURT: Let me finish., That preévent you from
23 serving as a juror?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 484: No, I just —- I've done

25| it before, and when they asked me the guestions about that,
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THE COURT: Go ahead.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR. NO. 484: -~ don't think --

THE COURT: Here I am.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: T don't feel good about

doing it. I did it before, and the cutcome -- we didn’t do

it right.

THE COURT: Okay. You have served &s a jurer

befere?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 484: Yeés, I have.

THE COURT: A1l right. Z&nd was that here in Clark

County or elsewhere?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Here in €lark County.

THE COURT: How long ago was it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: BAbout maybe two years

a4g0 .
THE COURT: Ebout two years ago?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR. NG. 484: Yes.

THE COURT: 50 you got & jury summong pretty

gquickly to come ——

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes, I did.

THE COURT: ~- serve again. Within two years.

PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO. 484: Yes.

THE COURT: Thark you very much for appearing.

that is pretty quick, T admit.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah, I thought about
it, tos, but vou can't get out of it s5¢ here T am:

THE COURT: And you were selécted, yod were
impaneled on that jury?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: We actually did the
whole court thing.

THE COURT: Was that civil or criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484 Civil.

THE COURT: It was civil?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes.

PHE COURT: Okay. And you made a -~ you had -- you
don't feel like that was a good experience is kind of the
impression I get.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Well, I -- I mean, I'm
eéxperienced about, you know, the guestions and the evidence
and everything that's going to be but there, but like I said,
Iri the end, it wasn't dorne right.

THE COURT: Okav. Why de yeu think it wasn't daong
right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO~. 484: Because everybody was
ready td go. One person talked, and there it was. That was
not- right.

THE CQURT: Okay. B8g you weren't real happy with
the deliberative process?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Exactly,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, £LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

793




10
11
12
13

14

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

216

THE COURT: Okay. Anything about that, that would
interfere with your ability to be fair and impartial if you
were sélected to serve heie?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 484: See, that's what I'm
saying. I'm mot into it sb you need Lo --— I'd be focused and
you ——

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: —-- you got somebody --
this is more seriopus. You gol sonebody's fate in your hand.

THE COURT: Sure, it's serious. I would agree with
that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NCO. 484: Yes, it's real serious,
yes.

THE COURT: And if you were asked to be here, you
would take it serious?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah, but like I said,
I don't feel comfortable -- with this.

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I -— T -~ the other one
was -— but this one is, yeah.

THE COQURT: Okay. But you'd take -~

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I don't like --

THE COURT: ~~ it sericns?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 484: 1I'd have to take it

serious, but I don't know how --
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THE COURT: You'd listen to the evidence?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: ~-- T would act. Yeah,
I -- I got to be here, so yeah, T will —-

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 484: -- all of that, but I'm

THE COURT: &nd since you do have experience, you
know the Court gives you instructions on the law?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Right.

THE COURT: You would follow the,instructions on

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Best I can.

THE COURT: Gkay. 2nd although, maybe that wasn't
the most pleasant expéerience —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 484: Um-h'm.

THE COURT: -- would you, if you were asked te be
here; would you sit here and do your duty?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484; That's what I'm saying
that I don't know what -— what's going to become of, you
know, because we don't krnow nething. 1 don't know if it
would affect me bacause I've also been —— I see child abuse,
and T've beéeen abused, you know, so you just don't know, some
of this stuff can hHit home, and we --—

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR NO. 484: You just don't know.
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THE COURT: And that's why, you know, you know it
wouldn't be -— we can't put a case @i =~
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. .484: Right.

THE COURT: —- try it in front of a jury panel .and

then raise your hand and say, can you be fair now that you've

heard all the evidence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Right.

THE COURT: You understand that.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Right.

THE COURT: Right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4841 That's why I'm telling
you now how it could go.

THE COURT: Right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah.

FHE COURT: So we have to be able to gel people
that regardless of what the evidence is --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes.

THE COURT: ~—- that they're going to make a
commitment right from the get-go that they're going to be
fair and impartial to both sides and follow the law. And you
understand that because you've done that before, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Right, right.

THE COURT: &nd that regardless of whether you like
the evidence, don't like the evidence, I mean, somefimes you

heay stuff that isn't pleasadt in a courtreom. Do you have
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11 any problem with that?
2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I don't know. I don't
21 ¥know what this case is.
4 THE COURT: Okay. But you understand we can't —-—
5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 484: I understand, but yeah.
6 THE COURT: ~-— tell you what the case is first -~
7 PROSEECTTVE JURQR NO. 484: Right.
8 THE COURT: -- but if you're asked to be here,

4| wyou're golng to follow the instructions on the law, correct?
10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah. 1 don't feel
11| comfortable, but yes.

12 THE COURT: Aand you'll. listen to the évidence as it
13| comes ocut in the courtroom?

14 PROSPECTIVE JURQOR WO. 484: Yes,

15 THE COURT: &And vou'll deliberate with your fellow
16| Jurors?

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah.

18 THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry, I —- maybe you're

19! saying yes; but I -= I didn't -- 1 didn't understand. And
20| was that the only other time you've ever served as a juror?
21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484r Well, I've been -- oh,
220 this is about my fourth time.

23 THE COURT: See.

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Not —- not being

251 served, but -—- I mean, not being on the panel, but I've come.
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Sometimes they be like okay, they plead guilty before he got

up here.

“THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE

know, a whilé back.

THE ‘COURT:

actually --

such as a

crime?

murdaered.

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

family member or friend ever been the vietim of a

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

A1l right.

JUROR NO. 484: This 1is long ~- you

But just_one.timé.where you've:

JUROR NO. 484: I served.
-- been here?

JUROR NO. 484: Um-h'm.

And you sat through a case, correct?

JUROR NO, 484: TRight.

Bll right. So 1f you weré picked on

this panel, it would be your second time, correct?

JURCR NO. 484: Right.

Okay. Have you or anyone close to you

JUROR NO. 484: Yes. I had a brother

OCkay.

JUROR NO. 484: In California.
I'm sorry-

JURGR NC. 484: Yés 

And how long age was that?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: 1t's bheen about nine,
Len years now.

THE COURT: Okay. A&nd obviously, the police were
involved?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes.

“PHE, COURT: Did they find the person?

PROSPECTTVE JUROR. NO. 484: Yeah, they got him. It

was gang related where_gang-bangiﬁg.qetting‘initiated into a
gang.
THE COURT: Okay. And was that person proSecﬁted?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: That's where it's all
crazy. By being in californta, we was not really told when
the trial-Waé or rone of that. We end up have to keep
calling, keep calling, and come to find, yeal, they got him.
THE COURT: Okay. 3o the person -—
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 484: But it was handled

Crazy.

THE CQURT: All right. The pexson was apprehended,

and the way it was handled was, to guote you, “crazy”.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 484; Yes.
THE COURT: Why -- tell me why you -
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Because we should have
been —— that was our brother and we should =-
THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484. -= have been notified
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what's going on step by step by step.

THE COURT: I -- I --

PROSPECTIVE JUROCE MO. 484: Not calling and -=

THE COURT: -- agree with you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: -~ finding ount, you
‘ktiow, because we-might have wanted to be there, which we
would., Tt's just in California. BAnd we didn't go-to-na
trial or nothing.

THE COURT: Okay. So do you know 1f it went to

trial?®

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah, it went to trial:

THE COURT: All right. And —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: We had a family member
down there that was -- was-kégpinq ip, but we. needed to know
when was the trial so wé could -at ieast_have been thers.

THE COURT: Did the family member that was there
keeping up with 1t call to tell you to come down for the
Erial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: No, and they never got
notified. That's what they -- wg talked to some detective.
T don't even know who he is, but he right off the bat, and I
just threw -- threw it up like it was a cold case, but he
promised us that he was going te find out what happened, and
~— and he did.

THE COURT: Okay.
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PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 484: Yeah.

THE COURT: And so they sctually apprehended a
person, that person went Lo ttrial and they were convicted?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yeah.

THE COURT: And then what happeﬁed? T mean, they
were sentenced.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484y Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: To prison.

THE CQURT: And do you Know --— did you -- do you

‘know what the sentence was?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 484: No, I don't —- we don't

know anything. We just know that it went to trial and they

got caught. That's why we was saying, we needed to beé

notified, You supposed to notify families:

THE COURT: Sure. But you don't know what the
result was or what any —--

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 484: We don’'t know —-

THE COURT: —- punishment was?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: -- anything. We just

that they, you know, the guy said we did -- I did hear him

talk -- matter eof fact, we. was ‘on three-way. I'm here, she's

in California, and Sshe got him on the phone letting him krow
that I am on the phone,

THE CQURT: Qkay.
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PROSTECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: And so that's how we

find out that he —= they did get caught, but we don't know

anything else. I'm like, well, that was crazy. Tt was &
trial, we should have been there.

THE COURT: Sure. Anything about that, that would

affect your ability to be fair and impartial in this --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 484: That's why saying —-

THE COURT: -- case?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: -—— I'm —- I'm just --
this is ~~ I don't know. I don't -- I can't even speak on
that. _

THE CGOURT: Okay. Well, you're the only one who.

can tell me.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I know.

THE COURT: Anything about that experierice that

would affect vour ability to be fair and impartial in this

case?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: All I can say I'm going

to try, buok I Just -- like I said, this is -- this is some

serious —-- the one I was in, it wasn'g like this.

THE COURT: Ckay. I agree. You obviously,
understand the sericusness of it.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay? All right? Is there anything

about your expsrience with your brother's case that’s going
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the parties here because as you've noted, this is serious?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes. I'm going to
say —-

THE £OURT: Anything?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 484: -- véry much it could.

It very well could.

THE COURT: What could?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Affect the way that I
look at this case.

THE CQURT: Qkay, how so?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Like I said, it depends

on wﬁat -- what's going on with, you know, because --

THE COURT.: Okay. Well, you understand that this
case has to be judged by the evidence and what happens in
this courtroom, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Right.

THE COURT: You don't know much, In fact, kind of

sounds like you don't know much about anything about what
happened in that case, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Right.

THE COURT: Okay. So you'll be able to set that
aside and judge this case solely upon what you —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: T should --

THE COURT: -—- sge --
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: -- be able to set that
aside. Like I said, 1'll try.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. 484: But --

THE COURT: T need to know if you'll be able to set
that aside and judge this case solely upon what you see and
hear in the courtroom and the instructicns o the law; can
yoir do that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I can try. That's all
I gan tell you.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, here's anotheér —- here's
what I can tell you. I can't wailt until you go back into the
jury deliberétion room for jurors to make up their mind. I
need jurors that can tell me now before we get started. And
you understand the lmportance of that, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Right, correct.

THE COURT: So are you & juror that can follow the
instruections on the law as given to you by the Court?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484; Yeah, T can.

THE COURT: Okay. 4A&nd you can judge this case

is that cotrrect?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay. Have you or .anyone close to you,

such as & family mpember or friend ever been accused of a
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1| crime?
2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: DNot that I Krow of. I
. 3| doen't Xknow. HNo.
% 4 THE COURT: Okay. Thank vou. Ms. Woldermariam.
51 Did I pronounce your name correctly?
& PROSFECTIVE JURCR NO. 491: Yes.
7 THE COURT: Okay. How long have you lived in Clark
8| County?
9 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: 14 years.
10 THE COURT: Your employment History?
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I work -- before I work
12| at the MGM.
13 THE COURT: .Okay; I can't hear you. So you're
14| going to.havé_tg speak up-.
15 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NG. 491: I work at the MGM
16| before. Right now I work at Planet Hellywood.
17 THE COURT: Do you mind standing up. I rean, T
18] can't even -- unfortunately, I can't even see your mouth.
19| Thank you. Now, where do you work?®
20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Right now I work at the
21| Planet Hollywood.
22 THE COURT: Okay. What do you do?
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR RO. 49%i: A hostess.
24 THE COURT: Okay. Your education background?
25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: High schocl degree plus
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a little eollege.
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PRUSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE .COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

not be a completely fair and impartial juror if you were

selected to serve?

PROSPECTIVE

me Aervous right ndw.

THE CQURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

completely fair and impartial Jjurof?

PROSPECTIVE

believe in forgiveness, so it's hard it's going to be for me.

THE COURT:

228

Are you married?

JUROR NO. 491: Yes.

Is your spouse employed?

JUROR NO. 491: Yes.

What does your spouse do for a living?
JUROR NO. 491: He's a butler.

A bouncer?

JURCR NO. 491: Butler,

I'm sorry?

JUROR NO. 481: A butler:

A butler? Do you have children?
JURCR NO. 491: No.

Do yéu know of any reason why you could
JURQR NO. 491: T never do and it make
Sure.

JUROR NO. 491: Yeah:

Any reasoh why you could not be a

JYROR NO. 491l: TIn my religion, T

Okay. In your religion you believe in
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| 1| forgiveness?
2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yes.
3 THE COURT: No. problem,
4 PROSPE’CTIVE JUROR NG, 491: Yeah.
5 ' THE COURT: That doesn't disqualify you for -- from

6| being a juror. Any reason -— do you know of any reason why
71 you could not be a completely fair and impartial Juror?

B PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: As I told you, it's

3 going_to be hard te judge someone because T raised, still am

10| believe in, forgiveness.

11 PUE CQURT: Ckay.
12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Sb it's going to be

13| nard te me, whatever evidence you bring I can't decide, and I
14| can't judge him.

i5 THE COURT: QOkay, I'm not sure I understand you.

16| If you're asked to sit here and serve as a juror, you're

17| going to sit here and listen to a case, correct?

18 PROSPECTIVE :JUROR NO. 491: Yeah, I can listen, Lut

19| T can't decide. I can't say nothing.

20 THE COURT: You can't deliberate?

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah, I can't because
20 1 --

23 THE COURT: Why rot?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: -- I told you, I

25| believe in forgiveness.
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1 THE COURT: Ckay.
2 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I've raise, since I

; 31 ‘born:

4 THE COURT: TForgiveéness doesn't prevent you from
5| deliberating.
6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I didn't believe in
71 judge someone whatever that's has happened.
g THE COQURT: Okay. Forgiveness doesn't -— none of

9{ those issues prevent you from serving as a juror; do you

10| understand that?

11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah, I believe -- I

12| didn't believe in that interest by judging someone or putting
13| something on that persen. That's my problem.

14 THE COURT: Ycu don't believe in doing jury duty?
LS PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Bome cases, yeah,

16| because I can't.

17 THE COURT: Okay. What religlous belief do you

18| have that interferes with your ability to do jury duty?

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 481: Excuse me?

20 THE COURT: Okay. I'm nobt sure I understand you.
21| You understand as citizens we all have certain duties. One
27| of the most important duties that we all have as citizens is
23| to respond to a jury summons when we get it to come to the

24 | courthouse and to serve. And so WE've.beeﬂ hereﬁall-day-just

25| trying teo get a panel of members of our commurity that will
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1| sit and listen to a case.
? PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 491: I can sit and —--

3 THE COURT: I don't have -— there's no -- unless

4| vyéu're tell -- forgiveness, judgment, none of those things

5| interfere with your ability to sit as a juror. The only

6| thing I want td know; is there any reason why you cannot be

7| fair and impartial to the Stdte of Nevada or to the defendant

gt here?

g PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: No,

10 THE COURT: There's no reason? Is that a no?
11 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah, there is no

12| reason.

13 THE COURT: <©Okay. Have you &ver served as a juror
14| before?

15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: No.

l& THE COURT: Have you or anyone close to you, such
171 as a family member or a friend ever been the victim of a

18] crime?

19 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 491: No.

20 THE COURT: Have you or anyone close to you, such

21 as a family membet or friend, ever been accused of a crime?

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: No.
23 THE COURT: Thank you. State of Nevada.
24 MS. JOBE: I apologize, Ma'am, how do I say your

25 last name?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Woldermariam,
M. JOBE: Okay. Ms. Woldermariam, when the Judge

was asking vyou questions, you said youfwouldnﬁt be able to

regch & decision. What do you mean by that?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I don't know how Lo
explain.

THE MARSHAL: Can you speak directly into the

microphene, please, sc that the recorder can hear you.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I don't know how to
explain, but it is hard for me sitting and talking, it's
making me nervous.

MS. JOBE: T -- and I apologize. I apologize that
we have to pﬁt you all on the spot and ask you these
guestions, But as the Judge says, both sides want someone
who can Be fair and impartial to both sides, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Um-h'm.

MS. JOBE: You said when the Judge was asking yeu

questions that you wouldn't be able to delibsrate; is that

‘fair as to what you said?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah.

MS. JOBE: And why wouldn't you be able to
deliberate?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR NO. 491: I don't know, I can't.

Mg . JOBE: €Can we approach, Your Honor?

{Bench conference begins).
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1 THE COURT: I Teft her there bgcause I got the

2| impression she did not want to be here. That was clear, but

3| that she would do it if she was asked to.

4 MS. JOBE: For the State she never unequivocally --
51 she never said she could deliberate. She —- the only thing
6| -she said was --

7 THE COURT: I'll be happy to ask her again.

8 MS. JOBE: I[m juSt —— T asked to approach because
9| her eyes are welling up with tears and --—

10 "THE COURT: And then that happens, and guess what
11] else is going to happen? We're going to fall apart.

12 MS. JOBE: 1 Xnow.

13 THE COURT: If alls you have to do is shgd a few
14] tears, I'm going to have to call the Jury Commissioner and
13| get another panel.

le MS. JOBE: Okay. I will.kEep asking questions.

17 THE COURT: Clearly, I don't think she wants to be

181 here, but --

19 MS. JOBE: 1 appreciate that, but --
20 THE COURT: ~—- I think -=
21 MS. JOBE: -- it's the State's understanding there

22| has to be an equivocal yes 0F RO you ¢apn or can't reach a
73| decision. As of now she said no.
24 THE COURT: I'll be happy to ask her again.

25 Ms. JOBE: Okay.
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3 THE COURT: Okay.

2 {Bench conference concluded)

3 THE COURT: Ms. Woldermariam --

4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491t Yes.

5. THE COURT: -- one of the guestions that I asked

6| you previously is, you understand that if you're asked to

71 serve on this jury panel, you'll have to sit iw here and

8| listen to evidénce, torrect?

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah.

16 THE COURT: And at some point the jury will be

11{ excused to go back inte the deliberation room to deliberate .

12| upon a verdict. Do you understand that?

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Can yon repeat?
14 THE COURT: I'm ~=
15 PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 491: Can you repeat for me,

161 please?
17 THE COURT: Yeah. If you're asked to serving as a
18| Jjuror, you'll be reguired to sit ip here and listen to the

19| evidence by both sides. Do you understand that?

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah.
21 THE COURT: And you'll do that, correct?

22 PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 481: h-huh.

23 THE COURT: BAnd then, at some point, the jury will

24| be -- I'm sorry, the jury will be excused by myself to go

25| back into a room to deliberate upon a verdict based upon the
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based cn the instructions?

language. 1f I understand what -- what they spesak.
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instructions on the law, which will be given to you by
myself. IF you're asked to be on the jury, will you go back

with your fellow jurors and deliberate upon the verdict,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yedh,

‘THE COURT: I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yes.

THE COURT: Yes? Thank you.

MS. JOBE: Thank you, Your Honor. During those
deliperations, would vou be able to engage with the other 11
people and talk about the evidence so everybody reéaches a
decision together?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: If I understand.

MS. JOBE: What do you mean if I understand?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: English is my second

MS.. JOBE: What is your first language, Ma'am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 481: Amhdric.

MS, JOBE: I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Amharic.

MS. JOBE: How old were you when you learned
English?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491; We take English as one
subject. We'ré not speaking, we're not doing anything -- we

(inaudible} as 'a subject.

verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0880

813




g
!
% 1 MS. JOBE: Okay. You seem actually pretty
?' 2| articulate. How leong have you been in the United States?
3: PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: L4.
4 MS. JOBE: 14 years?
5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 49%1: Um=h'm.
6 MS. JOBE: Okay. And -you stated that you work at
7| the -~- at Planet Hollywood now —-—
8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491t Um=h'm.
9 MS. JOBE: -~ is that .correct?
10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah.
11 MS. JOBE: Okay.
12 THE MARSHAL: I'm sorry, counselor, Ma'am, c¢an vou
13| speak up and speak directly into the microphone?
14 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 481: Okay.
15 THE- MARSHAL: She caa't hear you.
16 THE. COURT: I'm ha&ing_a hard time hearing you, and
17! I'm probably the most important one that has to hear you. 3o
18| if you don't mind standing up so I cédn hear yoiz. Sorry.
18 M3. JOBE: When you interact with vour spouse, do
20| you speak English or do you spéak a foreign language with
21| 'your spouse?
22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: My language,
23 M5. JOBE: Okay. 5¢ not English? And T apol_ogiz’e‘.,
24| T would say it, but I'm going to mispronounce, which is why I
25| don't want to disrespect you by mispronouncing it.
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1 And your friends and pecple you. spend time with in

I

Las Vegas, do you speak English or do you speak your native
3| language?
4 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: My language.
5 M5, JOBE: ©Okay. As a host, you interact with
6| players and pecple at the hotel, correct?
7 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491l: No, I'm restaurant
8| hostess; not the host.
9 MS. JOBE: I'm socrry?
10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491l: I work in the
11} restaurant.
12 MS. JOBE: Oh, I see. And what do you do at the
13| rdstadrant?
14 PROSPECTIVE  JUROR NO. 4 91: Hostess.
15 MS. JOBE: So you seat people, get the number of
16| people in a party, that kind of stuff?
17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah,.
18 MS. JOBE: Okay. Now, yom talked about how
191 forgiveness, it would be hard for you to be on the juryy is

20| that correct?

21 PROSPECTIVE JUROR ‘NO. 491: Um-h'm.

22 THE CQURT: Is that a yes?

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491L: Yes.

24 MS. JOBE: What would be hard about that?

25 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4%1: I forgived; so I have
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MS. JOBE: Sure, but you understand this case Isn't

or

happened?

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR NO, 491: Um~h'm.

MS, JOBE: Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah, even though the
things happen, I believe in forgiveness.,

MS. JOBE: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: That's what I'm saying.
I'm telling you.

MS. JOBE: Sure, but the -— the job of the jury is
to decide if something happened ox didn’'t happen.
Forgiveness or punishment or not punishment is a different
day, a different issue.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR;NO} 491: Um~h'm.

M5. JOBE: Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah.

M$. JOBE: And do you —- would you be able to set
that aside and make & ‘decision based on the evidence in the
case if something happened or didn't happen?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: It's hard, but I'll
try. It's net easy.

MS. JOBE: Well, what do you see your role in,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

8216,



H
!

L

10

11

2

13

14

18

16

17
18
19

20

21

22

23
24

25

we give them second change? I believe in that.

be able to do +that?

239

then, in your forgiveness in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I believe, in the
second chance. That's =-

MS. JOBE: 'Well, do you pelieve people should be
held accountable if they de soémething wrong?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NGO, 491: If they learn, why not

MS. JOBE: Okay. And do you think it's the jury's
jok, then, to give the second chance or tojgive'the'bEnefit
of the doubt?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: That's my bélieving,
not about the rest of the people,

MS. JOBE: ©Okay., .And would you be able to set
aside that belief and make a determination based on the
evidence in the case if something happened or didn't happen?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 491: I have te. I don't
have cholce.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Choice or not, would you actually

. PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: I'll try.

MS. JORE: BRecause as the Judge said, we don't want
péople going back into the deliberation room after they hear
the pvidence and then say I cain't de it. De you understand
why that would be a problem? 1Is that a yes ox a no?

pROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yes.
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1 MS. JOBE: And that is just because she's typing
2| evérything down. As yeu sit here today, since yon speak of
3| forgiveness, are you leaning towards the State or towards the
41 defense? Where do you B8it?
g 5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: To decide that, I have

6| to listen what ybu have.
7 M8. JOBE: Okay.

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Without listen, how I

9} going to --
10 MS. JOBE: 4&s you sit here today and look at both
111 sides, which side are you concerned about for forgiveness?
12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: The other side.
13 MS. JOBE: Okay. And why do you think you have any
14| =-- why is forgiveness your lssue with this case?
15 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: HNot only this case, for
16 every case, if I =- if something happen in my life, I choose
17| to forgive instead of to go further something.

18 M&. JOBE: Sure, but if you're selected as a juror,
19| what happened in this case isn't your life. You are an
20} outside person asked to make a decision if something happened

21! or didn't happen. Do you understand?.

22 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 481: Uwm-h'm,

23 MS. JOBE: Is that a yes or a no?

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yes.

2.5 MS. JOBE: And would you bhe trying to extend
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1| forgivehess to -- you indicated to the defense?
2 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO, 491: I might.
3 M3, JOBE: And would that affect your

4| deliberations, your ability to reach guilty, not guilty?

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Yeah.

6 MS. JOBE: If the Judge told you, you couldn't do
71 that, what would you de?

8 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: Couldn't means?

O

'M$. JOBE: That you can't consider whether or not
10| you'd give forgiveness or den't give forgiveness to the State
11| or the defense, what would you do?

12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 491: If I don't have choice,

13| T'11 sit and listen and I'll see what's going to be happen.

14 MS. JOBE: Okay. May we approach?

15 THE COURT: Sure.

16 {(Bench conference begins)

17 THE COURT: Is there a challenge for cause?

18 MS, JOBE: There is, Your Honor. She will not give

19| an uvneguivecal will not --

20 MS. KIERNY: (Inaudible).

21 MS. JOBE: -—- f(indiscernible} forgiveness -- my

22| apologies, one second. I'm almost done,

23 MS., KIERNY: Oh, sorry.

24 MS. JOBE: And she said that she san't say because

25| she'll only try to sét aside forgiverness, bul as she sits
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here today, if anyene's going to get forgiveness, it's going
to be. the defense, and that's not part of the deliberative
process and since she can't unequivocally say she'd set that
aside and deliberate, the State challenges for cause.

MS. KIEENY: T don't know 1f this is somerhing that
she's doing -- that she's saying she can't {(inaudible) and
sticking to it or this is really her belief. I mean, she’'s
saying --

THE COURT: Well, I've got to --

MS. HOLIDAY: =-- she's told you that she can be --

THE COURT: She's under cath. I've got to take her

‘at her word.

MS . KIERNY: Well, .I mean, she told you she can sit
and she ¢an deliberate and ~-

MS. JORE: She said multiple times, though, that
she can't, and she can't set: it aside.

THE COURT: Yeazh. At this time, I'm golng to grant
the challenge for cause. Number 2 is going to be Lynis
Lehne .

MS. JOBE: ©Okay.

THE COURT: Okay?

MR . BURTON: Thank wyou, Your Honor.

(Bench conference concluded) .

THE COURT: Ms. Woldermariam, I'm going to ask vyou

to step down out of the box. Lynis Lehne, you're going to
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Thank you very much for being here,

and thank you. T know that the -- the day is getting long.

How long hHave you lived in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
background?
PROSPECTIVE
unemployed.
THE CQURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE CQURT:
PROSPECTIVE
‘THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE -COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
‘THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

JURCR NO. 483: 12 yeaZs.

Your emplpyment, training, education

JUROR NO. 493; Some college,

What was the last job you had?
JURCR NO. 493: Bio skills lab.

What did you de?

JURCR NO. 493: Front of house work.
I'm sorry?

JUROR NO. 493: Front of house.
Okay. Your marital status?

JUROR NO. 493: Single.

Do you have children?

JUROR NQ., 4933 Yes.
How many?
JUROR NO. 493: One child; gix years.

Do you krow of any reason why you could

net be a.completely fair and impartial-juror if you were

selected to serve on this panel?

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

JURCOR NO: 493: No.

Have you ever served as a juror before?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 49%3: No.

THE COURT: Have you or anyone close to you, such

as a family member, or a friend, ever been the victim of a

crime?

PROSBECTIVE JUROR NG. 493: Yes.

THE COURT: 'Why don't you tell we about that.

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 493: My father experienced a
home invasion last vyear.

THE COURT: Was that here in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: VYes.

THE COURT: ©Did he call the pelice?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Yes.

THE COURT: And the police responded?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 493: Yes.

THE COURT: Did they take a report?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Yes.

THE COURT: How involved were you in this incident?

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR NO. 493: T heard about it on the
news and then through my family.

THE COURT: ©Okay. So it was of such magnitude that
it was picked up en the local news?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493 Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Did they catch the person?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO, 493: No.

THE COURT: What made it, I guess, newsworthy that
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1t got picked up on the news?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Probably because
they're elderly.

THE CQURT: ©h, I'm sorry.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Thank you.

THE COURT: And so the police responded and all
that; and they -- did they ever catch him?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Wo.

THE COURT: So it's a —- still an open case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Yes, to my knowledge.

THE COURT: &All right. Do you ever any
cemmunication with the police that are involved in that case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: No.

THE COURT: All right. Anything about that case
that would -affect your ability to be fair and impartial in
this ¢ase?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 483: No.

THE COURT: All right. Have you or anyone close to
you such as .a family member or friend evel been accused of a
crime?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 493: Wo.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much. TI'1l turn
the juror over to the State: of Nevada.

MS5. JOBE: Thank you, Your Hongr. Ms. Lehne; the

situation with your father, do you know what -- do you have
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any guestions or any concerns about the efforts the

detectives tdok to try-tdLsolve the case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: No.

MS. JOBE: And is that -- I believe, you said a
cousin who's als¢ a detective with Metro?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Yes.

MS. JOBE: Okay. But you weren't sure which
division; is that fdir?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Correct.

MS. JOBE: Se it sounds like you probably don't
talk about work with your cousin that much?

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 493: Correct.

MS. JOBE: Anything about your father's sitvation
or your cousin in Metro that would affect your ability to be
fair and impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: No.

M&. JOBE: Would you give any more or less weight
to ‘testimony of an offider or a detective Simply by the fast
that they are an officer or a detective with Metro?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WOQ. 493: Ho.

MS. JOBE: What about medical experts and other
experts, do you have any concerns listening to thelr
testimeny, weighing the reasonableness of it, and making a
decision as teo what to think about or how it fits into the

case if it does at ail?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: No.

MS. JOBE: What about deliberating with 11 other
individuals, Ma'am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4937 HNo problem.

MS. JOBE: Does your daughter -- she's a minor,
correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: Yes. Kindergarten.

Mg. JOBE: I think you've indicated she was little
-- I'm sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: She's in kindergarten.

MS. JOEE: All right. So anything about the fact

that you have to listen to a case involving a child that 4t

would affect your ability to be falr and impartial?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 483: No.

MS. JOBE: Anything I've covered with all the other
jurcors in this process that is seo foreign to everyone that
you thought, I need to respond to that or tell them that or
the Court should probably know some information?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 493: No.

MS. JOBE: Pass for cause. ©Ch, I can ask the ather

one’?

THE COURT: Uh-huh.
MS. JOBE: Okay. All right. Pass thé microphone
down to -— I left my cheat sheet at my desk. Ms., it's

Hightower, correct?
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PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Yes.
MS. JOBE: And what's your badge number, Ma'am?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: 484.

MS. JOBE: Thank you, Ma'am. All right. Tt sounds

like you have had an interesting experience with jury

service; is that fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Correct.

MS. JOBE: Okay. You -sald that when it came time

to deliberate in the case where you were selected: to be on

the jurer {sic) , one person spoke and a decision was made;

is that —- was that fair memory of'what you said fair?
PROSPECTIVE .JURCR NO. 484: That's what we did.
MS. JORE: QOkay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Was it fair? No.
MS. JOBE: Okay. Did you participate? 5o does
were you the person who spoke or =~

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NOQ. 484: No.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Was it kind of a goralong-to-get-

along thing just —-—

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Exactly.

M§. JOBE: Okay. And it sounds like youw wouldn't

do that again if you had to relive that situation; 1s that

fair?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Correct. Possible,

I'm not going to say.
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1 MS. JOBE: Okay.

Z THE COURT: WWell, you don't seem like a pushover.

3| You don't seem like someone that will just sit there and be

41 told what to do to me.

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Well, he didn't tell us
61 what to do. He wrote down whatever and we just went along

70 with it and left, '

8. MS. GOBE: Okay.

] PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: No, he didn't tell us
10! whdt to do. Like she said, a go alonyg, and that's what

11| happerned.

1.2 MS. JOBE: Okay.

13 THE- COURT: And when you-say "he", who are you

14| talking about?

15 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: One of the juror people

16 that was with us.

17 THE COURT: Like the forepersan?

18 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NWO. 484: H'm?

19 THE CQURT: The foreperson?

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: WNo. One of the jurors.

21| When we went in the room --

22 THE COURT: Right.
23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4B4: -- to deliberate, yeah.
Z24 THE COURT: Did you elect that person the

25 foreperson?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Oh, okay, yeah. Yes.
THE COURT: Okay. Could it have been the
foreperson was doing his Job?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR MO. 484: Could he have been

doing his joh?

THE COURT: Right, because the foreperson is
elected to kind of lead the discussion .and be your
spokesperson in court, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes, but no, that's not

how. it == like I told you, when we went in there, we just

whatever he did, that's what we went along with, and we left.

And I explained to you, that's not how it goes.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: S6 I told you, it was
done &ll wrong.

THE COURT: See, you don't have any problem felling
me. what's what, right?

FROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 484: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. 5So --

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484 Because I -- me -- you
-- what we talking about as far as this is somebody’s fate.

THE COURT: I agree.

PROSPEQTIVE JUROR NO. 484: The other -- like T
told you, this is sericus. That right theré was, we

decided -~
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THE COURT: Did -- did you think that because it
was a civil case and maybe what was at issue wasn't serious
so maybe the jurors didn’t take it as gserious as they should?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes, exactly. That's
why I sald, we just whatever he said, we went along with it.
We. —— we should have discussed, 1like you spupposed to -

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: -- you know.

THE COURT: Okay. But if you're selected to be on

this panel, we. don’'t have to worry ahout that happening,

Fight?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR. NO. 484: We got to discuss -+

.supposed to discuss things.

THE COURT: Right. You'll deliberate with your
fellow jurors?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 484: I'll just probably sit

there and listfen te them. I -— like I told you, it's hard

for me to try to have somebody's fate in my hand. I don't —=

THE COURT: Okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I don't like that.

THE CQURT: But you -- understanding the

significance, you. would deliberate with your fellow jurors,

cortect?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I would be in there

listening to what they say.
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THE COURT: Okay. And would they be listening to
what you have to say?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 484: I probably wouldn't say
anything.

THE COURT: Why is that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Because I'm -- I don't

kriow,; I just probably wouldn't.

THE COURT: Because 1f you were -- if you were on
this jury and you went back there to deliberate and you had
opirions and things you wanted made Known, how would you make
that known to your fellow Jurors?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: I -- I Just probably
wouldn't -- I'm not a talker or none of that. In school we
had to give reports, I -- I didn't do none of that.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I didr't like to be in
that, doing stuff like that.

THE. COURT: A1l right. Spo do WE“haveuto-WOrry that
you maybe won't deliberate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR MO. 484: That I won't say
anything?

THE COURT: Well, in order to deliberate, I think
delibe¥ation takes words,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 48%; ©h, okavy.

THE COURT: I mean, I don't know how you can
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deliberate without talking.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: ©h, okay.

THE COURT: Do you understand that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. A&nd if you are -- 1f you serve
on this jury, you'd beé required to deliberate, you know, talk
to your other jurors, reéad the instructions, go through the
evidénce. 1Is that something you can da?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: 1I'd try. I don't know,

THE COURT: Okay. I mean, if you're not
deliberating, what are yoi going to de?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Be listening to them

because T -- I can't -—

THE COURT: ©kay. I don't want to make you think
that -- deliberation most importantly requires listening.
Okay? Deliberation does require listening. So that's wvery
important. You would listen to your fellow jurors. However,
your_opinicg 15 just as important as any other juror,
correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Yes,

THE COURT: And you would make that opinion known?

PROSPRECTIVE JURQR NO. 484: I don't know. Like T

‘sdid, I -- I don't get into that. I just would listen to

what's —- what's golng on, because I can't put his fate in my

hand.
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THE COURT: Okay, listen, I mean, it deesh't gound
like you want to be here. Okay? So I don't know how else I
You
know —-—

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: You said --

THE COURT: -- what it's like to be a juror. You
have no problem_cOmmunicating'back and forth with me. I --
if you're selected to be on this jury panel, are you a -juroer
that would go back and deliberate with your fellow jurors?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. 484: I supposed to. Yes, I

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. JOBE: Yeu Said I will go¢ back, but will ypu
actually participate in the process?

PROSPECTIVE JUROCR NO. 484: And just what, people

asking questions and goihg over the same thing; is that what

‘M3, JORE: To reach a decision about whether
something happened -- the guilty or not guilty decisien?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO., 484: Okay, yeah, I can do
that.

MS. JOBE: Okay. And you said multiple times that
it scunds like you don't want to bé responsible for somepne’'s
fate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 484: Fate, right.
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MS. JORE: -Qkay. And why is that a concern to you?

PROSPECTIVE JURQOR MO. 484: Becausé I'm -- I'm --'1
don't believe in judging people either.

MS. JOBE: Why den't you believe in judging people?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Because I just don't.

MS. JOBE: Okay. -The American judicial system,
think about it whatever you iay, but this is the process that
was established by our four fathers and in every state --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 484: I understand that.

MS. JOBE: ~-- in the country; do you understand

that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: Um-h'm.

MS. JOBE: And so, obviously, there has to be some
mechanism of figuring out someene should be as guilty or not
guilty and then punishment is up te the Judge. Do you have
concerns with that?

PROSBECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: No.

M3. JOBE: ©Okay. Would you give the extra benefit
or extra anything to either the State or the defense when you
go back to deliberate because -of your; ydu'keep.saying you
don't want te have someone's fate in your hands?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: No, I would listen -- I
wouldn't do no extras. I'll.just_liSEEnﬁto:what we have
there, arnd think about 1t and decide my own ‘decision of what

I thirnk it should go.
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M§. JOBE: Okay. And 1f it isa't going the way you
think it should go, what would you do?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I would let them know I
don't thirnk that's right and that's it. I'm not going to
argue with nobody.

MS. JOBE: Would you go-along-to-get-along just to
be done?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: HNot in -- no, hot in
this case.

MS. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR. NO. 484: No.

MS. JOBE: As you sit here today, are both sides
equally situated as far as being fair and impartial to both
sides?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: T guess, yeah.

MS. JOBE: Well, would you —- you sald you thought
you got it wrong -in the civil case, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I said we didn't do it
right.

MS. JOBE: Okay, you didn't do 1t right. 1Would you
try to make up for that in the deliberations here?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: No. That's long gone.

M3. JOBE: ©Okay. And as far as being able to make
4 decisiocn, would you be able to make & decision if you only

hear evidence from the State and there's no defense put on?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I don't know,

MS. JOBE: Okay. Would youw need to hear from the
defénse in order teo make a decision?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Probably.

MS. JOBE: Why do you say that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: And a witness, tod. BSo

I can make my decision be more standable -- uttderstandable to

me, too.

MS. JOBE:r Okay. TWould you be able to draw
inferences from evidence, or would you be able to make a
decision only if there was an eyewitness?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 484: Eyewitness and
evidence.

MS. JOBE: Under: the Americam Constitution of the
United States of America the defense doesn't have to put on
any witnesses, doesn't have to say anything. TLike I said
earlier this afterncon, I mean, they can play -- I don't
think people are playing Pokemon Go anymere, but if they
wankted to, they could sit there and play Pokemorn or whatever
they wanted to on their phones and the State still has to
carry the burden with the evidence. Do you have any issues
with that?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: HNo.

MS. JOBE: OGkay. And now, as far as wanting to

hear from both sides, where do you stand on that?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: It would be nice to
hear from both sides,

MS. JOBE: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Two sides to a story.

MS. JOBE: Could you make a decision without
hearing from both sides?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: I could --

MS. JOBE: Let me ask the question --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 484: -- if I don’t have no
cholce, yeah.

MS. JOBE: Would you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG, 484: Yes. T don't have a
choice, if it's just one side.

MS. JOBE: Okay. And aftef:you‘ve heard-eve;ything

the Judge has said to you and all of my questions, would you

be able to go. back and deliberate and participate in that

process?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 484: Yes.

M3. JOBE: You kind of sbund a little -- you don't
sound happy about it.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NG. 484: T medn, I don't have no
choice}

MS. JOBE: OQkay. Court's indulgence. Pass for
cause.

THE COURT: Okay. At this time, we're going to
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conciude for the day. We're going to start tomorrow morning
at 10:30. Everybody that's here will be required to come
back tomorrow morning at 10:30. The people that are sitting
in the box, the 24, don't even bother asking 1f you have to
come back because you have to come back,

The 24 that are sitting in the box, if you'll
please remember where you’'re siltting because when yol come
in, I'm going to ask that you -

THE MARSHAL: ‘Don't shake your head no --

THE COURT: -- all sit in the same —-

THE MARSHAL: Or I'll give yon a free stay and
yOu‘ll be here tomorrow. If you're not here at 10:30, trust
me, I'11 come find you.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: Your Honor, may wé approach briefly
before yon excuse the jurdrs for the day?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: @Another day of no
money more my Son.

MS. HOLIDAY: Do you mind?

THE COURT: Sure.

{Banch cenférence begins)

‘THE COURT: Listen, I'm just trying to wind it down
because I was told somébddy'had to laave.

MS, JOBE: I agree. We appreciate that.

MS, HOLIDAY: Thank you,
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We appreciate that, thank you. 1 know that Your

Honor plans on hearing argument on the motion tomorrow. If
Your Honer decides to grant the. eviderntiary --

THE COURT: 1I'm bringing this jury back at 10130,
I mean, ydu're'delayinq —-— you think this needs to delay the
jury coming back tomorrow?

MS. HOLIDAY: I just wonder if we end up having an
evidentiary hearing, if the jury's going to have to sit out
in the hallway for a couple of hours or an hour or --—

THE COURT: They're golng to be selected anyways.
But T want to geéet this jury selected. I mean, the defense
hasn't even had a chance unless you're just going to pass —-

MS. JOBEr Would you like —-

THE COURT: -~ the panel for cause —-

MS. HOLIDAY: 1 agree.

THE COURT: -~ and we're going to do.

MS. HOLIDARY: No.

“PHE COURT: That's what I thought:

MS. HOLIDAY: No.

THE COURT: OCkay, thank you.

(Bench conference concluded)

THE COURT: Tomorrow when you ceme pack to the
courthouse, you come to the 14th flooxr. 1 ask that you do
not come it the colrtroom because we'll be in session. MWhen

it's time for you to come iny Officer Hawkes will come greet
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you. I just want to remind you that we can't start until
everybody 1s here.

puring this recess, you're admonished not to talk
or converse amongst yourselves or with anyone else on any
subject connected with this trial, or read, watch or listen
te any report of ever commeéntary on the trial or any person
connected with this trial-by_any.mediumfof.information,
including without limitation, newspapers, television, the
Intetfnet or radic. Or form or exXpress any Dpinion on any
subjéct connected with this trial until the case is finally
submitted to wou.

Thank you very much for your willinghess to be here
today, for ycur courtesy in answeéring my questions. AL this
time, you are excused untll toOmorrow morning. Thank;You;

THE MARSHAL: Thank you. All rise for thé dxiting
Jury panel.

THE ‘COURT: The attorneys are not permitted to have
any communication with the menmbers of the jury panel unless
we're in here and on the record.

{Outside the presence cf the prospective Jjurors)

MS. JORE: TIf I could just make a brief record,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sure. The record will reflect that the

hearing is taking place outside the presence of the jury

panel.
Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0850
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MS. JOBE: Just respect to the juror 19, he said
multiple times, «can I talk to her? Atl I said to him was
you're going to have to talk to ~- and then yopu interrupted
so I just wamted it to be clear I didn't —

THE COURT: Right.

MS. JOBE: -- say anything to him abolt whatever it
i5 he wants te talk to Your Honor about. I wasg just
directing him to the Marshal.

THE COURT: Sure. Apparently, he wanted to talk ~-

I thought he wanted to talk to you, that's why I interrupted

‘him.

M3, JOBE: I apprecilate that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything?

MS, KIERNY: I don't think there was any
misgonduct,

MS., HOLIDAY: I just -- no, I just wanted to ask
Your Honer if we should be prepared to go forward with the
hearing on the State's motion tomorrow morning at 10:30 with
our expert or if we're going to finish picking the jury --

THE CQURT: You shcould be ready to finish ~-

MS. HOLIDAY: -- first?

THE -COURT: -- picking a jury.

MS. JOBE:; Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: Finish picking the juvry first and

then we'll have the hearihg when we're done?

Verbatim Digltal Repotrting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0880
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THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MS. HOLIDAY: Okay. Thank you, Your Homor,

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. BURTON: Thank you, Your Henor.

{Court recessed at 4:54 p.M., until Tuesday,

January 10, 2017, at 11:02 A.M.)
* * * * *

ATTEST: I hereéby certify that I Have truly and correctly
transcribed the audic/visual proceedings in the above-

entitled case to the best of my ability.

dﬁhﬁ?ﬁm&l

JULIE LORD, INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890.

263

841



TRAN
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY; NEVADA
EONE T
THE STATE OF NEVADA, : CASE NO. C-16-313047-1

Plaintiff, : DEPT. NO. XTI

‘?5 .

‘DONOVINE MATHEWS,

Defendant.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MICHELLE LEAVITT, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

FOR THE DEFENDANT:

COURT RECORDER:

KRISTINE SANTI
District Court

Proceadings recorded by audioc-viswal recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.

Electronically Filed'
5/30/2017 2:59 PM
Steven D. Grierson

GLERK OF THE COURY,
~la 5t -

TRANSCRIPT OF
PROCEEDINGS

EVIDENTIARY HEARING
JURY TRIAL - DAY 2

TUESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2017
CHRISTOPHER F. BURTON, ESQ.
MICHELLE Y. JOBE, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorneys
KRISTY &. HOLIDAY, ESQ.

CARLT L. KIERNY, ESQ.
Deputy Public Defenders

TRANSCRIPTION BY:

VERBATIM DIGITAL REPORTING, LLC
Englewood, CO 80110

(303) 798-0890

Case Mumber: C-16-313047:1

B4




2
- INDEX
‘EVIDENTIARY HEARING
DEFENDANT'S WITNESSES:
DR. LINDSAY DUTCH JOHNSOM _
Direct examinatien by Ms. Holiday . T4*
*Testimony outside the presence of the jury.
* * * & *
JURY TRIAL:

STATE'S OPENING STATEMENT BY M§. JOBE 161
DEFENDANT'S OPENING STATEMENT BY KIERNY 171
WITNESSES

STATE'S WITNESSES:
OFFICER JOHN BETHARD | _
' Dirgct examination by Mr:! Burton 177
Cross-ekamination by Ms. Holiday 188
JASMIN CATHCART _
Direct examinztion by Mr. Burton 190
* * * * &
S EXHIBITS
DESCRIPTION ADMITTED
STATE'S EXHIBITS:
Exhibits 3 throuvgh 13 (by stipulation). 21.4
Exhibits 14 through 25. 222
Exhibits 33 and 34. 237
Exhibit 53. 235
Bxhibit 76. . . . . . o« . i ... 213

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4 303-798-0830

843



10

11

12

13

14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

24

25

geated.

presiding. Come fo order and be seated, please.

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2017, 11:02 A.M.

{Inside the presence of the prospective jurors)

THE MBRSHAL: Thank you. Everyone please be

All rise. Judicial District Court, Deépartment 12

is now in session. The Honorable Hichelle Leavitt,

THE COURT: Does the State stipulate to the
presence of the jury panel?

M3. JOBE: Yes, Your Honer.

THE COURT: The defense?

‘MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, Your Honor:

THE COURT: QOkay. The State having passed the
panel for cause, the:defense.——

MS. KIERNY: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: =-- may voir dire:

MS. KIERNY: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.
I'm Carli I'm Donovine's other attorney who hasn't spoken so
T'm going to speak now.

I'm going to start with the topic that Michelle
touched o, especially-with you Mr. Figuered, and kind Df ask
a couple of different questions about that. So can anyone
any of a situation where you had to go back in time and
figure out what happenad in an event where you have

conflicting information? For example, at my house, two kids,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢.303-768-0890
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they break things, you got to. figure out who broke It.

Anything have anything like that that they want to volunteer?

Otherwise, I can start calling. All right, Mr. Alvaroc, you-
laughed so can you think of a similar situation?

THE MARSHAL: Hang on.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373¢ Yes.

THE MARSHAL{ Name and badge number,-pieas@.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: Okay.

MS. KIERNY: Randy, keep after me on that. I'm
pretty bad at it.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: Alvaro Herrera, No.
373.

MS. KIERNY: All right:

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: With my daughtérs as
well, T have 14—year~oid:and a 7-year-old, and so there's --
there's always a lot of head butting going on --

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: -— where the little one

may do something and the other one -- the older one gets on
her case and so I got to determine, you. know, what --

MS. KIERNY: Who started it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: -~ what the déal is,
exactly.

MS. KIERNY: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: Yeah, yeah.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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M&. KIERNY: And what's like the first thing that
you look to?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 373¢ Just question both of
them, pretty much.

MS. KIERNY: So you need both --

PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO. 373: You know, what's the
deal, yeah.

MS. KIERNY: =- sides -- so —— both stories.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373: What's going on and --

MS. KIBERNY: 'Okay,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 373 -- yeah, exactly and --

MS. KIERNY: Anything else you look for?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 373: Just you know how they
react and stuff. You know, the way they say it or to
determine if they're lying ot —-

M5: KIERNY: OQOkavy.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR No. 373: -- if T could pick up
on that, T think.

MS. KIERNY: All right:

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ND. 373: Yeah.

MS. KIERNY: In that situation, would anyone 1look

for physical evidehce? Anyone? No hands. Thank you,

Mr, Herrera, Could.YOu;pass-the mic to Mr. Figuered? Do you

remember you were asked about this situation yesterday?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. :454: 454. Bryan Figuered.

Verbatin Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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MS. KIERNY: Oh, sorry. You're way better at this
than I am. A1l right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: Asked about what?

MS. KIERNY: About a situation involving ehildren
where yvou had to go back and figure out what happened and who
you would talk to?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NQ. 454: A situation?

MS. KIERNY: Um-h'm. Can you think-of a situation
where you had to go back in time and figure out what
happened, even though you might have had conflicting reports?
Maybe with kids ‘or at work managing people?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: Well, work is constant.
it's —— as I fix things at work, mazintenance, so it's a
constant everyday process of seeing, you know, what the
situatien is physically and then verbally with others.

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: Every day, day in and
day out.

‘M3, KIERNY: And hHow :did you start that process of
figuring out what's going on?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454+ Just observation.

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURQR.NO. 454: First of all.

MS. KIERNY: Observation. And then what?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: Listening to details.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890.
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MS. KIERNY: All right. After you listen to

details?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4547 Starbt ——

MS. KIFRNY: What else?

PROSPECTIVE. JURCR NO. #54: ~-- putting a picture
together.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. Now, what if you can't figure
out who did something wrong?

PROSPECTIVE  JURCOR NO. 454; Most of the times it
doesn't matter. When it invelves security or something like
that, then we have to be very detailed and figure out exactly

what happeneéed, and a lot of times people get charged money

and that sort of thing.

MS. KIERWY: Sure. So like let's say at home, if

between your kids, you can't figure out what happened, do. you

know which -- who do you {inaudible) on 1it?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: You don't always get a

" chance to figure out what happened exactly.

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: Most of the time you
can, but of course, you punish the ones that are guilty, you
know --

MS. KIERNY: But if you can't figure out?

PROSFECTIVE JURCOR NO. 454: -—- so they learn a

lesson., If you can't figure it out, then I talk to both of

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-708-0890
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them or all three, whoever's involved.

MS. KIERNY: Of course. 5o if you can't figure out
-- you don't know exactly what happened, do you punish anyone
or do you punish everyone? What's your go-to .om that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: There's going to be a
punishment.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. So everybody's getbing
punished?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 454: Yes.

MS. KIERNY: All right. T sgee. T heard some
laughs. Dbes anyone disagree with that? Does anyone think
noe one should be punished in that situation? No hands. All
right.

You'wve heard from the State that they're going to
be calling a lot of officers and they're going te be calling

4 lot of rnedit:a].p):.o'fess'io'nal-s_r doctors, okay? As we all

 know, police officers investigate crime for a living and

they've seen a lot of Situations, different situations
involving, you know, alleged crimes. Is anyone going to give

an officer's testimony more credit, you knew; if they walk in

here with their uriform on, they've got their badge; is
anyone goirng to. give them mere credit just because they're an

offiter? OQkay. Mr, Evans.

THE MARSHAL: Can we get the-microphone.over to

him, please.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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FROSPECTIVE JURCR NC. 363: Timothy Evans, 362, Inm
certain situatiens I would, especially when 1t comes to
investigation --

MS. KIERNY: Okay:

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363! -~ because like you
said, they're professionals. Like, as a lawyer, if you came
in and you were talking about something that was -~ you're a
professional on, I'm going to gilve yon more credibility
pecause you've goné to school, you've been taught that. Just
like me, I have a degree in real estate.

1f Someone asked me ~- and someone that was sitting
next to me didn't havé a degree in real astaté, they would
probably look at me T have more informatipn on that because
that's what I do, ot that's what I went te school for. Just
as, you kndw, some people on this panel are actual teachers
and I'm a sub. T would go to her for more. information about
subbing than I would from -- 1 mean, about. teaching than I
would —— oF I would refer sgomeone to that person more than
myself because they have more years of experience and. they
know what they're deing rather than me, that's someocne that's
getting their feet wet.

MS. KIERNY: ALl tight.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363¢ 8o I would give them
more credibility berause based on that.

MS. KIERNY: And that's a very thoughtful answer,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4 303:758-0890
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instruction that all witnesses who walk through this door

because that's -- my mentality 1s that as a —-- like, I grew

go sell & housé because they den't know anything about that,

10
and I really appreciate it. Thare's going to be kind of an
should start on egual focting with you. Are you == would you
be able to follow that instruction?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NC. 363: With that aspect, no,

up on that mentality. Like, I grew up in school =- I was
taught that mentality in sechool --

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: -- you know, if --

espéciaily in real estate where I can't ask an appraiser to

and I couldn't do that. So spbconsciously I'm going to do

it. TIt's not something that you practice or something like
that. 1It's just like you've: been taught to de that so much
that you subconsciously just do it.

MS. KIERNY: Sure. $So for someone that's, you
know, gualified as maybe a medical expert, if they give you
an opinion —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR N@. 363: Um-h'm.

MS. KIERNY: —-- and a different expert gives a
differing opinienm, how would you resolve that if they're both
supposedly experts in their field?

BROSPECTIVE JUROR MNO. 363: Depending on where

they're —- if they're both in the same field, then it's kind

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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1| of =~ vou kind of give them -~ you start them off on the same
2| ground, but say if one's a pediatrics and one's an OB/GYN,
3| well, a pediatric doctor's going to know a little bit more

4| about something with children than an OB/GYN would know about

5| that.

6 So in that aspect, it would be -- for me it would

71 be a subcenscious thing.

8 MS. KIBRNY: Okay. So for you it's all about the

9| titles?

10_ PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Yeah, it's about --
11 MS. KIERNY: What their title is?
12 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: =-- it's about —-

13| because I -- for me it's what did you -~ you‘rE'a

14| professioenal in that --

15 MS. KIERNY: o©Okay.

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 363: ~- so you need -- if
17| you're -- if that's what you do, thén I expect you to know
18] mere. That's just me -~ that's -- like I said, it's a

19| subconscious thing. It's not something I -- it's not

20| something that I --

21 MS. KIERNY: Sure.

22 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: -- want to do. It's
23| just something that happens.

24 | MS. KIERNY: Okay. And I appreciate you telling us

25| that. Does anyone agree with Mr. Evans? If someone comes in

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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Here that's an expert in a certain field, you're
. P :

automatically going to believe them moreé than snother

witness? All right. Could you pass the mic down to

Mr. Gaytan?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 467: Tom Gaytan, 467.
'MS.. KIERNY: Thank you. G0 ahead.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 467: I -— 1 agree with hinm

" qust from the standpolnt that they would know —- they're more

educated and would know more about what they're talking about
in that particulatr field --

M§. KTERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 467: =- than say, would I.
So anything both would be saying, I would take inte
consideration, but if they have the exact same titles and
they're totally disagreeing, then I'd look for a third
opinion at that peint.

M5. KIERNY: And if you donm't get that third
opinion, how do you make up your mind? What do you look for
in those two opinions you were given?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 467: It would have to be in
the details and the evidence.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. Therée are going to be doctors
called as well. Now, 1f a doector has .an opinion that you
think doesn't agree with, you know, your life experience,

common senge, do you feel comfortable disagreeing with that

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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doctor?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 467: Based on what evidence
he's saying that on, yeah.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. If you don't think that the
evidence fits what the doctor might be saying, would you be
-~ feel comfortdble not corcluding the same way as the doctor
hag?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 467: If that's the -= if
that's the cutcome, sure.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. I'm going to ask you to pass
the microphone to Ms. Rodriguez. I understand that you are a
-- you work in a Childrén's Heart Center and you help prep
patients, corréct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes.

MS. XIERNY: ALl right. And so hefore they can see
the dector, you have -~ you take -- do you take their vitals?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes.

M$. KITERNY: And what would that include?

PROUSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: We do EKGs, weigh them,
do blood pressures.

M§. KIERNY: All right. So you wart to get -- and
that's because you want to get as mach information --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: 2nd --

MS. KIERNY: -- for the doctor?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Yes, and medical

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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history information, yes.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. On that medical history
information, if someone -- if you had -- if the doctor has
information that's incorrect, what could happen?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 466: Well, we'd be
diagnosing the patient wrong or --

MS. KIERNY: Okay. So that would lead to wrongful
diagnosis. Can anyone else think how —-- think what could
lead to a doc¢tor wrongfully diagnosing a situation? Could
you pass that back to Ms. Ibay?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425 It —-

MS-. KIERNY: and I'm sorry, name and badge number?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425 Yeah.

MS, KIERNY: T remembered.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: (0425, Damaris Thay. It
really starts with the —— with the staff, like whether

they're medical assistants who are going to do the beginnings

of it, blood pressure, temperature, everything that needs to

get done has to get done before the doctor sees the patient.

If there's an error and it's the error of the MA's
or the NAls, then the doctor will have to diagnose whatever
information he has. But if it's wrong and they did a
mistake, then that’'s on them. That's not the doctor's fault.
That's the medical assistant or whatever --

MS. KIERNY: Sure.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0850
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR KO. 425: -- title they have.
MS. KIERNY: So a doctor's --—

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: S0 --

MS. KIERNY: -- diagnosi5; in your opiniocn =--

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: Yeah.

MS. KIERNY: -- 1s only as good as the information

they get?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 425! Yes.

MS. KIERNY: Would everyone agree with that
statement?

UNIDENTIFIED:PRQSPEGTIVE JURCR: Yeagh.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. And I'm going t¢ open this up
to the panel. Liké I said, there’s going to be some doctors
called. Is anybody automatically just goirng to listén teo
what a doctor says and not guestion what they say simply
because they're ‘a doctor and, you know, they got that white
coat?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: No; I'm --

MS. KIERNY: Any —— not for you? OQkay. And
Mf. Pypkowski's shaking his head, Does anyone disagree with
what I said? That you would -- you would not question a

doctor? Okay. ©Oh, besides Mr. Evans, who we'wve already

discussed and would you pass the mic back td Mr. Evans.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: I wouldn't say that 1

would just automatically Jjust disagree, but it's dlsc comes
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down to like theé evidencg sometimes. Like, I guess, 1 wounld
say I'm & -- like, I have a technical and bold type of
personality, se I'm not afraid to challenge stuff.

M§. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSERECTIVE -JUROR NO. 363: 8o it's like that
doesn't make sense to me. And I -- and sitting here we won't
be able to get —=- ask questions ot anything like that so my
whole time I get stuck on stuff. 5S¢ --

MS. KIERNY: Of course. (Inaudikle).

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: -- if I -- Something
like doesn't make sense to me, L1'm golng t£o git here and I
might blank out for a minute becduse I'm going to be like
that -- his last statement doesn't make sense. Like, that
doesh't make sense.

MS&. KIERNY: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 363: 8o I'm that type of --

THE COURT: Okay. 8ir, you understand as jurors,
jurers will be permitted to ask questions --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Oh, I didn't know that.

THE COURT: —- if they have questions of specific
witnesses. Does that help you?

MS. KIEENY: You can like write down a gquestion --

PHE COURT: I don't want you to blank out.

MS. KIERNY: -- and send it t6 the expert if you

have a question.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

857




10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18
1%
20
21
22
23
24

25

17

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: I mean, T might. It's
just like I said, it's just -- it's something that I'11
probably be the one that ask a lot of ‘did ~- because 1f I
den't understand something, I'm golng to &sk or I'm going to
be like no, that doesn't make sense. Like, so how dees that
-- how is this, that and -- you kmnow, how ig this playing up
-~ how does that line Uip or where did you come with that or
what does that make -- like, what are. you -~ like, I dén't --
I don't get. it.

So scmetimes it's like you kind of get stuck on ~—
like, for me, it's just I'm -- I'm a bold person or I'm very
technical.

MS. KIERNY: Um-h'm.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NOQ. 363: $Seo if I can't
understand it, itfs just kind oF like -- and then I'm also
the type that +f I still den't understand it, I;jusb-Was.like
ckay, well, forget it and just move on kecalse it's jJust
like, I don't get it. Like, what are you talking about? And
just because, you know, like I said, if the evidence doesn't
iire up, it's going to be something Iike for me at times.

3o like T said, there might he times wheére I wounld
be the type to be like, yeah, I don't believe that or just
because you szid that, yeah, you are a doctor, yeah, but
where does that come from, from that?

MS. KIERNY: Okay. So you won't —-- you will
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question what any witness says up there? You won't Jjust
blindly accept what they say; is that —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Yeah, I'm not —-

MS. KIERNY: -—= {inaudible}.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: -—-=- golng to just be oh,
okay, yeah, you sald that, iike, oh, the sky is red. Okay.
I'm not going teo be that type of person just to --

MS. KIERNY: Sure. Does everyone ~-- does anyoene
disagree with Mr. Evars? Of course not. Okay. Thank you,
Mr. Evans. That was very helpful. Hold on to the microphone
because I might have a follow-up question for you.

We've been dancing arvund this issue for pretty
much the entire voir dire, but at the end of the day, this is
a case that involves & three-year-old vietin, and he suffered
burns to his hands. Child abuse is not something that anyone
wants to see., No one in this room wants to see kids. irjured,
okay? It's a hard subject for everyone, us included.

poes anyorie think that they could not be falr to
Dohiovine because the allegations involve a young child?

Any ——

PROSBECTIVE JUROR NO. 3631 Yeah, it's --

MS. XIERNY: So Mr. Evans is holding on to the mic:
I understand that yoi had this -— your nephew,“your=young
nephew, you're very c¢lose to him. It would be very hard ——

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Right.
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1 MS. KIERNY: -~ to sgee, bubt you —--—

2 PROSPECTTVE JUROR NO. 363: I understand that
3| you're presumed innocent and all. I understand that. But
4| it's just to me, it’'s still 1ike I ~- like I said, I hdve a
5| younger nephew, and to me; T have like -- I've never been

6] dble -- I gouldn't accept the fact that that happened and

2| that there's no fault or nothing like, there's a -- there's a

2| child that was in a situation or in a place that they

‘9| shouldn't have been.

10 MS. KIERNY: Qkay.

11 PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 363: And there takes some,
12| 1ike, I guess, the best way to explaein it is when I think of
13| wyself, my -- you know, my nephew, 1 could never see him in a
14] —— I could never see myself having him either close to a

15| situatien that that would happen --

16 MS. KIERNY: All right.

17 PROSPECTIVE. JURCR NO. 363:; ~—— because of how I am
18| witH that. And not ‘even how I am, but how a lot of people I
‘19| ‘know or what I've been brought around or anything like that.
20| so it kxind of —- like I say, it's like that biased —- that
21| bias situation was like, so what did you do or what part did
22| you have in that?

23 MS. KIERNY: BSure.

24 PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: So that's where I --

‘25| that's where I kind of get —-
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: As a mother of four, a
grandmother of three, and a hard wotkiﬂgnmom,:grandma:and
wife, I can tell you with all honesty, you could try to train
your kids. Your kids are not trainable, first of all. Yon
have to be on top of your kids constantly.

and let me tell you, as much as I was always
constantly, I stayed home; I was mom and grandma, they always
get away with doing something. And that's not the parent!s
fault because wé only have two eyes, twe hands. And if you
have a lot of children, like I had, you have to have really
good techniques. Snatch them over here, you're .not looking
there, you got to snatch them over here, you know? Oh, don't
do this. Have you to grab it away. Bubt you have to teach
them in a nice way what"s right and what's wrong. That's not
yelling at them. That's rot punishing them. That's not
taking things from them?because-a'thréerYearﬂold-does not
understand.

‘And I'm sorry, I can't compare my kids and my
grandkids t¢ a dog. I have dogs that I love, and they obey
just the same you don't hit your dog, thHey do something
wrong, you —-- you get a tredt; you go to the spot, and you
teTl them no. Then you take them outside and you give them
the treat. That's how I trained my dogs. That's how I
trained my: kids and my grandkids.

T never hit them. I talked to them. If I need to
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take something away from the older ones; then yeah, that
would be my punishment. No cell phone, you're not watching
TV, and yes, usual not gOing”out'wiﬁh your friends this
weekend. But that's how I frained my kids. That's how I
trained my grandkids.

So I don't think a little three-year-old even
understands sometimes, especially if you're yelling at them,
they don't understand.

MS. KIERNY: GCkay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 425: They have no idea.

MS. KIERNY: And vou would agree that children have
accldents?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: ALl the time.

MS. KIERNY: And youw can't -- and it's not always a
-~ if a child gets hurt, it's not always a crime?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 425: It's not always a
crime, no.

MS. KIERNY: All right. Mr. Pypkdwﬁki is nodding
his head a lot. I think he has a lot to say. If you could
pass the mic to him.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Nbo, T had a situation
with my older daughter where she actually burned her hand.

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: I was in the kitchen

cooking. I had something in the oven, and I was prepping
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something elsge on the counter, and she had crawled in when T
didn't catch her and she stuck her kand between the oven dpor
and the broiler door to stand up and it burnt her fingers.
s6 T understand that, you know, stuff happens and you can't
always be a hundred percent on guard.

MS. KIERMY: Okay- ind when that happened; Wwas
that @ situation -- you ultimately -~ did you take her to the
hospital?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: No; it was —— it wasn't
that bad. I've suffered multiple buras in my life so {1
understood what the injuries were myself.

MS. KIERNY: Okay:

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: BAnd I knew it just
needed a few days to heal up and it wasn't serious.

MS. KIERNY: So when you first saw what happened,
what was your Iirst reaction?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: To pick her up and get
her away from it.

MS. KIERNY: Gkay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 473: And of course, she. was
screaming her head off.

MS. KIERNY: All right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: And then run her hand
under cold water.

MS. KIERNY: And then what did you do?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473! 1 wrapped it up and
dried it and made sure -~ took a look at it to maké sure it
wasn't seriocus and —-
MS. KIERNY: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR No. 473: And after about 195

minutes, she calmed down and, you know, she was tender for a

few days, bot it wasn't —- it wasn't like second degree. It
wasn't 1ife threatening or anything like that.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. Were there any décisions that
you made in the heat of the moment vhen she was kind of in
pain that maybe when you look back on you're 1liké maybe that
wasn't rational?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: WNo, I don’t think so.

M5. KIERNY: So you —

PROSPECTTIVE JUROR NO. 473: I mean, 1 should have
the baby gate up in the kitchen so she couldn't get in there,
put —-

MS. KIERNY: Right.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: -- for whatever reason,
it just didn’t happen.

MS. KIEBRNY: Okay. You could see how someone could
panic once their child's hurt. in that situatien?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Yeah.

MS. KIERNY: I stated —— I talked to Ms. Ibay about

this, &nd T've talked now to Mr. Pypkowski about this. Does
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Section called likeé kind of the rules of the law. And it

might be a little dry, but it's super important, so I

comments, I appreciate that.
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anyone disagree with the sfatement that children can have
accidénts and no one is necessarily criminally liable for

those accidents? Neting nd hands. I'm sorry, front row, red

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 436: Nathan Millerx.

MS. KIERNY: Nathan Miller. Tf you could hand the
mic back to (inaudible).

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 436 Nathan Miller, 436.

MS. KIERNY: <©Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Miller. You --
you agree with that statement?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 436: Yeah. That's all, I
just .agree. Accidents happen and --

MS. KIERNY: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 436: <- it's not -- often
it's not a criminal issue. ITt's just an accident.

MS. KIERNY: And do you think it’s possible to
protect a child from all possible injuries in the werld?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. 436: No.

M3. KIERNY: All right. I'm going te move on. to a

apologize. A lot of it's I'm going te be asking for, you

know, raised hands. So if you have any participation,

So in our system, the person who's doing the
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accusing has to de all the proving. Whoever's pointing the

finger, they are the ores that have to prove. If they're

Does anyorne

have —— how does everyone feel about that? You have the

_mi.crop_hon'e' 2/1]: - Miller 58 ——

THE COURT: And I'm not sure it's really relevant

‘how anyone. feels. I'm just --

MS. KIERNY: Okay.

THE COURT: I think it's relevant if amyone has a
problem with thdt's the way our system is.

MS. KIERNY: Sure. And I'11 --

THE COURT: State has the burden --

MS. KIERNY: -- clarify, does that seem --

THE COURT: State has the burden to prove each of

the elements as thEy'have.allegad_inﬁtheir charging document

by proof beyond a reasonable doubt. The defendant lias no

burden. The State of Nevada is the only party that has a

burden. And as I know you heard yesterday, the defenge can

sit there and say absolutely nhothing, if that's what they
choose Lo do, because that's the SYStem_that we have., 2and I
think the question's probably does anyone have any problem
with the fact that the State is required_to prove their case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: 1 would feel like it
would be hard.

THE COURT: Your name and badge number?
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MS. KIERNY: Can we pass the microphaone, please.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 363: Timothy Evans; 363,
would think it -- just me, I would think it would be hard
because it's like :a -- when you thifk about it a
investigation, there's always two sidés Lo a story. So if
someone —- if something happened and all they —- and this one
side_just has to prove everything, then you're kind of like
so —--

THE. COURT: Do you have any problem with -- I mean,

because that's the way our system runs. Every trial in

avery ——

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Yeah, I do.

THE. COURT: —- county in every state in the United

States of Amerieca, it's the same thing. You have a problem

with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Yeah, I would -- I

would have a wu’yeah, T would —-- I kind of feel 1like it's

unfair.
M5. KIERNY: Okay. So you couldn't follow that?
THE COURT: Unfair to who?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Unfair te the State

bedause, in my opinioen --

THE COURT: Okay.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: And T mean, that's just

my opinion, I mean, I'm entitled t¢ have an opimion.
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THE COURT: Of course, yov are.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: But I would feel it's
kind of unfair in certain -- especiﬁlly.ih certain cases
where the other -- like, you know, like you said, they can
sit there and stare off into space and just be like prove it.
And it's not —-

THE COURT: I'm not saying that's what they wili
do.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 363: I'm not saying that --
I'm not eithet.

THE COURT: I just try to make sure you urderstand
that really, the defense could sit there and say absolutely
nothing if that's what they chose because the State has the
burden on each of the elements as they've alleged in thelr
charging document. But you understand, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Yeah, that's why I just
-~ that's what I'm saying that they could sit there and not
do anything and --

THE CQURT: Suxe.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: -~ the State could do
—= like the State would have to preve everything.

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 363: So te me that is just
like in my opinion, that's kind of like you think of it as

like any problem that you have with -- well, when 1 worked
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with youth --

‘THE CQURT: ©Okay, well, let me stop a minute.
Those are the rules.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO, 363: Right.

THE COURT: Do you have any problem with the
fact --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Yes.

THE CQURT: -~ that those are the rules?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NOU. 363: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 363: I don't -- yes. I
don't have a problem, but it's just I feel like it's unfair.

THE COURT: A1l right. Well, is it -- do you have

~-— is your opinion such that it would impede your ability to

be a fair and impartial jurer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 363; I think so consciously,

yes. Like, I can't -- you know, and like you say, it's a

hypothetical. I can't sit there and say definitely, yes,

it's good. Definitely do it. I ecan't say that.

53¢ hypothetical -- or subconsciously -~ but I know

subconsciously I probably would think about it. I would sit

there and think about it and be like well --= well, you know,

why can®t they —- why do they have to do all this work?

Like, why -~ it's kind of --

THE COURT: And that type of thing should never
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even entar into your deliberation. It should never enter

your deliberation, you know, something you think the defense
should have or shouldn't have dane.
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: Right.

THE COURT: It's the State's responsibility to

prove their case.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 3637 And T understand that.

I'm just saying that subconscious L still would ~— I can't

stop myself from deing —- subconsciously, it's like ——

THE COURT: You can think it all day long that

PROSPECTIVE JUROR KO. 363: Right.

THE COURT: ~~ ynfair. Will you follow the rules;

that's all?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 363: And that's what I --- T
-- T can't honestly say yes or no because, like I said, my
subconscious can -- it can get the best of you at times.

THE COURT: OKay. Do yob believe your opinien will
interfere with your ability to follow the law in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. 363: I -- T think so. I am
truthfully --

THE COURT: AlY right. At this time, I'm going Lo
ask that vyou step dowrn out of the box, Mr. Evans.

(Court/Clerk ceonferring}

THE COURT: Okay. Helene Gottlieb.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes.
THE COURT: If you'll take seat number 1.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Do you want me to sit

falaitinlly

THE COURT: Sure, sure, and then I'1l turn the
panel back over to —= thank you, Ms. Gottlieb. And thank you
very much. I've noticed.yﬂu‘ve:clearly:been paying attention
and you've been engaged in the discussion for the last couple
of days, and I certainly appreciate that, especially your
willingneéss to be here and now respond to my gquestions,

How long have you'lived in Clark County?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: 76 years.

THE :COURT: Your educatien background?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: High school diploma.

THE COURT: &nd what do you do for a 1iving?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 504: I'm retired.

THE COURT: What did you do before you retired?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NQ. 506: T worked at Dillard's
Department Store in the c¢hildren's department.

THE COURT: How long did you do that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: 13 vears.

THE COURT: ©Oh, congratulatioms to you. And you
just retired, got tired of it or -=

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I would have stayed

forever, by the way, but my husband had retired so .—-
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32
THE COURT: Okay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: -— I wanted to be with

Him.
THE COURT: And =0 you‘re"married?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I am happily married.
THE COURT: Okay. &nd your husband, 1s he
enmployed?

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 506: I beg your pardon?

THE COURT: You just told me your hushand's
retired,; correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: My husband’s retired,
Cow.

THE GOURT: what. did he do before he retired?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: He worked for the Gold
Coast Casino. Hotel,

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have children?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I gave birth to two

THE COURT: ©Oh, I'm sorry,

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: -- to -- to diabetes.

THE COURT: I'm sorry. And so your second child,
is that one --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: My second child lives
out here, and he works for the new casino called the Golden

Dragon, I think that -- the new one that opened up.
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THE COURT: Okay. There's one that's called Golden
Dragen?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR N©. 506 Not the -- is it the -—-
the Golden Dragon.
THE COURT: Okay. Do you know of any reason why
you could not be a completely fair and impartial jevroxr if you

were selected to serve on this panel?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 506: T would be happy to
serve as --

THE: COURT: Thank vou.

PROSPECTIVE. :JURCR NO. 506: -- as impartial.

THE COURT: Have you ever served. as a juror before?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 506: Yes, in New York where
I'm from, and out heres twice.

THE ‘COURT: Okay. So in New York, was that -- that
was ane time?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Twice in New York.

THE COURT: Twice in New York? Was that civil or
criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: It was civil, beth --
both case the.

THE COURT!Y Both cases were civil? Were you
selected to be the foreperson in elther case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 306: T was -a floor woman

once.

Verbafim Digital Reporting, LLG 4 303-798-0890

874




3

ie
11

12

i3
14

15

16

17

18

20
21
22
23
24

25

THE COURT: OQkay. You were glected --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: And -- I beg your

pardon. And we were sequestered once.

THE COURT: Okay. S0 two times you setved in civil
actions, and once —-- one of those times your fellow jurors
selected you to be the foreperson?

FROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 5061 Once, right.

THE COURT: I'm just curicus, in & civil case, why
did you have to be sequestered?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: They secquestered us
because it was a big problem with one of the -- one of the
defendants. It was two defendants so they segquestered us.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm sure there were good reason.
Anything abovt those experiences that would affect your
ability to be fair and impartial Iin this case?

PROSPECTIVE JURDR. NO. 506: Not at all. No.

THE COURT: All right. And you also indicated that
vou had been called teo serve in this jurisdiction.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes.

THE COURT: How many times?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Just orfice.

THE COURT: And were you selected?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR ND. 506: I-beg yeur parden?

THE COURT: Were you selected to be on the panel?

PROSPECTIVE. JURCR NO. 50b: Yes, I was.
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PROSPECTIVE

THE CQURT:

was, ware you able to

PROSPECTIVE
verdict.

THE COURT:
reach a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

35
Are you selected to be the foreperson?

JUROR NO. 506t No, I wasn't.

Without telling me what your verdict

reach a verdict?

JUROR NO. 506i We weré able fo feach a

Okay. 1In all three cases, did you

JUROR NO. 506: Yes, we did.

Okay. Anythinq about those experiences

that wounld affect your ability to be a fair and impartial

jurer -+«
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
PROSPECTIVE
THE COURT:
you, such as-:a family
of a crime?
PROSPECTIVE

THE COURT:

JUROR NO. 506: Not at all.
—-— in this particular case?
JURCOR WO. 506: Not at all.
Thank you. Have you or anyone close to

member or friend, ever been the victim

JUROR NO. 506: Not at all.

Okay. Have you or anyone close to you,

guch as a family or friend, ewver been accused of a crime?

PROSPECTIVE

THE CQURT:

JUROR NO. 506: No.

Qkay. Do you know of any reascn Why

vou could not Be &8 completely fair and impartiai juror if we

select you to serve on this panel?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 508: It's always my helief,
if T may say it, that you're -~

THE COURT: Sure.

PROSPECTIVE JURGR NO. 506: -- innocent until
proven guilty in a court of law. |

THE COURT: Okay. SOgyou_understand the
presumption of innocence?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: ves, I do.

THE COURT: And do you havé any problem with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Not at- all.

THE COURT: Okay. At this time, I'll allow State
limited voir dire as to this particular juror.

MS. JOBE: Thank you, Your Horor. T apologize for
ignering all the rest of you, but is it Ms. Gottlieb?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 506: ‘Yeah.

MS. JOBE: Okay. I don't want to mispronounce.
that, T apologize:

PROSPECTIVE JURQR NO. 506: Yeah, you did it right

MS. JOBE: Fantastic. I didn't catch the Nevada
case that you sat on the jury for. Was that civil or
criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: It was civil.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Is this anymore exciting yet than

the civil cases?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I beg your pardon?
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MS. JOBE: TIs this anymore exciting than the civil
cases you've sat on?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 506: MNo; it would be the
gsame. I didn't hear -— no,

MS. JOBE: You'wve heard-v—-you-heard-all my
questions yesterday?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes, I did.

MS. JOBE: Any input? Any thoughts you wanted ‘to
add?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: WNo., I paid attention
to every word that you said and whatever the people~said,
too. It's all up here.

MS. JOBE: Okay. BAny thoughts on evaluating
madical or expert testimony if you're select to be --

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 506: I would have to hear it
to decide right or wrondg.

MS, JOBE: Okay: Are you going to take their word
for it just because they come in with degrees or experience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 506: WNot ~=- no.

MS. JOBE: Okay. Are you going to discount them
juSt'because they come in with degrees or éxperience?

PROSPECTIVE JUROCR NO. 506: No. I would ‘have to
hear both sides of the stoIy.

M3. JOBE: Okay. And as Ms. Kierny provided a

little more details, this case involves a child approximately
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three, with burns. Do you have any-issueS*sitting.there

‘hearing testimony --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG, 506; No, I would have to

hear the évidence on both sides.

MS. JOBE: Okay. .And weould you be comfortable 1f

- you had to piece together #11 the egvidence to reach a

degision?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes.

MS. JOBE: Any need for a specific eyewitness to
the account?

PROSPECTIVE. JUROR NO. 506: I would just nave Lo
hear —— again; to relterate, to listen %o everybody.

M5. JOBE: Pass for cause.

THE COURT: Thank you. The panel's back to the
defense.

M§. KIERNY: All tight. Thank you, Your: Homor.
Ms. Gottlieb, I'm just going to start with: you and ignore
everyone again.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506:; Hi.

MS. KIERNY: Ms. Gottlieb;, you heard that thére's

going td be some officers testifying in this matter. Do you

think that you'd give any moré weight to their testimony than
that of other witnesses?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: No.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. A&nd do you -- go ahead.
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I would have -- 1 would
have te hear both sides befogre I judge.

MS. KIERNY: So you wouldn't automatically believe
4 —-—

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: No.

MS. KIERNY: -- police offiger just because —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: It would have -- 1
would hear both sides and decide from there.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. What about doctors? Do you
think it's pessiblée for a doctor to get a diagndsis wrong?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: It has happened from
life stories of othHer people, yes. You know, nobody is
perfect in this world so it's my opinion and --

MS. KIERNY: So that's kind of why the phrase "get
a second opinion™ exists?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506 Exactly. Right, right.

M5, KIERNY: Okay. ©Now, if a doctor were to offer
his opinion as to something that happened, would you
automaticallv believe what that doctor said or would you, you
know, weigh it in the same way you would weigh another?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I would have to weigh
the facts.

MS. RIERNY: Okay. And obvicusly, there's going to
be, you know, testimony about a young child. Michelle

touched on that. You know, you're -- obvieusly, there's some

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4 303-798-0890

888




10

11

1z

13

14
15

16

17

18
19

20

21
22

24
25

e
sympathy toward a young child, you would agree with that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Correct.

MS. KIERNY: But you would still be able to be fair
to Doriovine?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. And would youw agree that some
children have accidents that aren’'t necessarily criminal?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes. My kids have
growing up, falling, or whatever.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. 1I'm going to get back to the --
what we were talking about earlier., Mr. Fvams stated that he
doesn't think it'$§ fair that the Staté has to do all the
proving. Does anyoné agree with that? Showing no hands.
Yes? We have Mr. -- I apologize —-

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Martin.

M$. KIERNY: =~- Mr. Martin.

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 455: 455,

MS. KIERNY: Would. you pass the microphone over to
him, please?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Martin, number 45b.

‘MS, KIERNY: Okay. B&and you think it's not fair
that the State has to do all ~-- ‘the State is making the
accusations and they have to do all the proving?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR WO. 455: Never mind. Yes, they

do. They have to prove whether he's fault -- at. fault for
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MS. KIERNY: Do you think it's fair that State has
to do all the proving?
PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 455: Yes, if theré's no

witnesses. I mean, if it's based only on physical evidence,

THE COURT: Well, again, I just want to reiterate
that the State is the only party that has a burden in a
criminal case.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455+ Right, I —-

THE COURT: That they're regquired to prove
everythihng they've alleged in their charging document by
proof beyond a reasconable doubt. And you understand that
those are the rules that will be given to you when youusit as
a jurer in reaching your determination; do you understand
that?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yes.

THE COURT: Will you follow the instructionsg on the
law as given to you by the Court?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yes.

THE CCOURT: Bnd onme of these instructicns will be

understand that?
PROSPFCTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yeas.

THE COURT: Anvthing about your belief that would
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interfere with your ability to be a fair and impartial Jjuror

in this case?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Accldents happen with

children, but as —-- we don't train them, we teach them and —--—

PHE COURT: I think we're talking about the burden
of proof. Is there anything about your opinion regarding the
burden of proof that woéuld interfere with your ability'to-be
fair and impartial if we select you?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: No.

THE COURT: I'm Sorry?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: HNe.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Martin.

MS. KIERNY: I'm just worried that in this trial
you're going to expect that thé defense has to prove
something. Do you believe --

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 453 The defense has to

prove his lnnocence.

MS. KIERNY: You believe we have to prove his
innocerce?

THE COURT: Okay. Here -- you remember what we
just talked about? The defendant does not have to prove
anything.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455:¢ Oh.

THE COURT: And, you know, I just want to remind

--you-becaUseihﬁt~everybody's-used to these rules. I mean,
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these are the rules that we comply with every day. We're

But the defendant can sit here and do absolutely
riothing. Do you understand. that? &nd one of the
instructions I'1ll give you is, you know, you —- the defendant
doesn't have to do anything, they have no burden, they have
no burden of proof, they‘re not reguired to prove anything.
The State of Nevada has brought these allegations, and

they're reguired by law Lo praove these allegations by proof

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yes.

THE COURT: 'Okay. ‘And you'll.fqilqw the law?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

MS.. KIERNY: Yot seem a little bit confused by some

of the questions. Did you have a -- did you work late or you

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: A little hit of
everything, vyeah. Like what?

MS. KIERNY: You just -- you're understanding

asking?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 455: Right.
M5. KIERNY: Okay. I'm going to ask you to rass

the microphone back to Ms. Gonzalez-Garaia, who's right
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behind you. Thank you., Ms. GQngalez—Garcia, yesterday vou

stated that you wonld be open minded, which is great. And

you said you weuld listen to both sides. Now, what if we
don't present any evidence, there 1s ne side? Would you
still be .able to find Donovine not guilty even 1if we didn't
present ahy evidence?

FPROSPECTIVE JUROR NO, 417: Okay. I'm Ericka
Gonzalez-Garcia, Badge No. 417. Yes, because Just like the
Judge stated, the defendant doesn't have to show any evidence
if they don't want to.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. B&nd if we presented no

evidence, yet, you still thought theé State had not proved

their case, you would bé able to find mot guilty -- Donoviné
not quilty?
PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 417: Correckt.

MS. KRIERNY: All right. Z&nd so, ultimately, at: the

end of the day the defense does not have to prove anything.

We don't have to present any evidence. Does anyone have a

problem with that in the box? Okay.

Okay. How many of you are awatre of the
constitutional principle that says a defendant does not have
to testify in his own trial and cannot be forced to trial?
Is everyone aware of that? Okay. let's see here,
(inaudible). Mr. Terry. Could you pass the microphone to

Mr. Terry? Yoéu were nodding.
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PROSDECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: Kevin Terry, 401.

MS. KIERNY: OCkay.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402¢ Or 402, excuse me.

MS. KIERNY: And so you're aware that the defendant
doesn't have to testify?

PROSPECTIVE JURCOR NO. 402: That is correct, yes.

M5. KIERNY: Ckay. And you wouldn't hold it
against him if heé didn't testify?

PROSPECTIVE JURCR NO. 402: HNo, no.

MS. KIERNY: And can you think of_:éaspns why =
person who is accused of a crime might not testify?

THE COURT: Okay. I'm not -- I'm not sure that -—-
I'm not sure that's appropriaté to go into that so I'm not
going to allow that guestion.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. Let me ask you this. If you --
let's see. So your nephew was involved in the criminal
'justice_system,.cgrrect?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: Yes.

MS. KIERNY: And if he -— and he had a lawysr in
that case, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG. 402: Yes.

MS. KIERNY:  And he consulted with that lawyer?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 402: Yes.

MS. KIERNY: And he would listen to what ‘that

lawyer said?
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PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 4072: 7Yes.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. And if the lawyer gave him
advice such as not to testify, he would have listened to that
lawyer?

MS. JOBE: Your Honor.

THE COURT: The objection's sustained,

MS. KIERNY: Okay. Donovine has said loud and
clear to this crime that he's not guilty. He's pled that in
court. What 1f there's -- if there’s nothing else€ to say,
you would understand if he doesn't testify?

MS. JOBE: Objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MS. KIERNY: Okay. The law says that we are not --
that when you go back to the jUry'foomJ you .are not supposed
to speculate why Denovine himself would not testify. Does

anyone have a problem not spéculating if yvou were chosen to

be on ‘the jury? Would that enter into your deliberations in

any way? Seeilng o hands.

If you could pass the microphone to Mr. Bouch --—
Boucher, .Bouch, sorry. B8aid it two ways and got it wrong
both ways.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448% Raron Bouch, 448.

MS. KIERNY: (Inaudible). Now, you indicated
earlietr that you WOUid need all the evidence to decide.

Wonld vou be okay deciding if a —— if you didn't hear from
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Dondwina?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 448: Yeah; that would —-— as

long as I had the evidence that's being shewn to the Court

that's what my

decision would be based off cf. Not what isn't_presented.

MS. KIERNY: Sure. Does anyone think there's no

way I ecould find someone not guilty if they didn't testify?
Seeing no hands.

ALl right. And so not only does the accuser have

to do all the proving, put in a criminal case that has tg be

prove beyond & reasonable doubt, and that's going to be
defined for you at the end of the case, but it is thé highest
burden there is.

Coﬁld’you pass the microphone to Ms. Gottlieb, at

the beginning. Hi.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Hi.

MS. KIBRNY: You were a civil juror, correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506; Yes.

MS. KIERNY: Oh, I'm soxrry, name and badge.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: I beg your pardon?

MS. KIERNY: I'm sorry,. your name and badge numbexr?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: ©h, I'm sorry, Helene

Gattlieb --
MS. RIERNY: (Inaudible}.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: -— and it's 506.
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trial, right?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: Yes.

MS. KIERNY: And the burden of proof they
to you is just a preponderance of the evidence. So
the scales of justice tipped one way slightly, then
enough;; that's correct?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 506: <Correct:

M3, KIERNY: 2and you undetstand in a criminal case,

it's a much higher burden?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NG, 506: Yes.

a civil

describead

o 1f one --

that is

M5, KIERNY: Okay. Does anyone know why 1t's a

higher burden? No hands. Fass the micreophdne to

Mr. Pypkowski.

THE COURT: I'm not really sure that that’

S

appropriate. You can ask if anyone has a problem applying

the burden of proof>

MS. KIERNY: You don't know -- can he answer the

question, or no?

THE COURT: The question's not pending anymere:

MS. KIFRNY: All right. Does anyene have a problem

with the burden in a criminal case being higher when it's

dealing with somecne’s freedom as opposed to -any civil case

when it's dealing with money? I'm seeing no hands.

it

doesn't appear anyone has a problem with that. Okay.
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Finally, because the accuser has to deo all the
proving and the standard in a criminal. case is the highest
standard there ig, everyone of us enjoys'what“s called the
presumptian'of innocence. And as Denovine sits there, he. is
presumed innocent. He is not guilty. And if the State
doesn't prove him —= provide proof3beYondra-feQSOnable.doubt,
he's still nmot guilty at the end of the trial.

So knowing all of that, that the presumption of
innocence exigts —-- who has my microphone? Mr. Pypkowski, 1if
you went back to the jury rgom right now with no evidence
having been heard, ‘how would you find Donovine?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Not guilty.

M5, KIERNY: Because of?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 473: Because I don't have
any evidence suppérting his guilt.

MS. KIERNY: Right. 8¢ as Donovine sits there, he
is not guilty in the eyes of this jeury. And anyone have a
problem with that? Seelng no hands. Court's brief
indulgencel We're going to pass for cause. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. The defense and State having
passed the panel for cause, the Clerk has_prepaxed what will
be-marked as Court's Exhibit No. 1. The State and defense
may exercise thelr first peremptory challenge.

{Pause in the proceedings)

THE CQURT: Defense can exercise their first.
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(Pause in the proceedings)
THE COURT: Thank you. The State and the defense
may exercise their second peremptory challenge.
MS. JOBE: Your Honox, I apologize. Can we
approach? I have a guestion.
THE COURT: OFf course, no problem,
(Bench conference begins)
MS. JOBE: I apologize, Your Honor, it's beem a —-
THE COURT: That's okay.
MS. JOBE: -- minute since I've been in here.. Is
it four and then one {inaudible) alternate?
THE COURT: Uh-huh. ‘Each side gets four then I
live the 12, and there should be three left --
MS. JOBE: Okay.
THE COURT: ~-- and each side will havé one
peremptory challénge.
MS$. JOBE: Thank you.
{(Bench conference concluded).
(Pause in the proceedings)
TUE COURT: Defense may exercise their second.
(Pause in the proceedings}
THE COURT: The State and defense may eéxercige
their third peremptory challenge.
(Pause in the proceedings)

THE COURT: Defenseé my exercise theéir third.
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1 (Pause in the proceedings)

2 THE, COURT: The State and defense may exercise

3| their fourth peremptory challenge.

4 MS. JOBE: May we approach?

5 THE COURT: Of course.

8 (Bench conference begins)

7 THE COURT: You asked to approach, right?

8 MS. JOBE: I did, Your Honor.

] PHE COURT: ©Oh, okay.
10 MS. JOBE: T didn't know what to do with the sheet.

11| The S$tate has concerns and wants to raise a challenge because
12| the three preempts they've exercised so far have all been

13| Hispanic Jurors.

14 THE COURT: Okay. Do you want to do it right here
15| at the bench?

16 MS. JOBE: I didn't know how Your Honox wanted to
17| proceed, but =-

18 THE COURT: You're going to make a Batson

19| challenge?

20 Ms. JOBE: I am making a Batson challenge.
21 THE COURT: Okay.
22 MS. JOBE: The first three of the fouf preempts

23| that they have are Hispanic Jjurors. They've all been
24 | identified on the jury sheets as such and go —-

2.5 THE €OURT: And you checked that before you —-
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57
MS. JOBE: I did, Yeour Honor.
THE COURT: -- came up here? Okay.
MS. JOBE: And so the State has concerns that
they're picking for (inaudible) race neutral reasons.

MS. HOLIDAY: I don't eves remember. I don't g-

MS. KIERNY: ©Okay, go back and leok at it,
MS. JOBE: Ms. Lozano, Todd and Rodriguez.

THE CCOURT: Right. I'm léoking at them.

MS. HOLIDAY: Do you want to -~

THE COURT: I'm just -- I'm just -- I don't like to

identify people by their race so that‘s:why-I_askedﬁ Youlve

MS. JOBE: I did, Your Honor,

THE COURT: -- looked and they self-identified as
being Hispanic?

MS. JOBE: They did.

MS. HOLIDAY: Ts Mr. Lozang Hispanig?

MS. JOBE: They all identified on their sheet.

THE COURT: That's at least a Hispani¢ name.

MS. HOLIDAY: Okay:

‘PHE COQURT: Mr. Lozano.

MS. KIERNY: Would you like us to make our argument
now or --—

THE COURT: Go ahead.
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{inaudible) .
THE
M3,
THE
that the first

MS.

THE ‘COURT: Okay. AIl right. (Inaudible).

MS. KIERNY: Mr. Lozane was our first challenge.

THE

M5
seenad -~ seem
enforcement.

séemed to iden

law enforcement.

THE
would be that

M3, KIERNY: Yes.
THE.
MS.
MS.
Mg,

MS.

COURT: Okay. So your race neutral reason

KIERNY: -- in the back?
COURT: Right now.

KIERNY: Let me grab my sheet, if that's

COURT: Okay.

KIERNY: 'So we don't think many --

COURT: I just want te see where 12 ig. Is
person and the second --

JOBE: Um=h'm.

CQURT: Gkay.

KTERNY; Hé's a security officer, and generally
ed to have some, you know, identifying with law
That was my main cdoncern with him. That he

tify as law enforcement and consider himself

he identifies with law enforcement?

COURT: Okay.
KEIERNY: Okay. Whoﬂé-number 27
JOBE: Rodriguez is number 2.
KIERNY: Which one?

JOBE: TRodriguez,
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THE GOURT: Ericka Rodriguez.
MS. KIERNY: Oh, (inaudible} --
THE COURT: {(Inaudible).

MS. KIERNY: -- has a medical background and we

were concerned that she would -- works for doctors, works

with children. We would be concerned that she would

basiecdlly just agree with what the decters said when we

wholeheartedly disagrae'with-the-doctors in tihis case.

THE COURT: Okay. So your concern was she works

for a doctor and she might accept -—

MS. KIERNY: And that she has a médical'background

in -- with a —-- in -— with a similar -- the age range.

THE COURT: What's, her medical background?

MS. KIERNY: She's -a nurse in like a child's heart

center and she preps them up for the doctors.

THE COURT: And you're worried that because she

works with children? Ckay.

a CNA.

correckt?

MS. KIERNY: And —-—

M$. JOBE: For the recoxd, I believe she salid she’

She's hot actually a RN.

MS. HOLIDAY: But she does have contact with --

THE COURT: She's the one that said she had a CNA,

MS. JOBE: Correct, Yolr Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.
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; : 1 MS. HOLIDAY: Yeah. And it's not just that she
2| works with children, but she works with doctors, she respects

3 _déctors, doctors are her boss, you know, doctors know a4 lot.

4| Seo that's our reason.

5 MR. BURTON: ({Inaudible).

5] THE COURT: Qkay.

7 MS. KIERNY: And our third one was =~

8 THE COURT: Alexandria Todd.

9 MS. KIERNY: Oh, yes, Ms. Todd.
10 MS. HOLIDAY: Is she Hispanic?

11 ‘MS. JOBE: She identifies as Hispanic.
12 MS,'KIERNY? Okay. Ms. Todd doesn't have children,

13} for cne. We didn't know a lot of information about her. We
141 don't have a lot of notes on her. We -- it locks like she

15| also has some medical. It looks like she was @ CWNA, So that
16| was our only concern, but, you know, we just really didn't

17{ know that much about her.

18 THE COURT: That's your .race neutral reason, you

19| didn't much about her?

20 MS. KIERNY: We don't know much about her. She

21| deoesn't have kids. We would like jurors who have kids. And
22| she —-

23 THE COURT: You want jurers tc have kids; 1s that
24| what you sald?

25 MS. KIERNY: Yes. She identified ——
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THE COURT: Just not work with kids?
MS. KIERNY: Right.
THE COURT: (kay-

MS. KIERNY: Well, just not work with kids at a

children's heart hospitdl.

THE COURT: Okay.
MS. KIERNY: And she also identified as being a

CNA, so she has some medical background. Same thing as the

other one, I1f she works with_doctors'all.the.time, theyfre
her boss, they know a lof, they're always the one making the

calls, making the decislons, T1'm sure she respects them.

THE COURT: Okay. And you're worried because of
the medical testimony that was coming in from the State?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes.

MS. KIERNY: Particularly, the State will have
medical doctors testifying.

‘THE COURT: Okay. That this was non-accidental?

MS. JOBE: And Your Honor, the State's ‘coricern is
ds of Mr, Lozang, the State's understanding is there's more
than one security person there. He did state during
questioning without wavering that he could be fair and
impartial, That that wouldn't come into play. He did
discuss how as a security officer he still now defers to
people with meore experience in dealing (inaudible) causation.

{fnaudible), but that he would be able to consider the
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evidence, weigh the evidence, and be fair and impartial te
both sides.

Az to Ms., Rodrigquez, there's -- there's another
medical person who's also here, Ms. Ibay, who iz similarly
situated. In fact, she's in the medical office of her
husband and works for him, So same -~ she was CNA because
she works with children. The State's position is that's not
a race neutral reason.

s far as Ms. Todd is concerned, it simply sounds
1iké they don't have enough information, they just have a
feeling, and they don't have enough information (inaudible)
but they don't want her there because. she deoesn't have kids
and that's also not a rage neutral reason.

THE COURT: oﬁkay. Does defernse want to add
anything?

MS. KIERNY: When I mentioned that we den't know &
1ot about her, it doesn't mean that we're ‘then goiﬁgwoff.ofaa
feeling. It means that there are otlier jurors on the panel
that we Ffeel like we have a lot more information about.
They've. spoké more. They've offered more personal
information about their professions or their families. -And
so it wasn't that we just have a feeling. We have other
iurors.that-we know more information about so we fesl like,
you know, we have more reasons to keep them.

THE COURT: Okay. Is either -- are is both sides
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: 58
. 1| done?
2 M%, JOBE: Yes, Youx Honor.
3 THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to overrule the
5| cbjection. You may exercise your -- whe has it?
5 MR. BURTON:; We do:
6 MS. JOBE: TIt's ours, Your Honor, for the fourth.
7 THE COURT: Did you alkready exercise it?
8 MS. JOBE; We did not, Your Honor.
g PHE COURT: Okay. And the defense may exercise
101 their fourth.
11 MS. KIERNY: While we're up here, I don't Know what

12| their last challenge is going to be, but the State has

131 (inaudible) exercised —- raised a Batson challende as wellf
141 the State has excused two of their -- tused two of their

15| preempts on African-Amerlcan Jurors. Our client, as you seeg,
16| is African-American, and we believe that this is an attempt

17| to ot have —

18 THE COURT: OKay.
19 MS. KIERNY: -—= jury --
20 MS. JOBE: 1I'll go get my paper to make sure I make

21| a thorough record,

22 THE COURT: Okay.

23 M5. HOLIPAY: Your Hono¥, I'm going to need &
24 ,bathroom-break sSoon.

25 MS. JOBE: Your Honor, our. first kick was
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but that he had negative ones, He didn't know if he could be

‘happened at trial, how he would feel. He couldrn't give &an

business starting Wednesday, when his -- T think it was

59

Mr. lLewis, As to him, the information provided during voir
dire is that he believes the judici&l system is corrupt when
he was talking @dbout his conversations with his aunt.

THE COURT: Okay, just a minute. Ladies and
gentlemen, I just want to remind you that we're still on the
record and we'ré still conducting court up here, so if .you
could just keep it down. ‘Thank you.

MS. JOBE: He said the system was corrupt. That
the system puts people in cages. I asked him if that was
just immigration system but the criminal system in whole? He
said the criminal system in whole.

I asked him his -~ to get details on his what he
said were negative experiences, and rnegative contacts with

law enforcement., He sald he didn't want to talk about them,
fair and impartial. He said he'd have to walt and see what

unequivocal answer that he can leave his feelings set aside.
when deliberating.

He also wodld not -— he talked about how his work
-— he was focused on his work and issues with money, that if

he had to be:chosen,ﬁhe'd,be;forced to close down his

brother would be gone and his businéss parther wouldn't be

back.
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He alsa -- we also observed body language when we
started challenging to get mere inférmation about his
disagreéments with his aunt and his opinions about law
enforcement. His response to me was; I see where you're
going and what you're trying to do, and that's when he qult
answering the duestions about his details with his negative
contact with law enforcement.

T also asked him what he agreed on with his aunt 1
law enforcement, and he was not responsive to that. When
YOur_Honor.Was.questidning-himf you also asked him some
questions about how experienceés, and his backgreund that he
didn't give detail or specific answers to. He jJust dodged
the question and kept going.

He also spoke with all of us at the bench, and my
concern is that was abused as a ghild. I appreciate.it-was
sexual abuse and this is physical abuse --—

THE COURT: Um-h'm:

MS. JOBE: ~-- but he really said he wasn't sure
what his féelings were going to be until he heard the
evidence, and'herwould do his best. He wasn't sure if he
could set agside his feelings when deliberating.

50 @s te Ms. Higlitower, yesterday she said she
deoesn't like jury service, doesn't want to do it. She
repeatedly sald that she was very concerned about having the

defendant's fate in her hands. She was equivocal about
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whether she'll participate in deliberations.

She shrugs her shoulders when I —— she -- we kept pushing her

3if you could deliberate if you have té. She said if I have

able to6 perform her duties.

61
after much push

and much pleading, she éventually said she would see and she

She had -- her body langudge, she would Iean back.

to, I'1l do it, and she shrugged her shoulders. She&'s kind
of like {indicating). It wasn't convincing to the State that
she would actually participate in. deliberation.

She also said she herself-has been abused as a
child. ‘That she's seen child abuse, and she didn't know how
she would respond. And she also talked about being upset
about how a murder case of a family member was handled and
that it was crazy and how they weren't contacted. So the
totality of all of her statements, Your Honor, the State has
coficérns that she would not be fair and impartial and that --
when she was deliberating.

The State has concerns about hetr being so concerned

about the defendant's fate in her bands that she would not be

THE COURT: Thank_you.

MS. KIERNY: Regarding Mr. Lewis, he did indicate
he could be fair to both sides even though he had this --
this concern about law enforcement. Unfortunately, he's

bringing his 1ifé experiences to it and those life
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experiences included some situations that we

6
re not so
favorable to him. But I -- he did tell (inaudible) he could
be -- he did believe he could be fair to both sides.

THE. COURT: Everybody in the box has said that at
this polnt.

MS. KIERNY: Right. Right. 56 I don't -- and also
regarding Ms. Hightower, she indicated that she difn't want
to be here. Well, s8¢ -- no one does, She -- well, we warnt
to be here, but —-

THE COURT: Yeah.

MS. KIERNY: -~ you know, none of the jurors really

want to be here. So I don't know if that's a valid reason.

Additionally, you knew, 3he did have comcerns about having
someone's. life in her hand, but that's, you know; an
admirable trait and other peéople have mentiened having that
corcern as well.,

T think, you know, when.she was asked about her
life experiences, she was honest and open, and regarding the
mirder investigation so I -- T would submit on that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. JOBE: T just —- can I point out two things?
Oneg -

THE CEURT: Sure.

M$. JOBE: -— M. Lewls identifies as other as far

as racial profiles go on his sheet.,
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63
: 1 THE COURT: Mr. Lewis —-
2 M5, JOBE: He does.
3 THE COURT: -- identifie&s as other?
4 MS. JOBE: Yes.
5. THE COURT: Okay.
3 MS. JOBE: Additionally, we haven't stricken all of

7| the African-American jurors. There's still Mr. Rashaad

81 Evans, wha is on panel -- who is an African-American. I'd

9| turn around and see if there are others;, but I don’t -- can't
10 specifically regall off the top of my head.

11 And ‘though Mr. -- there have been a number of

12 people who had some negative contacts with law enforcement,
13| Mr. Lewis's demeanor and his refusal to answer detailed

14 | questions about it is the State'’s concerns.

15 THE CQURT: Okay. At this time, I make & ruling

16| that State has provided race neutral reasons and the

17| challenge is overruled. Are you going to -- do you have the

18| sheet?

19 | MR. BURTON: Yes.

20 MS. JOBE: I have the sheet for four.

21 THE ‘COURT: Have you done it yet?

22 MS. JOBE: We have not, Your Honor.

23 THE COURT: Okay. All right.

24 MS, JOBE: Thank you.

75 THE COURT: You may exercise your fourth.
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(Bench conference concluded)
(Patise in the proceedings)
THE COURT: Deéfense may eXercise their fourth.
(Pause in th8'prﬂceeding$)

THE COURT: Okay, at this time, the State and
defense may exercise their fifth and final peremptory
challenges to 19 through 24, with the exception of those that
have been alregady exercised.

{Pause 1in the proceedings)

THE COURT: All right. At this time, ladies and
gentlemen, we're going to take a very short recess. I'm just
going to ask that you stay close by. When you come back in,
if everyonegwill sit in the gallery. And as you come back
in, the Clerk will call our panel of prospectivée jurors. If
your name is called, you'll be empaneled and we'll proceed.
If not, you'll be excused to go.

During this recess, you'ré admonished net to talk
or converse amongst yourselves -or with anyone elsé on any
subject connected with this trial or read, watgh or listen to
any report of or commentary on the trial or any person
connected with this trial by any medium of information,
including without limitation, newspapers, television, the
Internet or radie, or form or express any opinion on any
subject connected with this trial until the case is finally

supmitted to you. Thank you very mudh, and we're in recess.
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this hearing is taking place outside the presence of the jury

everything they wanted toc say.

65
THE MARSHAL: All rise for the exiting jury panel,
please.
(Qutside the presence of the prospective jurors)
THE MARSHAL: Thank you. Please be seated.

THE COURT: Okay. The record will reflect that

panel. Before T do announce who our jury panel is, I just

want to make sure both sides had an oppertunity to say

T did checky Mrp. Lewis did identify as “"other".
Based on —-- it's self-identifying, so I don't know 1f you
want to add anything to that based om your perceptieons or if
the deferise does. I mean, I'm assuminglthe defense is
eontending he's African-American.

MS. JOBE: I'm sure they are, Your Honor. He does
appear to be ~- he is a light skinned individual. He did
have dreadlorks. He —-- based on those, Your Honor, one could
assume that he is African-American, but he did self-identify
on the jury questionnaire as "other". Even so, Your Honor,
the State's race neutral reasons, whether he's other, or
African-American, I believe were captured --

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. JOBE: ~—- at ‘the bench coenference, and so the
State will let. the record stand at that.

THE ‘COURT: Right. And my concern is, is that we
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66

were going off of & jury group data form, and so I'm going to

make that part of the record. So, because 1 guess if there
Wwds ever an lssue on appeal, and that was reviewed, so that
data form will be made part of the record. Does the defense
want to add anything to that?

MS. HOLIDAY: No, Your Honor. I think --

THE COURT: You're satisfied?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, T think we made our record at
the bench cornference, thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. &So our jury panel will be as
follows: Number 1, Helene Gottlieb. Number 2, Lynis Lehne.
Number 3, Gloria Melendez. Number 4, Alvarc Hér:era. Number

5, bonny Cheng. Number 6, Kevin Terry. Number 7, Michael

Browning., Number 8, Gabriel Cleto. Number 9, Rashaad Davis.

Number 10, ‘Ericka Gonzalez—Garcia. Number 11, Justin Boren.

Number 12, Damaris Ibay. Number -=- and so that's our panel
of 1Z2.

And then number 13, which will be our first
alternate, Thomas Gaytan. Number l4, Heather Warren. Any
objection by the State of Nevada?

MS. JOBE: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any objection by the defense?

MS. HOLIDAY: No, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Okay. We can bring them in, but T --

are the parties ready to proceed with your hearing while I
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67
1| excuse the jury?

2. MS. KIEENY: Yes.

3 MS, HOLIDAY: Yes, Your Honor.

4 THE COURT: 1Is your witness here? How long do you

5| think it will take?
& MS. HOLIDAY: I suppose that depends on if we're
If

71 going to do an evidentiary hearing or not, Your Honor.
8| the Court grants an evidentiary hearing, T have guite a few
9| guestions to make a very thorough. record on the testimony

10| that Dr. Johnson would be prepared to give; in addition to

11 | the reéasons why his testimony would comply with the law.

121 8o -~

13 THE COURT: 1 think you're entitled ‘to one if you
14| want a hearing because the State's moving to strike your

15| witness contending that the witness is not qualified nor that
16| the withess will be able -- well, I guess, basically, it's

17| gqualifications. You'rs saying he's not qualified to --

18 MS. JOBE: Tt's a number --

19 THE CQURT: -- render the accident

20| reconstruction ——

21 MS. JOBE: Well, it's --
22 THE COURT: -- of this type of incident.
23 MS. JCBE: It's a number of things, Your Honor.

24 It‘s.hot_just~qualifications. It's alse the assistance and.

25| it's dlso having revigwed his Power Point, his Power Point
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- most importantly, that he's not qualified. So we can bring

68
and what he anticipates or thinks he's going to be able to
testify teo so far outside the scope. The State has concerns
with that as wéll.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: And based on that, Your Honor, T
think if we did an evidentiary hearing that touches on all
the requirements, it could take a few hoars.

THE COURT: What? It shouldn't take you three
hours to lay a foundation. What kind of witness -- three
Ldurs te lay a foundation on -- no way. Well, you‘re not
getting three hours.

MS. HOLIDAY: And that's fine.

THE COURT: Okay?

MS. HOLIDAY: That's £ine.

THE COURT: I mean, I know what it's about. I know
what the expert —-- I know what biomechanical experts are. 1
know what they can testify to. I'll be able to cut to the
choice a lot quicker,

MS. HOLIDAY: Okay.

THE COURT: But I think you're entitled to an

evidentiary hearing because the $tate's indieating, I think,

them back in. T guess -~
MS. JOBE: And -~

‘THE COURT: -—- let's gee --
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1 M§. JOBE: --— Your Honor, may I have a two-minute
9| vecess between the two hearings so I <an take a quick break?
3 MS. HOLIDAY: I need that, too.

4 THE COURT: Oh, yeah, yeabh. You want to break

5| right now go -=

6 MS. JOBE: No, no, we can - we can take wcare of

7| the jury now, but just before we get StartEd.with the =--

8 THE COURT: Okay.
9 MS. JOBE: -- evidentiary =—
10 THE COURT: I'll Let them go to lunch and then

11| we'll start. But your witness 1s here?

12 ¥MS. HQLIDRY: Yes, Your Honer,

13 THE COURT: Qkay.

14 THE MARSHAL: -All rise for the entering jury panel,
15| please.

16 (Tn the presence of the prospective jurors)

17 THE. COURT: Whén your name is called, if you'll

18| pleass take your seat in the jury box.
19 {Pause in the proceedings)

20 THE COURT: Ms. Gottlieb, you're Juror Number i.

21| Juror Number 1.

22 THE MARSHAL: Come on up, Ma'am. Come on up.
23 THE CLERK: Juror Number ?, Lynis Lehne.

24 THE MARSHAL: Lehne.

25 THE CLERK: Juror Number 2, Lynis Lehné.
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JUROR NO. 2: Yes,
THE COURT: You're Juror Number 2.

THE CLERK: Juror Number 3, Gloria Melendez. Juror

Nurber 4, Alvaro Herrera. Jurdr Number 5, Donny Cheng.

Juror Number 6, Kevin Terry. Juror Number 7, Michael

- Browning. Juror Number 8, Gabriel clete. Juror Number 3,

Rashaad-Davis. Juror Numbexr 10, Ericka Gonzalez-Garcia.
Juror Number 11, Justin Boren. Juror Number lz, Damaris

Ibay. Juror Number 13, Thomas Gaytan. &and Juror Number 14,

Heather Warren.

THE COURT: Okay, ladies and gentlemen, we do have

our empaneled jury. If your mame was not called, you are

excused to ledave. Again, thank you very much for being here,

especidlly for coming back this second day. You're excused.
You can go.
(Prospective jurors exit)

THE COURT: Okay. AL this time, ladies and

gentlemen, if you'll all please stand and raise your right

harnd so the Clerk. can administer the bath of service.
THE CLERK: Please raise your right hands. Thank
you.
(CLERK SWEARS JURY PANET)
THE CLERK: Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you. You can have a seat.

Ladies and gentlemen, I'm about to excuse you for lunch.
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: 1} We're going to take & lunch recess. Refore you do, though, I

just want to give you a few instructions. T'11 give you more

B R

3| when vou come back.
4 Now that you are an empaneled Juror, you take off
‘5| the white badges, put the blue badges on there. Those
6| identify vou as a juror in Department 12. And as I had
71 previously told you, myself, the parties, the witnesses, the
8 atterneys, everybody invelved in this case -—-—

9 {Pause im the proceedings)

10 THE COURT: Qkay. Everyore has a badge? Everybody
11| involved in this case with the exception -- is everything

12| okay?

13 THE MARSHAL: Just making sure that they got'the

14| right badges.

15 THE COURT: OKay.

16 ‘THE MARSHAL: The Badge Number will Correspond_with
17{ the seat that you're in.

18 THE COURT: Okay. Nobody is permitted to have any
19| communication with you with the exception of Officer Hawkes.
20| Although, he is permitted to have communication with you, I'm
21| assuming vou've figured it out because he's the one that
22 brings you in, excuses you for recess, so he's permitted to
23| have limited conversatbion with you.
24 He's not permitted to discuss the facts and

25| circumstances of this case with any of 'you. So like -- heé's

verbatim. Digital Reporting; LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

912




10
11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

Jast couple of days. We'll be together probably throughout

courtroom in the presence of both sides.

72

the only one that can talk to you. Nobody else can talk to

you. If you -- we're going to -- we've been together for the
the week. I just want to remind you, you know, if you see
the attorneys, if you see meg, if you see any of the parties
involved, we're going to ignere you,

If theré's somethingy that you need to convey to the
Court or communicate to anyone, I just ask that you make that

known to Officer Hawkes or that you do it while we're in the

We're going to recess for lunch. When you come
back, just meet at the same place where Officer Hawkes
indicates he wants you to meet., D¢ not come in the courtroom
until Officer Hawkes tells you we're ready to go.

During this recess, you're admonished not to talk
or convérse amangst yourselves or with.anyane.else on any
Subject connected with this trial or read, watgh or listen te
any report of or commentary on the tile or any person
cormected with this trial by any medium of information,
inclugding without limitation, newspapers, television, the
Internet or radio, or form or express dany dpinicn on any
subject connected with this trial uwntil the case is finally
submitted to you.

We'll be in recess until 2:30. Come back at 2:30.

Walt fotr Officer Hawkes, and then we will start.
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THE MARSHAL: A1l raise for the exiting jury,

(Court recessed at 12:27 p.m. until 12:38 p.m.)
{Outside the presence of the jury)

THE CQURT: Okay. You guys ready? All right. The
motion is the State's motion to-strike or limit the testimony
of the defense expert. Does the State -- T guess, does the
State want to be heard first?

MS. JORE: In an €ffort to he efficiént 1f we're
going to have an evidentiary hearing, we can just move into
that and I'll reserve all my arguments for later.

THE CQOURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: That wculd.be.my request, too, Your
Henor. I mean, officially we're requesting this evidentiary
hearing. We think it's necessary te give the State -- or I
mean, to give the Court all the necessary information about
why Dr. Johnson is certainly qualified to testify today. 5o
if we want. to do the hearing, we would --

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. HOLIDAY: =- be happy it argue afterwards,

THE COURT: All right. Bring him in.

{Pause in the proceedings)

{Testimony outside the presence of the jury)

DR. LINDSARY DUTCH JOHNSCON, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE CLERK: Thank vou. PFPlease be seated. Could
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1| you please state and spell your name for the record.

2 THE WITNESS: Sure. It's Lindsey -—I go by Dutch

3| -- and Johnson. L-i-n-d-s-a-y, D-u-t-c-h, J-o-h-n-s—o-n.
4 THE CLERK: Thank you. Court.

5 DIRECT EXAMINATICN

6| BY MS. HOLIDAY:

7 g. Good morning, Dr. Johason,

8 A. Good morning.

9 Q. How are you employed?

10 A, I"m self-employed. The pame of my company is

11| Wiltshire Forensic Biomechanics, and I --

12 0. Can you tell me a little bit about that company?

13 A, Sure. My work involves injury biomechanics.

14| Basically, I investigate, analyze and. reconstruct how

15| 1njuries occur in adults, children. I've been doing that for
16| the last five years solely focusad on cases, criminal cases.
17| And prior to that, I worked in the area of civil litigation
121 for an ordar of I'd say 10 to 15 years.

19 Q. Dr. Johnson, did you go straight to cellege after

20| high scéhool?

21 A. I did not.

22 Q. What did you do after high school?

23 L. I went into the Marines Corps.

24 Q. How long were you in the Marines Corps?
25 A, A total of six years, three years active.
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1 0. Cah you tell us a little bit about yeur training

2| and experience in the Marines Corps?

3 . Ma'am, specific to this case or in general?
4 Q. Specifiec to this case.
5 A. Sure. With regards to training, T received combat

61 medical first aid training and since then, actually, post

7| Marines Corps, I've continued some of that training,

8| certified tactical casualty combat ¢are provider. TI've. —=

9{ have a certificate in high risk first responder as a medic.
10| And I have worked with cadaver tissue performing suturing and
11 various other medical procedures, pre-hospital medical

12 -procedures.

13 Q. So T want to make sure T understand correctly.

14| While you were in the Marines Corps, you raceived specific
15| training geared towards providing medical care. to people who
18! are ihjured?

17 A. Yeah, with regards to pre-hospital trauma lLife

18| support.

19 Q. Can you tell me a 1ittle bit about this training?
20| Were you in classes? Was this real life training out in the
211 field? What kind of training specifically?

22 A, Sure. Initially, actually, when I was in the

231 Marihes Corps —-

24 THE COURT: You know, maybe we can —— if you're

25| going to him to give medical -- are you going to ask him to
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give medical opinions?

MS. HOLIDAY: We have a couple opinions that I
don't believe are medical opinions; but 1 think they get
close, and I think certainly --

THE. COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: ~-— that's part of the State's
challenge,

THE COURT: 3Why‘don‘t you ask the dquestion and then

I can tell you how much foundation I think you reed to lay or

‘whether I think it calls for a medical conclusion.

MS. HOLIDAY: Specifically, in this case, the State
-- gne of the State's experts, Mr. peltiar —-

THE COQUET: Um—h'm.

MS.. HOLIDAY: +—- made a conclusion that he believes
the injury pattexn looks l1ike a wrist to fingertips injury
pattern.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS  HOLIDAY: Mr. —-— or Dr. Johnson disagrees with
that. He does not believe that the injury pattexrn reflects
water running from wrist te fingertips. And dit's
specifically related to a purn pattern, that's why I think
maybe it gets into medical a little bit. But I think more
specifically, the State --

THE COURT: &nd -——

MS. HOLIDAY: --— in their motion --

Vetbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

317




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22

23

24

25

77

THE COUET: And it's the pediatrician, correct?

MS. HOLIDAY: No.

THE COURT: Is that who you're talking about?

MS. HOLIDAY: Mr. Peltiar, the expert who believes
that the burn pattern is a wrist o fingéertips burn pattern,
he is not a medical doctor. He has -- from my understanding,
he has an associate's degree, He has extensive experience in
law enforcement.

THE COURT: Okay. So we're talking about burn
patterns on a child's skin?

MS. HOLIDAY: Um-h'm, that's correct.

THE COURT: Okay. So maybe you should lay a

foundatison., I'm pot -sure you have to be an M.D. to be able

to testify about that but --

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct.

THE WITNESS: Excuse me, Your Honor. Is this
water?

THE COURT: Ch, sure.

THE WITNESS: May I —-

THE COURT: Are you thirsty?

THE WITNESS: -- pour a glass? I'm --

THE COURT: Of course.

THE WITNESS: -- very .dry mouth. Thank you.

THE COURT: (f course

BY MS. HOLIDAY:
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Q. 8a Dy, Johnson, through youl training in the
Marines Corps oY your training'and_Education.while you
received youtr doctorate degree and your employment and
practical éxpérience ever since then, what training.
education, and EXperienCe-makes you qualified to_testify
about, let's start with a child's skin?

A, Well, I would say one of based on experience, we
start with experience, 1 guess, for the last 15 years plus,
I've been loocking at injuries. T've literally probably seen
tens of thousands. Loocked at hundreds of —- probably in the
hundreds of thousands of photographs associated with

injuries.

MS, JOBE: 1 apologize, Yoeur Honor. I appreciate

he has a lot of experience, but he's talking about injuries

in general, and there are any number of -injuries of he could

be discussing. Whereas, this case is =-

THE COURT: I just --—
MS, JOBE: -- spQCific to burn injuries.
THE COURT: I agree. SO just be specific to ——
BY M5, HOLIDAY:
Q. How are these -—
THE COURT: -—- burn patteins.
BY M3, HOLIDAY:
Q. How did these injuries specifically deal with the

epidermis?
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A. Okay. With regards to the, certainly, layers of
skin, I've -- I've for the last five years, certainly, looked
at patterns in skins. PRatterns associated with ligature
marks, Patterns associated With bruises, abrasions,
scratches, lacerations, cuts, as well as burms on human skin.
That's in my -- basically, what I've done a lot of. I'd say
the majority of all my cases involve looking at patterns on

skins, especially for the -- since the first certdinly last

. five years.

PHE. COURT: Looking at patterns of injury on skin?
THE WITNESS: Pardon me, Ma'am?
THE COURT: Looking at pattérns of injury on skin?
THE WITNESS: Actually, geometric patterns, such
as, for example, a good example is a ligature mark —-
THE COURT: Uh<=huh.
THE WITNESS: —-- of which could indicate there was
a force, a mechanical force applied to the neck, for example.
THE COURT: QCkay.
BY MS. HOLIDAY:
Q. Whern you received your dectorate degree, you, in
fact, did some work at a medical scheol, ¢orrect?
A, Correct.
Q. pDid you learn about skin and the layers of skin
during that education?

A. T would say actually doing our, the laboratory work
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we had at Emory University., We were not specifically
instructed in the area of anatomy and skin layers. We had
that training prior in my anatomy_paﬁhophysiology-gpurse,
courses at Georgia Tech. So not specifically at that time,
but basically; we were using that information to’ observe
pathological -- pathology associated with the skin and other
organs and parts of the body. |

Q. Okay. And in the Marines Corps, more specifically,
you were trained ~- is it true that you were tratined to treat
significant burn injuries?

A That's correct. And certainly, the Marines Corps
and with my tactical combat casualty care traiming, we got
into that in more depth. Certainly, that training involved
certainly, educatlion with regards to anatomy, understanding
the characteristics associated with burns, the
classifications of burns at thaﬁ_timefwe-had that training,
as well as looked at ways —-- medical intervention that we
could-do_pre~h05pital—wise to assist a burn patient to
hopefully survive their injuries after leaving the field.

Q. And you menticned that since that initial Marine
Corps trainming, you have had updates to that?

A. Correct. And what I was talking about right there,
the -- the tactical combat casualty care, that was actually
post Marines Corps. In the Marines Corps we called it the --

it's been called the combat first ald or combat lifesaver
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81
training and it's now been updated to tactical combat care
training.

And in that training, yes, we had specific
information associated with butns and basically, pre~hospital
care For those burns.

0. What courses related to your Ph.D. would give you
specific education in ldyers of the skin or burns?

A. Certainly, I would say layers of the skin. My
Ph.D: research was on human soft tissue mechanics.
Specifically, I looked at. the -- the human eye. So I had to
be very —-- very knowledgeable with the layers of the skin in
the cornea. T also worked while I was at Georgia Tech for

doing my Ph.D., I worked in the Georgia Tech injury bio -— or

We =- forturiately, for me, we also worked in the
area of soft tissue mechanics. So we locoked at everything
from vascular tissue, such as the abdominal acrta, tendons

that pull on the heart valves, skin tissue. We looked at

worth of training'assbciated with soft tissues, and.
¢ertainly, we've got to be falrly knowledgeable about soft
tissues and the layers within those soft tissues.

Q. Thrdgugh your employment giyperience, have you worked

on othér cases involving burns?
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1 A, I have.
2 0. Can you tell us a little bit about those cases and
3| when you worked ‘on them?
4 A Sure. I guess, the case with regards to water
5! burns, case -- it was probably about seven years agoe prior to

6{ me starting ~- forming my company, issociated with a break in

7{ a couple pipes in a hot water heating system for a car wash.
8| The individual was turning valves on and off as they

9| apparently régularly do, and & valve —-- or exctse me, & pipe
10| burst and causing facial and neck as well as burns to one of
11| his hands.

12 0. Tharnk you. Dr. Johnson, can you ==

13 THE COURT: So you've done one case involving

14| burns?

15 THE WITNESS: Sorry, Your Honor. That was with

16| regards to water. The other wae with regards to burning oil
17| having to de with oil refinery explosions and injuries

18| associated with —- fluids associated with that type of

19| explosion. Again, it would be oil specifically.

20| BY MS. HOLIDAY:

21 Q. Okay.

22 THE COURT: Seo éne case dealing with water burns?
23| Liquid burns?

24 ) THE WITNESS: Liguid burns, I would say, Your

25| Honorn, probably three or four case, but water burns, one
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case, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay.
BY MS. HOLIDAY:

0. Your specific training and ediication, though,
provided you with experience in the layers of the skin?

A, Yes.

o. Some of it had to ‘do with burns?

A. Yes.

. Some of it had to do with other types of injuries
to the skin, like bruises?

a. Yes.

Q. QOr cuts, as you testified to earlier?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. Dr. Johnson, can you tell us a little bit
about the information that you received for this case that
you ‘then used to base your opinion on?

A. Sure, if'I can remenber all that. I would say that
the information, the facts of +He case that I used to develop
basiéally, my -~ to my conclusions in this case were
associated with statements given by Mr. Mathews during his
police interview, statements to the police during the -= the
police reenactment at thé apartment, the measurement taken of
the counter height by the police department, the dimensions
basically photographed of the mug taken by the police as

well. Measurements taken of the subject mug as well by the
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defense investigator.

The medical records. Chance's medical records and
the photograph asseciated with the patterns -- the burns en
the Back of his hands.

0. And when you were provided this information, what
was your geal .or what was the gquestion that you wére trying
to answer, provide information on?

A, Well, my interest was underStandimg'how-thesefburns
could have been sustained on the back of Chance's hands, and
T was ~- looked at what the medical records had to say. The
law enforcement had indicated that it was not —- not
consistent with a cup falling -- him pulling & cup toward
him, and I agreed with that.

So I was looking at other possibilities. How could
had this happened? And so using the facts of the case, 1
looked at. the other ways that this mug could have potentially
spilled. BAnd $o instead of looking toward him, which I
agreed, that would -- I would expect probably burns to his

arms as well as his hands. Sp I looked at different

‘directions. I looked at well, is it possible, what. 1f he

pushed it away? What if the mug spilled from right to the
left? What if the mug spilled --

THE COURT: So you thought of every single

possibility?

THE WITNESS: No, Your Honor. I just =- I looked
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at the --

THE COURT: Ckay. What facts specifically, did you
rely upon in determining how something could have happened?

THE WITNESS: All right, I understand. With
regards to that, the patterns, the burn patterns on Chahce's
hands. I agreed that that did not look consistent with him
puliiﬂg a mug off of the counter.

With regards to the reenactment --

THE COURT: Okay, now say that again. You looked
at the photographs and you agreed that the burn patterns were
ot what?

THE WITNESS: I would agree with the patterns -- I
would agree with the law enforcement's conclusions that it
didn't appéar like the mug was spilled towards Chance. Like
he pulled it toward hifm.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: So those patterns, I would expect
patterns more up on his arms as well. 8o based on
Mr. Mathews' testimony -~ or not testimony, I guess,
statements provided to the police, he indicated in the
reenactment that he filled the mug, hE'thought.between
halfway and full with hot water. Be also indicated in the
reeriactment, thIQUgh-physical movement, that he had the pan

‘on the stove to his right. He picked the pan up with his
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1! brings the pan over to the mug.

2 So based on that reenactment, the positioning, the
31 movements of Mr, Mathews, it was apparent to me that he

4 picked the pan of hot water up with his right hand. He

5| poured the water from the pan into the mug in his left hand
&1 based on that reenactment. The lcocation of the mug gn’ the

71 counter, he -- from the reenactment there was a point in the
8| video raénactment where Mr. Mathews pointed to a location on
5| the -- the table -— or on the counter where he recalled

10| placing the mug.

11 So the counter itself has different layers or, I
12 | guess, a pattern, had a linear pattern in it. So they're

13| dark, light, dark; light and so forth. $So based on that, T
14| -— From the vides, I made a still image of him pointing to
15| the counter &t that location. Then the —— the defense

16| investigator went out and he measured the distance from the
17| edge of the countertap into that lecation, and he found that

18| -~ and with that measurement --

19 THE COURT: Into a very spetific. location --
20 THE WITNESS: Ma'am —-—

21 THE COURT: -~ that you estimated from a photo?
22 THE WITNESS: Yes, ma’'am. Basically, on the

23 | reenactment photo, Mr., Mathews poilnted to a specific location
24| on the countertop. The countertop has these linear -- like

251 the thrée-quarter inch wide linear stripes, essentially, on
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g. And the medical records were generated on the day
of the accident?

A Yes.

Q. Okay. So you could tell tow tall Chance was on the
day of the accident?

A. Yes, I would say that's plus or minus probably, I
would imagine, probably half an inch.

Q. and you could tell how tall the countertop was that
the cup was placed?

A. Yes, I knew that from the measurements: made by
police.

0. And you could tell how far onto the countertop
Mr. Mathews said he placed the mug?

A. Yes.

C. You ‘could alsoc tell what typ& of mug it was?

A. Yes, I could. That was based on police photographs
as well as the maasurementé taken by the defense
investigators, specifically, he measired the diameter of the
top of the mug as well as the height of the muy.

Q. Were you able to tell the exact make and model of
the mug?

a. I was. The police photos, there was the photograph
showing the stamping, the manufacturé stamping on the bottem

of the mug.

THE COQURT: There's a make and model of mugs?
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Okay.
THE WITNESS: It was a manufacturer. I believe,
thereis kind of somewhat of a model.
BY MS. HOLIDAY:

0. Right., That's correct. Are there any other
specific facts related to measurement in that kitchen on the
day af the accident that you took into consideration?

A. With regards to the countertop height, with the mug
Jocation and the mug itself and how far the mug was
apparently'filled based on Mr: Mathews' understanding with
water, T would sdy no. HNot that I recall at this moment,
anyhlow .

Q. Okay. So with that information, what were you
trying to determine?

A. So with -that information, I had, at least based on
those facts, I —— there was hot water in a mug. Charice had
burns to his hands. Based on what Mr. Mathews' statements,
he indicated that he had poured hot water into a mug, he left
the roem, he heard a scream, he came back and he saw Chance
with basically-burNS to his hands. So I —— and the mug was
on the floor.

'3Sa, T believe, that the mug with hot water was
likely source of the liquid that burned his hands. 50 from
there, I looked at. what the -- read the -- the incident

reports, looked at the medical records, and again, I agreed
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that, okay, this doesn't look like something where a mug
would just -- he pulled the mug off a counter on to himself.
I would have expected more burns as well or different
logatiocns.

Sd then I looked at,; okdy, I krow where the ng.is
located on the tounter. So how did he get these -- how could
of he have possibly received these burn pdtterns teo his
hands? Se I was placing his hands -- okay, if hé pushed the
mug away, I found that that was one of the possibilities,
Although, because he was pushing it away, less likely to have
caused burn patterns on his hands so then left or right.

I could -- there: are really infinite possibilities.
If we look at a --

THE COURT: That's my concern. So hasically, you

did .an infinite amount of possibilities of how this child ~-

because that's not what we're here for.

MS. HOLIDAY: ‘Well, let me specify.

THE COURT: That's my concern an —-—
MS.. HOLIDAY: Lt me ——

THE COURT: —- infinite --

MS. HOLIDAY: Let me --

THE COURT: -- amount of possibilities.
MS. HOLIDAY: -- specify.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MS. HOLIDAY:
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0. Dr. Johnson, could you make a determination for
sure abont heow Chance was burned?

A, T -- T will never know exactly how Chance was
burned. I was loeking at the purpose-of-my demonstrations
wére tO get arn idea. Is this a possibility? Did the mug
come from left to right? Because there weré an infinite
number of possibilities, I had to choose.

THE COURT: ©Of a non —- of @ -- I guess, of an

accidental nature, right? You weren't lookihg at intentional

ways?

THE WITNESS: ®ell, I was just -— Your Hongr; I

wasn't —-— they -~ the burns themselves, the way actually when

T work, since the body does not distinguish an accldental or

intentional harm, that's really -- my focus is really on the
injuries only. And so how could of these injuries occurred?
So I knew there was a pattern on the hands. 8o to

limit the possibilities, which I have to do in all cases, in

most occasions, then I looked abt pushing the mug away from
the left to the richt and the right to the left to get —-
BY MS. HOLTDAY:

C. And again, just to specify, your guest was not to

eliminate all the different possibilities of how Chance could

have gotten burned?

A, Absolutely not.

a. Your guest, if I'm corréct, was to determine if one
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way was.poséible?

A. Right. Juast looking at a possible explanation for
how Chance received the burhs to the back of his hands.

Q. When yeou testify, do you intend to testify that you
have determined ‘the cause of the burns certainly?

A, Absolutely not. Basically, it's just one
possibility. I'm offering my demenstrations whith fairly,
certainly in one portions of the burns, fairly -- closely,
basically, recreated those -- that burn pattern along his
wrist and back of his right hand. But it's ohly as a
demonstration, as a possibility that this is something that
could have happened.

0. S0 to determine 1f it could have happened, you
don't need to rule out all the other possibilities because
you're only trying to determine if it could have happened
aceording to this_ﬂne‘pﬁssib}lity?

A, Right. There was just one possibility, and that's
it. I mean, the infinite number of possibilities would be
not possible for e to investigate.

0. Okay. So moving on, how did you reach that
determination?

A, fWith regards Lo testing?

2. Yes.

A. Qkay.
THE COURT: So if you were permittéed to testify,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

932




[

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23

24

23
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here's ohe poessible way this could have Happened?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, and, Your Hohor, that --

THE COURT: 1In an accidental manrier? Because I'm
assuming you're not going to say someone intentionally did
it.

“PHE WITNESS: Well, I would say neither eoneg,
accidental or intentional, Your Honor, because it's just for
me it's the -- I look at the physical evidence and the facts.

THE COURT: Okay. And what's that possibility?

THE WITNESS: Oh, with regards to —-

THE COURT: Youw said that there was -— if you were
appointed to testify, you would testify that this 1is possible
how this incident ceccurred.

THE WITNESS: ‘“Um-h'm.

THE COURT: How?

THE WITNESS: Ch, ‘based on my testing.

THE COURT: Sure.

THE WITNESS: <Certainly; and through that testing,
I looked at —— I knew pushing the mug away, looking at --
it's just we would not have those patterns. Those patterns
wouldn't have been sustained. It's just not reasonable based
on the .depth of the counter and I basically eliminated that
possibility very early on.

So then 1 locked from —- from right to left. And
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so I ended. up, based on medical records, Chance's height, I

estimated, appreximated Chance —-- the hands of -- of the size
of Chance's hands. There were two photoqraphs in the --
BY MS. HOLIDAY:

Q. Can I -- ask I Jjust interrupt you really quick --

A Oh! yes .

Q. —- Doctor? When you say you estimated the size of

specifically had a measuring device next to Chance's hands?

A, Yes. There were -—- there were only tiwo photographs
taken they hospital. I'm not guite sure if it's UMC or
Sunrise. They were taken of Chance's hands. There are only
two with a scale in the photograph. So I had one scale with
his left hand, one sc¢ale with his right hand.

So using those scales, ‘and. because his hands were
not flat on a flat surface, his fingers were slightly curled
down, I approximated the size of his hands. So basically,
looking at the width of his hands between his little finger,
the joint here; the base and then the forefinger and then
looking at the length &f his hand from the. wrist crease to
the top of his middle finger.

THE COURT: So you estimated the size of the
child’s. hands?

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ckay.
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BY M3, HOLIDAY:

Q. Would you say that the size of the child's hands --
your estimate of the size of the child's hands was .similar to
the actual size of the child's hands? Can you say your
estimate is similar to the actual size?

A, I -~ I believe -- I mean, my estimate from the

photographs, as I mentioned garlier, I have really locked at

a lot of photographs, and I've done a lot of scaling.

probably from literally hundreds -- probably in the thousands

of photographs where I've actually had to look at a scale in

a photograph and use that scale to make estimates,

approximations of other objetts within the wiew of that

rhotegraph.

So in this cage, I believe, my estimate was fairly

accurate. I would say that one, I believe, T determined to

be within plus or minus a half or plus and minus about a half

of an inch for the width of his hand, Bepause his hands were

curved a little bit, I didn't havé like & perfect picture,

flat down, 90 degrees to his hand. So I believe, based on my

experience, yes, I was fairly close in estimating the size of

his hands.
Q. Qkay. How did you ~-—
THE COURT: But you estimated it from a photo?
THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.
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THE COURT: So the hypotheses is the child spilled
the mug from left to right?

THE WITNESS: Well, actually, my hypothesis wWas, is
that the mug of water spilled from the right to the lefti or
from the left to right over his hawds. Now -~

THE COUGRT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: -— based on other —- based on the
physiCal characteristic of Chance, 1t was actually I used a
surrogate, the same height of -~

THE COURT: So that the child’s hands weére just for
some reasoh up on a countertop and --

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: =-- a mug rolled over and the water went
on his hands?

THE WITNESS: No., No, Your Horor. And I actually

get ~- I know I'm getting ahead of what my testing is, but

basically, based en if we have the mug here, either way —-

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: -- his hands, I believe, did -- did
this-

THE COURT: QOkay.

THE WITNESS: And so I believe that the edge of the

mug basically were - oh, I'm sorry.

THE COURT RECORDER: It's okay.

THE WITNESS: The -—- I'bélieve, one possible
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1| explanation for how the mug spilled, and there are a number

2| of reasons 1've chesen that explanation as a possibility, is

2| that he rsached on the counter and tipped the mug Tike this
4| and the mug spilled water over both of his hands.

5 THE COURT: Okay. And that's one possibility out
61 of an infinite amount of possibilities?

7 THE WITNESS: Well, I would say -- I.probably

8| wouldn't say an infinite, but it's certainly based on the

9| results of my demonstration, I would say it’s a good

10| pogsibility. 1It's less than infinity.

11 THE COURT: Okay. 1Is it reasonably cetftain to have
12| cceurred?

13 THE WITNESS: I believe s0, based on my test

14 results and the analysis of using the facts of the case, yeés.
15 THE COURT: That it's reasonably certain that the
16| child reached up on to the countertop, 1 guess, the child
171 hitting the cup and the water spilled over on to his hands?
18 THE WITNESS: Well, I can say, Your Honor, with -=
19 THE CQURT: Because I don't kriow anybody that's

20| testified to that. So who's going to testify to that?

21 MS. HOLIDAY: ©Nobody, Your Henor. The congtants
22| that br. Jolinson has to work with i1s the height of the

23 counter, note --

24 THE COURT: Got it.

25 MS. HOLIDAY: -- Chance's height. Another
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important factor is would Chance at bis height -=-

THE COURT: Yeah, but experts can't just come in
here and tell this jury based on all this, this possibly
could have happened.

MS. HOLIDAY: Well, let me back up a little bit,
Your Honor, and get inte a little bit of argument. My
anderstanding of thHe State's theory is that what Mr. Mathews
said is not possible or plausible, that being that there was
a mug on the countertop -—-—

THE COURT: Okay.

¥S. HOLIDAY: —— that ended up somehow on the floor
and somehow in that process caused burns ‘to the backs of
Chance's hands.

THE CGURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: My understanding of the State's
theory, as they will get out through the testimony of
Dr. Cetl and Mr. Peltiar is’ that that's not plausible. It's
not plausible that that could have happened. And the reason
it*s not plausible that that could have happened is bhecause
if the mug f&ll off the countertop towards Chance spilling
water onté him, there -would be splash marks --

THE COURT: Um-h'm.

MS. HOLIDAY: -- or there would be burns in other
places: besides just on the backs of his hands.

THE COURT: Um~h'm.
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MS. HOLIDAY: It turns out, we agree with that and
so does our expert, Dr. Johnsen. “That's not plausible.

THE COURT: Okay.

‘Mg. HOLIDAY: But, Your Honox, we think that the
State's theory fails because they didn't consider The
possibility that a mug wouldn't Just fall in one direction.
A mug could fall in, as you said, an infinite, you know,
aimount of directions. But if we want to just make it simple
and stick with ‘four general directions, a mug placed on a

countertop.could fall, far-example,-EOWards-me, towards.

Chance.

‘THE COURY: Um-h'm.

MS. HOLIDAY: It could fall away from him. Tt
could fall from left to right or from right to left. So we
think that the State's expeérts did not copnsider whether it's
plausible that the mug could have fallen from left to right
or right to left causing the typeszuf'injuries we see On
chance's hands. We agree that it's not'plausiblehthat it
would have fallen towards Chance.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: But we think that it is plausible, in

fact, it's very likely, as Dr. Johason just said;'ﬁhat the

megy could have tipped over from left to right spilling over
Chance's hands, if he was reaching up ohto the countertop, by

the way, for the cookies or ¢andy that were on the countertop
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behind the mug, as we can see in the. pictures that the State

has provided. It's plausible --

THE :CQURT: Yeah, but you understand you have to
have facts --

MS. HOLIDAY: Right.

THE COURT: -- to support these things.

MS: HOLIDAY: The facts --

THE WITNESS: Yeah —-

MS. HOLIDAY: =~- we have were where --

THE COURT: Whe's testifying that this child was
reaching on the counter and reaching ‘for cooklies or whatever
arnd —-- and hit the mug and the mug fell over on his hands?

MS. HOLIDAY: There's nobody to testify --

THE COURT: Because your client doesn't even say
that.

MS. HOLIDAY: No. There's nobody to testify that
Chance was reaching on the counter:. There's —-

THE COURF: Okay.

M$., HOLIDAY: -- also nobody to testify that the
cup would have spilled towards Chance. That the water would
have spilled towards Chance SPIashinq him everywhere,

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: And Mr. Mathews says he doesn’t know

THE COURT: Yeah, but we don't just bring experts
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in and say here's an infinite amount of ways -

THE WITNESS: Okdy, Ma'am.

THE COURT: —- it could -- okay.

THE WITNESS: Oh, I'm sorry, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What I'm going to do is I'm going to
ask the witness te --

MS: HOLIDAY; Sure,

THE COURT: -= step down and step outside of the
courtroom.

THE MARSHAL: Sir.

‘THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: T don't want to -- I don't know how
it's going to go or what -- and I don't want to -- 1 don't
want to get your expert mad at you or me or whomever and Jjust
so T just want to keep him fresh, okay?

MS. HOLIDAY: T understand, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Because sometimes I don't think they
understand what we're talking about.

MS. HOLIDAY: Right.

THE COURT: I'm rniot suggesting that that couldn't

nappen; but you can't qjust come into court and have an expert

testify. I mean, he is -- T've written down "an infinite
amount of things conld have happered"., I mean, T guess, I
just —- you don't bring in an expert and say set up. It

soiinds like you're setting up a set of facts.
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MS. HOLIDAY: Well, Your Honor, we think that
the --

THE COQURT: You can't do that.

MS. HOLIDAY: We think that State's experts are
going toe testify that these burns were likely intentionally
and they certainly --

THE COURT: Well, yeah, they've charqed him with &
crime.

MS., HOLIDAY: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: They charged your client with a crime.

MS. HOLIDAY: Absolutely. And there®s nobody that

can teéstify that they saw Mr. Mathews burn Chance.

Certainly —-

THE COURT: 1I'd agree.

MS. HOLIDAY: ~- there's fobody to testify to that.

So the fact that we can't have an expert testify that it's

possible that a mug could have accidentally with; of course,

the child's help, accidentally tipped over, spilling water on

to the back of His hands, causing burns consistent with the

burns we seé in this case, we think that that s in direct
¥ebuttal to the State's theory that the reason they think
itfs intentional is because Mr. Mathews' statement isn't
plausible.

And if we look at. their experts’ conclusions, thelr

experts make the same conclusion. DBr. --
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1 THE COURT: Okay.
2 MS. HOLIDAY: -— Cetl will testify, we expect, that
3| part of the reason she thinks these burns are intentional is
4| becaunse if it happened the way Mr. Mathews said it happened,
5| there would be splashes on his body, maybe on his face, on
61 his torso, his arms and legs.
7 THE COURT: 1T thought your client was not in the
8! room? I thought what happened was is there's a mug of hot
9| water for coffee or for what? For toffee?
10 MS. HOLIDAY: That's what his statement is, Your
11} Horoz.
12 THE COURT: ¥For coffee. And then he ¢goes into the

13| room to attend to ancther child and hears the child cry .

14 M5. HOLIDAY: . That's correct.
15 THE COURT: Right?
16 MS. HOLIDAY: Right. So Dr. Cetl has the

171 information —- the same information that Dr. Johnson has in

18 { that Mr. Mathews didn't --

19 THE COURT: Yeah, but they're -=
20 MS. HOLIDAY: -— see what hHappened.
Z2x THE COURT: -- relying upon them as being

22| non-aceidental based on an examination of the burns, correct?
23 MS.. HOLIDAY: Based om --
24 THE COURT: Not some recreation of this ig how it

25| happened. WNo one's going to come in and recreate how it

Verbatim Digital Reperting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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happened, right?

MS . JOBEL"ACtU&llyh our expert could, but we did
not ask him to.

THE COURT: Okay. I just -- I mean, it's —- it's
my understanding that the medical opinion that the
pediatrician that said this was not of an accidental nature
didn't do that based on setting up experiments —-

MS. HOLIDAY: No.

THE COURT: ~- right?

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct.

THE COURT: Did it based on the pattern of the
hurns on the child’'s hards, correct?

MS. HOLIDAY; That's correct. And =-=

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: But it's -~ but ii's an opinion that
i5 based on how she thinks his statement is not:plausibleh
she says it, Dr. Cetl does in her preliminary hearing
testimony.

THE COURT: Well, what's his statement?

MS. HQLIDAY: That there was & mug on the counter
that fell to the -- to the floor somehow and the c¢hild got
burned somehow as a result of that. That's all Mr. Mathews
knows.

THE COURT: COkay. Well, your expert didn't == your

expert said a plausible, I guess, explandtion is the child

Verbatim Digital Reporting; LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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hitfing the cexner of the mug and the mug falling over and

the water running onto his hands, not onm to the floor. Then

when did the child do, pick it up and throw it on the ground?

MS. HOLIDAY: Well, one of his further tests that
he conducted was ‘to determine how a mug could tip and roll
off the countéertop. So he was able to conclude that a mug
can fall over —-

MS. JOBE: I object to that based ——

MS. HOLIDAY: =-- and roll to the -=

M5. JOBE: ~- on the videos.

MS. HOLIDAY: -- floor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: So, Your Honor, all of this, again,
is in direct rebuttal to the State's theory. Mr. Mathews’
statement of how things happened, his limited —-

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: -- knowledge of how =-—

THE C€OURT: The State isn't bringing someone in
here to_say how this specifically happened because no one Saw
it, right?

MS. HOLIDAY: The State is bringing someone in here
to .say that this happeried intentionally.

THE COURT: Right; Based on the burn patterns. -

MS. HOLIDAY: And Mr. -- or and .bBr. Johnsen --

THE COURT: And based on the other evidence,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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gorreck?

M5. HOLIDAY: And Dr. Johnson is saying based on
the burn patterns --

THE COURT: Right.

MS. HOLIDAY: -— and based on the other evidence,
it's plausible, in fact, likely, that these burn patterns,
based on the context of the evidence, could have come from
the mug spilling from left to right over Chante's hands, if
he placed them on the countertop.

THE COURT: And --

M$. HOLIDAY: So ==-

THE COURT: =—- the only problem with all that Is
if, if, if, if. You can't just bring somécne in here and say
if all of these things happened. These biomechanic experts
have to rely —-- there has to be a foundation that -- there
has te be a factual foundation. So¢ there's nobody to testify
to that get of facts.

MS. HOLIDAY: We believe —-

THE COURT: Right?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

M5, HOLIDAY: The State's experts, they have to
'make-assumptions, too., They're assuming, oné, that the mug
couldn't have fallen off the countertop without causing other

types of burns. That's one thing that they're going to
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112
testify to.
Well, they wereri't there. They didn't see the mug

£211 off the countertop, so they don't know if it couldn't

The State's experts have-tO'make:an-aSSUmption.
The assumption that the mug falling off the countertop
couldn't have created that pattern 6f burns. I den"t think

the State's experts, and- you can correct me if you think I'm

THE COURT: But this is all based on burn patternsy

and burn patterns that doctors see in ERs when children get

M5. HOLIDAY: That's correct.

THE COURT: They didn't go out and recreate some
situation and say this is how it happened.

MS. HOLIDAY: And that's why I would argue that
rhey're not qualified to testify that a mug spilling from the
countertop onto the floor ceuldn't create that burn pattern.
That 's part of their -- the basis of theilr analysis, both
Dr. Cetl and Mr. Peltiar. Beth of them say Wr. Mathews’
statement, ths way he said it happened is not plausible.
That's what -=-

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLTDAY: =-- they both say, based on the bhurn

patterns.
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THE CQURT: Okay.
MS. HOLIDAY: And so we think bringing an expert in

to say it is plausible is -— is --

THE COURT: But your client didn't say this is how
it happened. It would be one thing if your client was going
to testify and say the child had his hands on the counter,
the child-tippéd the -— the mug. You want to bring someone

0 create a completely --— a factual scenario and pub

it off in front of this jury as though that's what happened..

You want the jury to buy into that —-- what this
expart’s going to say is actually what happened. Yet,
there's no evidence to support that.

MS. HOLIDAY: Well, we think the evidence to
support that is the burn --

THE COURT: There's an —-

MS.. HOLIDAY: ~--— pattern.

THE COURT: I mean, he said there's an infinite
amount of ——

MS. HOLIPAY: Abscolutely.

THE COURT: -~ possibilities.

MS. HOLIDAY: One of the things Dr. Johnson will

have to testify to is that he was not in the room whenm it

happened so he doasn't know for sure. Same- with Dr. Cetl.
Same with Mr. Peltiar.

They're all basing their corclusions on the medical
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krniowledge that they have -- or not nedical knowledge in the

rase of Mr, Peltiar, but the Knowledge and experience that
they have. Nobody saw what happened to Chance. So even
though they're going to testify in their opinion that it was

intentional, they certalnly didn't see it. They're coming to

that conclusion by looking at the burn patterns, just as

Dr. Joknson Iodks at the burn patterns by looking at the
context 6f the evidence, understanding that the statement was
that a mug fell from the countertop to the floor.

THE COURT: That's it. BAnd then —-- and then
bringing a c¢hild and saying the child"s hands were heére, that
this is exactly how it happened and it would happer iike.
this, the mug would fall from right to left on to the child's
Kand and that's what happened.

MS. HOLIDAY: I don't think .---

THE COURT: You basically want to create a
completely -- a complete scenario:

MS. HOLIDAY: I don't think Dr. Johnson wants to
say that that's how it happened. He's saying that's how it
could have happened, based on the -- based on the injury.

THF, COURT: And then I said was that -— because we
dor't bring experts in here to tell a jury what could have
happéned, okay? Because we'd be here until the cows come
home talking about what could have happened. We talk about

what's reasonably certain to have happened.
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MS. HOULIDAY: What --
THE COURT: I mean, expe;ts'have~tq testify to a

reasonable degree of certainty. He, in my opinion, has

created a scenario that fits the -- the burn patterns.

M3. HOLIDAY: That's correct.

THE COURT: He's created it based on ro facts
whatsosver.

MS. HOLIDAY: Based --

THE CQURT: Except a mug and a hot water.

MS. HOLTDAY: Based on the facts of this case that

the mug —- the specific type of mug, the child’'s height, the

height of the colintertop, where themug was placed on the
counter and how all of those things could have come together
to. create burns that are accidentai.

nnd I think what's unique about this case is that,

like T said before, part of State’s theory is that

Mr. Mathews' statéement is not plausible. So to be able 0O
say ves, it is plausible, you —-

THE COURT: What's his statement that you keep
saying is plausible? I thought his statement was I walked
out, I didn't seée anything.

MS. HOLIDAY: But there was a mug —-

THE COURT: And then there were -—-

'MS. HOLIDAY: -- on the countertop that fell to the

floor. I mean, Dr. Cetl will testify --
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THE COURT: Did he see it fall --

MS. HOLIDAY: ~-- if it happened --

THE COQURT: -- to the floor? Did he hear it fall
to the floor? I thought there was a mug on the countertop,
he put it there. He can testify to that, Tight?

MS. HOLIDAY: Um-h'm.

THE COURT: Or he told the police that.

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct.

THE COURT: And he went in the other room, right?

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct, but -—-—

THE COURT: Does he have any idea what happened to
the mug ——

¥MS. HOLIDAY: Yes.

THE COURT: -- when he was in the other room?

MS. HOLIDAY: Because when he came back into the
xitchen, the mug was on the floor.

THE COURT: Okay. So that's what he knows.

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 0Okay. Doesn't know how the mug got
there, though, right?

MS. HOLIDAY: Cextairnly, mot. No, he does not.
Neither does --—

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: --— Dr. Cetl, and neither does

Mr. Peltiar. But they are golng to testify that the burns
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WDuidn’t'have happened if the mug falling off the countertop
fell towards Chance.

THE COURT: I mean, here's the thing. Here's my
corcern. I do mot, think we bring experts in here to look at
a burn pattern and try to find a non-accidental nature. Do I
think or a —- I'm sorry, I said it the opposite. You know
what I meant.

MS. HOLIDAY: Accidentally.

THE COURT: An accidental nature. So your theory
is this wasn't intentional, it was accidental?

MS, HOLIDRY: Yes, Your Honck.

THE COURT: Correckt?

MS. HOLIDAY: .Absolutely; ¥es,

THE COURT: And we're going to create a scenario
that shows:youlit's accidental? We -— I mean, we just don't
do that in cases.

‘MS. HOLIDAY: Further to our theory :is not just
that thisz was accildental ——

THE COURT: Okay.

M$. HOLIDAY: =- but that the State's assumptions
or the -- the --

THE COURT: And let me ask you this. If the burn
patterns could have been created of an accidental nature,
isn't that for cross-examination —-—

MS. HOLIDAY: I think so --

verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4 303-798-0890
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1 THE COURT: ~—- of your expert? Of the medical

2| experts?
3 M$. HOLIDAY: Well, maybe, because I don't know
4| that the medical experts, that either Dr. Cetl or

5| Mr. Peltiar, I don't know that they could answer guestions

4 { that, for exampleﬁ Dr. Johnson would be gualified to answer,
71 regarding the mechaniCS'cf How mugs, you know, interagt with
§| the countertop or the floor or with gravity. Those are all
9 things that are the purview of someone like Dr. Jahmson,

10| whose expertise is in mechanics, biemechanics.

11 So; you kKnow, if I were to say Mr. Peltiar -~

12 THE COURT: Here's -- I mean, I'm just going to

13| tell you here’'s thée probleém I'm having is you want to -- I

14| don't have -- what hé's saying I'm sure is all accurate, his
15} assumptilens are all accurate. The only problem is he is

16| creating a factual scenarie. He's creating it from nothing.
17| We don't do that i -- in court cases. We don't do that.

18 You have to lay a proper foundatien. So now if he
191 had a factual basis for all of thig, he has a factual basis
20| for a mug of hot water on a countertop, I agree with gll of
21 the measurements. That all seems to he accurate, and then he
22| can completely creates something to tell the jury oh, this is
23| what happened.

24. MS. HOLIDAY: This is what could have happened.

25 THE COURT: Okay. If he's just going to say this
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is what could have happened, then right there, thdat's easy

berause we don't bring experts in to tell a Jury every

_pOSsibLE'thing that could have happened.

M$. HOLIDAY: Well, I'm not sure in that case,
following that logic, that State's experts can say this is
what happened. 1T don't thHink the State's experts can say —=

THE COURT: I agree. I don't think they can come
in here and say, there was a mug and this is exactly how it

fell. I agree with you. TI'm not going to allow their

experts to come in and say this is exactly how it happened.

MS. HOLIDAY: But they're --

THE COURT: I mean, what we have is we have a
two-year—old that apparently can't communicate or didan't
communicate and say what. happened, correct?

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct.

THE COURT: So we don't have the two-year-old
that's going to come in. We have there was hot water in a
cup, he was the adult in charge, the child has burns, and the
medical testimony 1s that they were intentional.

MS. HOLIDAY: But part of the medical testimony is
based on the experts, the State's experts', we believe,
flawed assumption that the mug couldn't have spilled towards
Chance creating those burns. We believe that. they're built
on- a flawed assumption that that mug couldn't have tipped

over in any other way. We believe that --
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THE COURT: What do you mean in any other way? He

just got through saying it could tip any number of ways.

MS. HOLIDAY: That's what ve think. . But we think
that Dr. Cetl and Mr. Peltiar are only analyzing whether the
burns could have been created by a mug falling towards
Chance. And we think that that's a flawed assumptlon.

They're assuming that if the mug fell from the

countertop te the floor, the water must have come towards

Chance. 4nd 4if it did, another asssmption, it wouldn't have

created the burn patterns that we 3see.

THE COURT: No, actually, they will be testifying
based on the lack of imjury. So in other words, whenh we see
mugs or water falling a certain way, we expect to See burn
patterns this way. We don’'t think that's what happened
because we don't see those burn patterns. We oinly see burn

patterns on the -- on the front of his hands, correct?

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct. But it relies on the

assumption that when we see mugs falling this way, just like

Your Honor just sdid. Bub we -- their.experts don't know if

the mug fell that way. Mr. Mathews —-

‘THE COURT: I agree, and I'm not going to allow —-—

MS. HOLIDAY: -~ doesn't know and neither do they,

THE COURT: -- then to testify to that. I'm not
going to allow the State te come in and put on some

expériment: about what cottld have happened because there's no
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11 foundation for it. So I'm not going Lo let the defense do it

21 either.

3 MS. HOLIDAY: I understand what you're saying, Your

41 Honor, but the reason this case 1is unique --

g THE COURT: Okay.

6, MS. HOLIDAY: -- is because the State's experts are

7 saying there Mathews' statement is nob plausible. In order

&) to --
) THE COURT: I don't know.
io0 MS. HOLIDAY: -- determine if it's net plausible,

-

11| we have tc be able td determine +f it is plausible. I mean,
12| that's certainly going to be our theory.

13 THE COURT: I'm gding to ask you again, what's his
14| statement? His statement is, I wasn't in there, I don't

15| know, right?

16 ™3 . HOLIDAY: That's corzect.

17 THE COURT: So why do you keep saying State says
18| his statement isn't plausible?

19 M3. HOLIDAY: Because the State's experts are golng
20| to testify that if a mug fell from the countertop to the

21| floor, it's not plausible that it would have credted that

22| type of iajury.

23 THE CQOURT: Based on the lack of injuries?
24 MS. HOLIDAY: Based on the lack of injury.
25 THE COURT: Okav.
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MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct. But that -- that is
based on a flawed —-

THE COURT: To me that's -~

MS. HOLIDAY: -=- assumption.

THE COURT: -- different than bringing in an expert
to create some sort of scenario where water rung over &
child's hands in a certain way.

MS. BOLIPAY: I think it is different. I think it
is a different conclusion, absolutely, because it has a
different puitpose, Their purpose is to analyze the burns and
seeg 1f they think they're intentional. The reason that they
Both think the burns are intentional is based on both
Dr. Cetl and Dr. Peltiar's analysis of Mr. Matheuws'
statement. They both analyze his statement to determine if
they believe his statement is plausible, the statement beling,
that the mug somehow fell from the counter te the floor:
That's an assumpticn we can all make. If the mug was on the

colinter when he left the room and it was on the floor when he

‘came back, it fell from the counter to the floor.

THE COURT: Well, we don't know how it did --—

MS, HOLIDAY:r No, we don't.

THE COURT: =- if the child didn't -- didn't make
any statements, right?

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct. But I think their

experts, their opinion is based on an analysis of ‘whether
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that statement is plansible or possible. Bnd sO what's

important is analyzing
Whether & mug could have fallen from the countertop Lo the

floor creating this type of injury; is that possible? 1Is it

plausible?
That's the question that is important in this case

because the State's experts say it's not. But we think that

they don't know. And how are we going to show how a mug can
fall to the left or the right? “How are we going to show
that? Through our expert whd's, you know, an expert in
biomechanics. How are we going to show that the mug -could

have fallen in more than one way.

THE COURT: I'm goihg to tell you, that expert

can't come in and just create this scenario based on nothing.

That's what I know. I mean, there is just absolutely no

factual foundation for that expert to make the opinion that

he made when he was in here. That was all based on, I guess;

creating a situation.

He created a factual pattern. He 100 percent
created a factual pattern -——
MS. HOLIDAY: Your Honor, and that's what --

THE COURT: —- and said this is what could have

‘happened, bunt there still has to be a factual basis.

MS. HOLIDAYY and we think that's what science 1s.

Science is, you don't always see the way something happens.
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You have to use the informaticen that's in front of you to
make, like you said, go through the scientific method. Make
a hypothesis of how it could have happened. Then analyze
that hypothesis using the facts that you have.

Pr. Johnson is only using. the facts that we have in
this case. And through the process, like any scientist would
do --

THE COURT: Then he wouldn't be able to -— if he's
only going to use the facts in this cause, then that's easy,

I can tell him He can't testify to that scenario happening
because none of that is supperted by any facts.

MS. HOLIDAY: Okay.

THE COURT: I mean, right? None of that -- I

MS. HOLIDAY: I disagree,.

THE COURT: -—- I'm with you all the way up to the
countertop, the Height, even the size of the child's hands
I'm with you, because apparently they appear te be estimated
based on at least some sort of measurement guide.

M§. HOLIDAY: Um-h'm.

THE COURT: But then when he -=- he basically told
mé; he created this scenario.

MS. HOLIDAY: We ——

THE COURT: He created if, He did experiments ——

M5, HOLIDAY: Right.
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THE COURT: ~-- and he created it and even said
there*s .an infinite amount of ways. T mean, what I'11 let
you do, you medn, I obviously haven't heard ~- well, I guess
T have to let the State be heard, put it appears to me is
that the State is-calliﬂg'me&ical experts to testify
regarding injuries and whether -- 1 meany, that's what
pediatricians_do. They come in and testify whethexr the
injuries are accidental or intentianal,_based en, you know,
what the injury looks like,

MS. HOLIDAY: Right. And that's what Dr. Johnson
is doing. He's basing his opinion based on what the injury
looks like. No, he wouldn't know if it's possible for the
water to . Have spilled to left to right or right to left if he
didn't see what the injury actually 1ocked like,

Just like Dr. Cetl wouldn't know if Mr. Mathews'
stateément wasn't piausible.withOut'lOoking at the injury.

THE COURT: Well, I'm sorry, I know the 8State wants
to be heard. You've been very, very patient. I appreciate
that. I know you want to make your record.

MS. JOBE: I do, Your Honor. And first and
foremost, I don't think the expert's testimony about his
babkgroundVand history actually satisfies the gualification
requirement. The fact of the matter is hHis -- he has
Biomachanics all day'long. I am not disputing that at all.

What the State's dispute is with his qualifications
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and background, his lack of expertise and his lack of

experience with respect to burns and more specifically water

What he did say, and I didn't have a chance to

fully flesh it ouk, but he was talking aboit one water

incident where he was actually talking about why the pipes

THE COURT: Right.

MS. JOBE: ~-- actually evaluating the injuries that
people sustain from the water. And as far as his assistance,
Your Honor, in the State's review of all of these videogs,
there's absolutely nothing in these videos that puts together
what Dr. Johnson just talkeduaboﬁt;

If you watch all the videos, every —-—

THE COURT: Well, that's my point.

MS. JOBE: I know, I‘m'jﬁﬁt-trying*to make my
record, Your Heonor.

THE COURT: ©Oh.

‘MS. JOBE: I apologize.

THE COURT: Sorry,

MS. JOBE: So, sorry. In every single video
there's -~ he captures the surrogate child, as he calls it,
being able te reach to the top of ﬁhe-cup. Though, the State
takes issue with that because he doesn't Have the measurement

ever the child -- of Chance's arm length, et cetera. But
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tHere's no place where he puts all the pleces together.
Phere's no video where the surrogate actualdy hits the top of
the mug, pulls the mug over, tas his Hands this that position
to. get what Dr. Johrnsch claimsyis a replica burn pattern or
anything like that.

It's piece by piece by piece, and every video where
he claims to have replicated either left Lo right or right to
left, that pattern, which the State alsoc takes issue with,
the cup moves itself in that video of hew he does his
experiment, and the child's hands are always palms down flat.
And there are even a couple instances in the videos where

they teéll the child not meve thedir hands. That is not a

realistic scientific replication of what happened to this

child.

Any lay person knows; hot, hands coming away.
Faster than I can shap, faster than I can pop my hands. It's
a natural reflex to instantanecus pull away. And the fact
that in all those videos that are the foundatioh of his
opinion, I'm not saying to inténtionally burn a child, please
do not get that --

THE COURT:; Yeéah, of course npot.

MS. JOBE: -- misstatement, but the fact that he
nses water wheré there is no reflexive movement, where there
is no pulling away, none. of these videos and none of his

sxperiménts actually go —-- are even relevant ta this rase and
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it is just creating a scenario, creating a possibility based

on his ereation and recreation of what iittle facts he knows.

ThHere are a number of assumptions that he had to

make in completing his experiment. The missing facts are his

arm length, exactly where Chance could reach, How Chance was

specifically positioned, how he reached for the cup, how the

cup actually spilled on him.

There's also the assumptions he had to 'do even
whether or not the cup had a handle. The cup Dr. Johnson

uses in the recreations has .a handle. The cup the defendant

identifies in the reenactment videe at the residence doesn't

have: a handle.

And so that changes things, that affects things.
He also has to assume that the child, once the water starts
coming down, that the child's hands are flat before the water
ever hits the hands. Hé has to also assume, Your Honok, that
1ike T said, that the child's not going to pull his hand
away -

And even how he shows the patterns, Your Honor, he

uses water on a child®s hands. There's ng —= there's nothing

in the water to show exactly where on the child's hands the

water hits, how far the water goes. ¥You can try to see it,
if you have really, I guess, amazing visieon or can amplify
it, the picture, but you can't actually see, there's no dye,

there's no nothing to actually see where the water goes,
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For all these
things, 1it's simply an experiment. It's simply an attempt to
But the
fact of the matter is, there's no sypport in this case,

there’s no support in any of the facts that any of the

parties had, and I'd also point out that the -- that

Dr. Joknson wasn't trying to test if it wasn't non-aceidental

or an accidental spill. He was just trying to see if he

could recreate it.

And so based on all that, Your Honor, the State is
asking to strike him. If we need to get inte what he will or
won't testify about, I'm not going to go into all of that

because that will take a while, but I1'11 leave: it at that,

unless the Court has additional guestions.

THE COURT: Yeah, but it appears as though the main
thing is he wants to testify about a scenarie that he says
could have happéned. If you --

MS. HOLIDAY: He provides -— right.

THE COURT: -- assume all of the different things
hé assumed.

MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct, Your Honor. And it
provides a reasonable explanation_df what ‘could have happened

in this case which is, again, a direct rebuttal to the

State's theory that the context of this case doesn't provide

a reasonable explanation for how Chance could have
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1| accidentally been burned by & mug falling from the counter to

21 the floor,

3 THE COURT: I den't think it prevents you from

4..arguing-that it was ac¢cidental or from even asking these

5| witnesses if these burns could have been created in an

6| accidental manner, but I just -~ we just don't bring experts

71 in and have them create a scenario perfectly for the Jjury and

8! then say this is plausibly what could have nappened without
9} any factual support.

10 Yoii have to have the feoundation in order for the
17| expert to testify about that. BAnd 1o one's goilng to testify
12 | ‘that that's what happened, right?

13 MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct, Your Honor. Your

14| Homor, may I -~

15 THE COURT: Is that basically, what he was going te
16| -~ I mean, that was his big opinion, correct?

17 MS. HOLIDAY: Correct. The big gpinion is that

18| #t's possibkble that that zould have happened. I mean,_it

19! provides & reaSbnable_explamatiqn-for how Chance got these
20 iﬂjUries'aDcidéhtallY instead of intentionally, 4s the State
21| is providing.

22 And more importantly, it's our theory of the case.
23| and so like I cited it in the dase€ law in my original

24 oppositionp this is Mr. Mathews' theory of the case.

25 PHE COURT: That it was dccldental. I mean, L —-—
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clearly, he can have a theory it was ——

MS. HOLIDAY: Right,

THE COURT: -- accidental, he dida't do it.

MS. HOLIDAY: Right.

THE COURT: I mean, he Knows.

MS. HOLIDAY: Absolutely.

THE CQURT: He -- he wasn't in the room.

MS. HOLIDAY: Absoclutely.

THE COURT: Okay?

MS. HOLIDAY: Tt was accidental because a mug of
hot water spilled in the counter to the floor. That's his
theory of the case. And we think that our expert can testify
to our theeory of the case. And s0 we think that if our
expert is excluded, it will cause constitutional problems
because Mr. Mathews has a constitutional-right1 both under
the federal and state Constitutions, to present his theories
of the case.

THE COURT: TWell, it doesn't go to the —- clearly,
you can maintain your theory that it was accidental, not
inténtiénal, but I den't think the expert is going to have
the foundation in arder -- if something changes, I'1l leave
it open, but it does not appear as though there's any factual
suppert for that theory.

MS. HOLIDAY: May 1 ask if Your Heonor would

consider limiting his testimony to some pretty specific

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

966




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

i8
18.
20
21

22

23

24

25

132

areas? For example, one guestion that would be interesting
to know in this case is could Chance have reached on to the
countertop? Who cdn provide us with that answer? Could he
have reached onto the countertop given his height_and given
the height of the countértop?

As the State stated, we don‘t know €hance's exact
arm length, we don't have that measurément. We certainly

couldn't get it because he's now growr, obviously. But the

case law states that it has to be undér similar conditions to

those at the time of the incident.

THE COURT: Um-h'm.

MS. HOLIDAY: Similar. It doesn't have to be

exactly. Sco if you take --

THE COURT: I don't know why you couldn't ask one

of the pediatricians.

MS. JOBE: And Your Henor, if -- I don'"t mean to
interject or interrupt Ms. Holiday's argument, but Jasmin

says in her statement, and I anticipate it's coming out, and

sven the defendant says in his statements that if Chance is

up- on His tippy toes, he can reach the counter.
He's 30 --
THE COURT: Okay.
‘MS. JOBE: For the —— I didn't want Lo correct
Ppr. Johnson, but the medical records, Chance 1s 37 inches.

The couﬂtér is 3% inches high, 5So there's some --
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THE GOURT: Oh, okay, so he's -=

MS. JOBE: Net that his eyes are necessarily over;
but there's some amount of his body and his head that comes
above the counter., And both of them say he could reach on
his tippy toes. How far he can reach, what ‘he can reach to,
what he would actually reach for is unknown, but that's not
something that is rnot going to come in unless Dr. Johnson
testifies. I probably wasn't clear in what I just said, but.

THE COURT: Gkay.

MS. HOLIDAY: That would be something I would ask
to let him testify to. A child of chance's height with a
countertfop of the height that we see i this case, can that
child reach on té the countertop, and if so, how far? Can he
get his hands flat on the countertop?

THE COURT: How can you do it, if you don't know
how long his arms are?

MS. HOLIDAY: Well, again, he can testify under

similar conditions to those at the time of the incident. We

can determine ——
THE COURT: How long are his arms?
MS. HOLIDAY: -- a similar neasuremant based on how

tall Chance is and based on his average -- the makeup of his

average body type. I pelieve, T put some information in my

motiorn.

THE COURT: Can't you just ask the mom this?
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MS. HOLIDAY: I think we can, Your Honor; but I

don't think she can give ud an exact idea of how far Chance

can reach on to the countertop.

THE COURT: Well, neither can Johngon. The mom
can't, but Johnson can?

MS, HOLIDAY: I don't think the mom -

PHE COURT: The mom whose child it is?

MS. HOLIDARY: I don't think the mom ‘ever, you know,
found reason to have Chance reach on to the countertop as far
as he can and then make a note of how far that would be.

THE COURT: Nelther did Johnson.

MS, HOLIDAY: Well, that's true, Your Honor,
however, he did use a child similar to theé child at the time
of this incident,.

MS. JCBE:r And --

M$. HOLIDAY: Have you to --

MS. JOBE: And for the record, Your Honor, this
child who's the surrogate fox Chanée'in his videos is always
being given instruction as to what to do and how to do in all
af these videos. _He-did'pravide photographs of the surrogate
réaching up ontb-the.counter, But again, like even he does a
turn—-and-run Sequeﬁce'with the ghild who's of similar -~ the
SHrrogatesof_Chance, is what we'll call him, and the child
has to be prompted multiplé times to get the child to rum.

Defense even States ih their opposition essentially
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he used children older than Chance to run all his experiments

because they're easier to get to do what they want to do. 50

to the éxtent we're going to rely on the surrogate and what

the surrogate can reach to and all those measurements, the
State would absolutely object based on the lack of foundation
and the fact that this isn't Chance and that this -— based on
the totality of the (indecipherable) that this child's beeén
given directions as to what to do.

THE COURT: Yeah. I -- 1t appears; though, the
mother can testify. Jasmin, that's the mother, right?

MS. HOLTDAY: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Gaﬁ't'you_ask'her ~—

M5, HOLIDAY: We can.

THE COURT:; -- can Chancé'reach'up? Would he be
able -- I‘mean,.mothers.kﬁow’if-a kid can -- that's pretty
basie. They usually know how far a child can reach on the
countertop because you have te know where to pubt everything.

MS. HOLIDAY: Right. We can certainly ask her,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: I mean, have you spoken to her? Do you
know whether -—-

MS. HOLIDAY: It's in her statement, just like the
—— just like Ms. Jobe said.

THE COURT: Okay. 3o that the —--

MS. HOLIDAY: She has —=

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC # 303-798-0890

970




T i SR A

10
11

12

14

15

16|

18

18

20

21

5%

23

24

25

136

THE COURT: So the evidence will -=

MS. HOLIDAY: -- testified he can reach.

THE COURT: ~= come in that the child could reach
up on the countertop?

MS. HOLIDAY: Could reach iteéms on the countertop.
Now, whether or mot the child can reach on to the countertop
and place his hands flat down to the countértop, I'm not sure
if she'll testify to that. I'll have to ask her. I'm not
sure if she dan g6 that far. I'm not sure if she ever had
occasion to witness him puttiﬂg.his:hands flat on the
countertop. I den't know if she ever specifically observed.
him ‘reaching for the cookies at the back of the countertop.
50 I don't know that she could proﬁide that exact
information.

Qther informatiocn that I would --

THE COURT: Well, Johnson can't provide that
either.

MS. HOLIDAY: Otheér information that I would ask
the Court if Dr. Johnson can testify, can he testify that a
cup can spill sideways on to  counter and roll off the
counter? Again, I don't know if that's sométhing that either
of the State's experts could testify to. I don't know if
that's something that is an assumptien that a lay person can

make. I mean —-

THE COURT: I think it's-commqn_sense -
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M5. HOLIDAY: Commen sense.

THE COURT: -- that a cup could -~ 1 mean, I don't
that a cup can fall over and spill liquid. I. think that's
common sehse. T'm not sure you have to have an ekxpert come
in and say —=

MS. HOLIDAY: That a cup could fall over --

‘THE COURT: -- to actually say that.

MS. HOLIDAY: -— and fall over gnto its side and
then roll on te the floor. Do you think that would be --

THE COURT: I think you could probably ask anyone
that comes in to testify.

MS. HOLIDAY: Okay.

THE COURT: I don't think you need -- you could ask
the mom that. You could ask a doetor that.

MS. HOLIDAY: How about the pattern that water
makes whether it spills from a cup or a mug? You heard
Dr. Johnson testify that he was able to run experiments
trying to determine how water behaves and the pattern it
creates when it spills from a mug. I think that would be
important to help us determine whether that pattern would be
similar to the pattern of burns we: see on Chance. That would
be something I would ask Dr, Johnson to offer testimeny on;
is the pattérn that a mug spilling over, the pattern that the

water wWould make.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4 303-798-0890

972




10
Ti
12
13
14
15
Le
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

138 |

THE COURT: And the pattern would have to be
exactly within his scenario? The child reaching up, hands,
reaching up, tips over the mug, hands flat and water runs
offer the child's hands.

He's alréady told us that's the -— that would be, I
guess, his explanation, correct?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, Your Honor. But even more
getierally, before Dr. Johnson developed his hypethesis, he

had to first determine or to get some more information about

how water behaves and the patterns that it creates when 1t

spills from a mug. So one of the experiments that he did was
just taking a mug, tipping it over and then taking a picture
of the pattern that resulted as of that spill.

So I think we could tell a lot from the pattern
just much the water that it creates when 1t spills.

M5. JOBE: And the State would object because the
information the State has is Dr. Johnson -- there's no water
in here. Just making sure. Dr. Johnsen takes the cup and
for ‘the record, I put the cup on top of the table, and I just
xnocks it over on a Flat surface and sees what the water does
on the same mostly level surface. There's no information the
State has that Dr. —- any of Dr. Johnson's experiments
invelve putting a cup with water in it at the gdge of 4 or X
inches, however many inches he approximated, off the edge of

the counter and pushing that ©ff to see what the spill
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1{ pattern is for the water.
2 MS. HOLIDAY: And the reason for that, Your Honor,

3| is because he's ruled that out. We can agree on a lot with

4] the State's expeérts. We can dgree that that's not a

5| reasonable possibility. That the mug spilling over towards

6! Chance, spilling water from the counterteop to the floor, we

7| agree that that's not a reasonable possibility.

B Be —-- Dr. Johnson could tfell that. That's why he

9| didn't even need to do those experiments because that's hot a
10. reasonable possibility under the facts .of this case.

11 MS. JOBE: And Your Honor, if T could --

12 THE COURT: So you want him -- because he can't

13| testify about this factual sceriario he's created, but you

14| want him to be able té testify about the patterns? Weuldn't
15| -- izn't it the pattern water makes when it's spilled on to a

16| child's skin, coerrect?

17| MS. HOLIDAY: On to any surface. So --

18 THE COURT: Why?

19 MS. HOLIDAY: Because if water ——

20 THE COURT: We just need to know what. happens when

21| it goes onto the child’s hands.

22 MS. HOLIDAY: If we know how water —-
23] THE COURT: I don’'t think he can testify to that.
24 MS. HOLIDAY: If we know the pattern that water

25| makes when it spills onto a surface, we can determine that
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water would make a similar pattern if spilled on to a surface

fa

2| where a ¢hild's hands are. It's going to be a similar
3| pattern. It might not be exactly the same because,
4| obviously, a child's hands create more further dimension to

5| the countértop, for example, or the sarface, but we can at

61 least tell how the water behaves and the movement and. flow of
7| the water so I think --

8 THE COURT: 2nd why is that important? Because I

9| still don't think that he can testify about burn patterns on
10| a child's hand.

11 MS. HOLTDAY: Because it still proves the theory of
12| defense, which is that, the possibility of the mug spilling
13| over on the countertop --

14 THE COURT: Ums-h'm,

15 ‘MS. HOLIDAY: -=- is reasonable and plausikble, and
16| it could have happened that way. 5o if the State is going to
17| argue that our client's statement is not plausible, that's

i81 our direct rebuttal. It is plausible. Look how it could

19| have happened. It could have spilled to the side on the

20| countertop.

21 and that'™s plauéible, beecause it £its the pattern
22| that we see in this case of burns on Chance's hands. That's
23| why we think it supports our theory.

24 THE GOURT: I really don't believe your expert tan

25| testify about burn patterns on a child's skin. I mean, I
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don't think that taking an anatomy class and; you know, his

first aid training in the Marines allows him to testify about
the different burn patterns om a child's skin, and that's
what it sounds like you want him to come in and testify to.

MS. HOLIDAY: Well --

THE COURT: He can't testify --

MS. HOLIDAY: -- partially.

THE COURT: —- about bura patterns on & child's
hand.

MS. HOLIDAY: Partially, but we don't think it's
the specific burns, the mediCal'knowledge of how burns affect
skin that's important here. We think it's the pattern that
water creates onto the skin. The pattern and the way that
water moves, which is squarely within the field .of
biomechanics.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything?

Ms. JOBE: I would just dote that none of his
qualifications and what he testified to had to do with
tracking, studying, experimenting with the movement of water
on-péople‘s skins or otherwise. So based on everything I've
already said, as well as that the Stafe would objéct to his
testimeny about that.

THE COURT: At this point, I don't think there's
going to be any foundation for his testimony. I guess, as

the evidence comes in, if you want to renew your motion to
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would consider it.

MS. HOLIDAY: Okay. Thank yeu, Your Honor. Would
Your Honor censider —-

THE COURT: But he can't comé in and. testify to
that factual scenario that he's created:

MS. HOLIDAY: Would Your Bonor consider allowing us
to finish conducting the hearing as a proffer of

Dy, Johnson’s-qUalifications, education, experience and what

he would testify to if the Court were to allow him? That way

we have .a clear record of what it is in this case that is
peing stricken.

THE COURT: TI'11l allow you to make a proffer of
what he would testify to. You can go ahead. r

MS. HOLIDAY: A proffer without his testimony,; but

Just from my --—

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. HOLTDAY: Okay.

THE COURT: Sure. I'll let you make a proffer.
And it would include everything that he's already testified
to.

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, that's eorrect, Your Honor.
Court's indilgence.

So, Your Honpr, a iot of this is included in the

opposition —-— the supplement to my oppesition that I already

Verbatin Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

2

L

977




!
H
2
H

10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

24

25

filed, but if allowed to testify inm the evidentiary Hearing

143

today, Dr. Johnson would have. testified regarding his
education.

He would have testified that he has a Ph.D. in
bigengineering. Technically, it's mechantical engineering
with speciality in bicengineering. He would Have testified
that some of his course work included the mechanics of
fluids, waters and 0ils, one, the méchanics of fluids; waters,
and oils twe, fluid dynamics one, fluid dynamics two,
computational fluid dynamics, incompressible fluid dynamics,
water and other ircompressible liguids, clinical ariatomy and
pathophysiology, including a laberatory at Emory Medical
School, bio fluid dynamics, bio selid mechanics aﬁd
thermedynamdic¢s one, twa and three.

As part of his formal education, he conducted
studies on impact forces on apn athiete's body, specifically
working with human soft tissue mechanics and different parts
of the cornea. Bart of the testing for him to complete his
PH.D. included bicengineerihg qguestions, dpplied mathematics
and engineering mechanics. Also inciuding bi0engineering
questions related to force analysis dssociated with various
loads applied specifically to human soft tissue, including
human skim. All of this relates specifically to the
testimony he would have been able to offér about how water,

hot waber affects a child's skin or skin in general.
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His many years of profésgional experience would.

include, tests regarding high temperature fluid sloshes,
specifically related to automotive steering systems, injury
reconstruction tests, including with young children,
including failures and injuries that resulted in facial and
other skin burns.

And Your Honor, as I've included in my supplement
to my opposition to the State's motion, he did work on many
-- threughout the years —- throughout his really 30 years of
training and experience, he did work on many, many cases
involving human skin, human'body? as you heard him testify.

to burns on the human skin caused by hot water or caused by

other different types of liguid.

MS. JOBE: I would just object to the extent his
testimony here today was not that he worked On.things with
burns on human skin from hot. water,

THE COURT: That's correct. He said he had cne

Ccasa.

MS. HOLIDAY: With het water, and then other cases

dealing with different types of hot'liquid'that create burns

THE COURT: Okay.

M&. HOLIDAY: Your Honor, as we were talking about
with his medical training in the Marines Corps, he didn*t
Just learn first aid. He learned how to treat massive

bleedinq;lcompromised_airways, compromised respiration and
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chest wounds, compromised circular shocky head injury,
hypothermia; assoclated with pullet wounds, shrapnel, blast
injuries and significant burn injuries.

Tn addition to receiving training in skin anatomy
and suturing, different types of clbsures of suturing,
admimistering anesthetics, wound preparation, including
scrubbing, irrigating'and cleaning the wound, debridement.

THE COURT: Let me ask you this, did you have him
review the photes and make a determinaticn was these were
accidental er intentional?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You did?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes.

THE COURT: You had him reviéw the photographs and
what was his opinion?

MS. HOLIDAY: That it was accidental. But he
didri’t just base his opinion on the phétographs.

THE COURT: That the burns were accidental if you
followed his other hypotheses, right?

MS. HOLIDAY: -That the burns were accidental based
on the facts of this case, based on --

THE COURT: I don't think so because I asked him
that. He said hegwagn”t here to determine whether it was
accidental or intentional. THat's why I asked you. 1 mean,

T don't know, is he an expert? Can you leok at. photographs
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and say these -- the patterns on this child's skin indicates
that this was an accidental or intentional manner?

MS. HOLIDAY: Well, the reason he —

THE COURT: I don't ~= I think he said exactly
ogpoaitei

MS. HOLTDAY: He said he wasn't focused on whether
it's atclidental or intentiondl because whether it's accident
or intentional doesn't --

THE COURT: Exactly.

MS. HOLIDAY: ~-- teally influence the way that the
human body and other elements 1ike water work together. But
what he could determine was that it was accidental based on
the contaxt. .Based on the fact that there was a mug left on
the counter. Based on the condition text —--

THE COURT: Based on 1f you follow everything he

says:

MS. HOLIDAY: Well, the reéasonable conclusions
based on the sciantific experiments and scientific method
that would lead him to that --

THE COURT: Okay-

MS. HOLIDAY: =- conclusion,

THE COURT: I Just want te make =ure 1t was based
on his, I guess, plausible explanation. It wasn't =- he
didn't study those photographs and the burns on that child

outside of a factual scenario, correct®?
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1 'MS. HOLIDAY: That's correct.
2 THE COURT: Okay.
3 MS. HOLIDAY: And neither did Dr: Cetl or

4| Dr. Peltiar. I mean, Mr. Peltiar. And part of their

5| testimony is based on if those injuries that they see 'in the
6| pictures could have been caused accidentally in the context
71 of what Mr. Mathews' statement was,

8 T mean, they -- I don't think that the State’s

9| experts would be prepared to offer an opinion that just

10| looking at the pickures you can tell it's intentiomal. I do
111 not believe they could do that.
12 THE COURT: Okay. That's what I'm trying to get

13| at. It appears as though your expert would not be offering
14 | opinicns on Jjust the manner, the way the burns look. It is
15| these patterns could have been created and I created -- I

1¢ | created the way it could have happened, and it could have

17| happened this way. I just wanted to make sure.

18 MS. HOLIDAY: Well, one specific opinion -- and
19| 1'11 definitely lét Ms. Jobe answer, but I want To .answer
20| State's question. One specific opinidn that he would offer,
21| Mr. Peltiar —- as I stated before, M. Peltiar's opinion was
22| that the burn injury pattern looked like it went from wrist
23| te fingertips.

24 THE CGURT: Um-h'm.

25 MS. HOLIDAY: Dr. Johnson disagrees. Just based. on
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looking at the burn injury pattern, he thinks it looks like a
water flow not from wrist to fingertips, but a water flow
from left to right. And that's without the context of any of
the facts or any of his recreéations, that's what the burn
Water flow from left to
right because of the way the injury is on the left side of
the child's hand. It indicates that there could be some
pooling ¢f water here, indicating that the -- the almost
angular line of the burn pattern sn the right side of the
Hand neay the child's pinky is more rélated Lo, again, a flow
from left to right as if the water flowed from leff €0 right.
So that's gding teo be something that he directly disagrees
with Mr. Peltiar about his assessment that it was a wrist to
fingertips.

And Mr. Peltiar, with all due respect, dQESH‘ﬁ have
medical training either. Again, he's noit a nmedical doctor.
He, from what I could tell, doesn't have training
specifically teaching him about burns. He has vast
experience in law enforcement observing burns or working with
vietims who are burhed, and then he's written some opinions
about burns, but he doesn't have any medical knowledge either
about --

MS. JOBE: I would just note that one of the
references Dr. Johnson lists in his Power Poinft, the U.S.

Department of Justice 2001 publication was written by Peltiar

‘Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890

983




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

149

in conjunction with a medical doctoi.

¥MS. HOLIDAY: That is correct, absolutely.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. HOLIDAY: So yes, he is ‘-- to answer your
qgestion, he was prepared to"testify specific about the way
the burn patiern looks without context of considering his
experiments.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HOLIDAY: Your Honor, moving on to his

qualifications. I want to point out that the field of

biomechanics has been recognized by many courts. I provided

an extensive list of these courts in the supplement_to.my
opposition to the State's motion.

I also provided an explanation, according to
Dr. Johnson, about what he bases his opinions on and that
they have been published and subject to peer réeview. You can
see more details in my supplement. That his methaodologies
aré generally accepted in the-SCientific community. -Again,
specifically regarding the scientific method, which is what
he used in this case and which is what all scientists use.

That the coneclusions in this case ave based on the
particularized facts of this case rather than assumption,
conjecture or generalization. That's something that I think
he would be able to testify to more specifically if he were

given the: opportiunity to do so in an evidentiary hearing.
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e results
of experiments and caleulations which were controlled by
known standards, tested under similar conditions to those at
the time of the incident ard developed by him for purposes of
this case. BAgain, those are more defails that Dr. Johnson
would be ahle to provide 1f given the opportunity to testify
at an evidentiary hearing.

Finally, Dr. Johnson would be able to provide
specific ways in way his ‘testimeny would be limited to
matters sguarely within the scope of his specialized
knowledge. As we started to talk about some of his
specialiZed knowledge based on his training in the Marines,

his education and Ph.D. and his 30 years of employment and

practical experience and why the things that he was going to

réstify to specifically fit within those bounds.,

30 Your Honor, I would just add that there are many

more details that Dr: Johnson would be able to provide. to

this court if allowed to testify ifr an evidentiary hearing.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else? Are we good?

MS. JOBE: The State -— I would just note the State
didn't have a chance to respond to supplemental that was
filed late the other day. But as far as his training and
experience goes, they're bootstrapping different pieces
together to try to establish that he has the appropriate

foundation for this case, and it just simply doesn't Wwork.
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Treating fields —— treating burns from shrapnel,

frem things in the Marines Cerps, from the first aid training

that he has doesn't eguate to being able to talk about burn
I'm
going to spare the additional time to go into all of these;
but based on Hallimark, the assumptions he had to make, his
lack of.QUalifications specific to what Re's propoesed to,
that's State’s record in asking that one strickern.

THE COURT: Okay. So¢o at this point, it's golng ‘to
be granted; however, bhased on how the evidence cbmes out,_if
you want to renew your motion, you may.

MS. HOLIDAY: -Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay? See you in a minute.

MS. JOBE: I will rush, Your Honor. I --

THE GOURT: Okay.

MS. JOBE: ~- have to eat.

THE. COURT: Ne, well; T'11 -~

M3. JOBE: It's 2:06.

THE. COURT: Because I'm going to want my staff to

i | be able to get something to eat, teoo, 80O it will Be 4 litils

bit longer.

MS. JOBE: And Your Honor, I'm sure you saw we had

.an IT persen come in here while this hearing was going on

because if necessary, I was going to use my laptop to ask

Dr. Johnson about certaln videos. This connester has a plece
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broken coff, and so it makes my lapiop go black and won't

THE COURT: Okay.
MS. JOBE: I e-mailed Susan, which I probably

shouldn't have done during the hearing, but I'm happy to use

the defense side for the openings, but I just want to let the
Court know this appears to be a problem..

THE COURT: Okay. B&All right. And did it break
today because I -- this is the first I've heard that this
cable or something is broKen.

THE MARSHAL: There's nothing broken. off.

'MS. JOBE: Ye&s, it is. That little piece right
there, the end that's broken in half.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. JOBE: T just tried it today, put I haven't
tried it before.

THE. COURT: 8o to do your opening you're going to
need to put your laptop soméwhere else?

MS. JOBE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Where can she put it, Kris?

THE MARSHAL: Kris can you put it on left lock for
=z second? We'll get 1t all figured out.

MS. JOBE: Fantastic. I'm going to eat. Thank
you.

‘MR. BURTON: BAbout what time do you want us back?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC.¢ 303-798-0890

387



10

11}

1z

13
14
15

16

17
18

19

20

21

23

24

25

153

THE COURT: About 2:45.

MS. HOLIDAY: About 2:457

TEE COURT: Uh-huh.

{Court recessed at 2:08 p.f. uﬁfil 3408 p.m.)
(Tnside the presence of the jury)

THE COORT: Does the State of Nevada stipulate to
the presence of the jury panel?

MS. JOBE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE MARSHAL: Please be seated.

THE COURT: The defense?

MS. HOLIDAY: Yes, Your Honox.

THE COURT: Okay. As I told you earlier, there's
just a few instructions that I have to provide you to before
I allew boeth sides to speak to you in their opening
statements.

Ladies and géentlemen, are you're admonished that no
jurcr may declare to a fellow jurcr any fact relating to this
cass of his of her known knowledge, and if any juror
discovers during the trial or aftter the Jury's retired that
he: or she or any other juror has personal knowledge of any
fact in contreversy in this case, he or she shall disclose
the situation to myself in the absence of the other jurofs.

This teans that if you learn during the course of

this trial that you are acqguainted with the facts of this

case pr the witnesses, you've not previously told me of this
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1| relationship, 'vou must then declazre that. fact to me.
2 What I will now say is intended to serve as an
31 introduction in the trial in this case and is not a
which I

4| substitute for the detailed instructions on the law,

5| will give you at the close of the case and before you retire

6| to consider your verdict.

g This is a criminal case commenced by the State of
8| Wevada, which I may sometimes refer to as "the State"™ against
9| the defendant. This case is based on -an information. The
10| clerk will now read the Information and state the plea the

11| defendant has made to the informatien.

1.2 THE CLERK: Thank you, Your HORDor.
13 (CLERK READS AMENDED INFORMATIONY
14 THE COURT: Thank you. This case is based on the

15| information, which has just been read to you by the Clerk of
16| the court. You shbuld distinctly understand that the

17| information is simple a charge-and-that it_iS not in any

18! sense evidence of the allegations it contains.

19 The defendant has entered a_plea.of not. guilty.

20| The State therefore, has the burden of proving each of

21| elements as alleged in their charging dogument by proof

321 beyond a reasonable doubt.

23 as the defendant sits here today, he is presumed
24| innocent. The purpose of this trial is to deéetermine whether

25| the State of Nevada will meet their burden of proof. It is
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1| vour primary réesponsibility as jurors to find and determine

5| the facts. Under our system of criminal procedure, you are

3| the sole judge of the facts. You are 10 determine the facts

4| from the testimony you hear and the other evidence, including
5| exhibits introduced in court.
6 It is up to you to determine the inferences, which

7| you feel may be properly drawn from the evidence. The

8| parties may sometimes present objections to some of the

9| testimony oxr other evidence. It is the duty of a lawyer to
10| object to evidence which he or she believes may rick. properly
11| be offered and you should not be prejudiced in any way

121 against a lawyer who makes objections on behalf of the party
131 he or she represents,

14 At times I may sustain objections or direct that
15| you disregard ceértain testimony of exhibits. You must not
16| consider any evidence to which an objection has been

17 sustained or which: I have instructed you Lo disregard.

18| Anything vou may havé seen or heard ocutside the courtreom 18
19| net evidence and must also be disregarded.

20 Remembeir, statemernts, arguments and opinions of

21| counsel are not evidence in the case. However, if the

22| attorneys stipulate as to the existence of a fact, you must
73.| accept the stipulation as evidence and regard.that fact as
241 proved. You must not speculate to be true any insinuations

25| suggested by a question asked of a witness. A guestion is
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not evidence and may be considered only &as it: supplies
meaning'to.the answer.

You must not be influenced in any=degree by any
personal feeling of sympathy for or prejudice against the
State or the defendant. Both sides aré entitled to the same.
fair and impartial consideration. In considering the weight
and value of the testimony of any witness, you may take into
consideration the appearance, attitude and bebavior of the
witness; the interest of the witness in the outcome of the
case, if any, the relation of the witness to the defendant or
the §tate, the inclination of the witness to speak truthfully
or not and the probability or improbability of the witneéss's
stateménts:and all the facts and circumstances in evidence.

Thus, you may give the testimony of any witness
just such weight and value as you believe the testimony of
the witness is entitled to receive. There are two kinds of
evidence; direct and circumstantial. Direct evidence is
testimony by a witness about what that witness personally saw
or heard or did.

Circumstantial evidence is testimony or exhibits
which -are proof of a particular fact from which, 1f proven,
you may infer the existence of a second fact.

You must considér both direct and cirecumstantial
evidence in decidihg the case. The law permits you to give

equal weight to both, but it is for you Lo decide how much
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weight to give any evidence. -Opening statements and clesing
arguments of the attorrieys are intended to help you in
understanding the evidence andﬁapplyinq the law, but they are
not evidence.

No statement, ruling, remdrk or comment which I
make during the course of this trial is intended to indicate
ny opinion as to how you should decide the case or to
influence you in any way in.your'determination of the facts.

At times I may even ask questions of witnesses. If
T do sg, it is for the purpose of bringing out matters which
I feel shouid be brought out and not in any way to indicate
my opinion about the facts or to indicate the weight -- to
indicate the weight I feel you should give to the testimony
of the witness.

I may also find it necessary'to'admanish=the

attorneys. And if T do, yow should not show prejudice

against a lawyer, his or her client, because 1 found it
fiscessary to admonish him or her. Until this case is
submitted to you, you must not discuss it with anyoneg, even
with your fellow jurors.

After it is submitted to you, you must disecuss 1t
only in the jury room with your fellow jurcors. It is
impotrtant trhat you keep an open mind and not decide any issue
in. the case until the entire case has been submitted to you

under instructions from the Court.
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The trial will proceed in £he following manner:
The deputy district.attorney-will.make an opening statement,
which is an outline to help you in understanding what the

State expects to prove. Next, the defense attorney may, but

does not have to make an openihyg statement. Opening

statements serve as an introduction TO the evidence, which a
party making the statement intends to preove.

The State will then pfesent'its:evidence_and
counsel for the_defense'may crossHexamine'the witnesses.
Following the State's case, the defendant may present
evidence and the deputy district attorney'may-crOss-examine
the witrnessées.

However, as 1 have said, the defendant is not

obligated to present any evidence. After all the eévidence

has hbeen presentedl I will instruct you on thellaw; After
the instructions on the law have been read to you, €ach side
has the opportunity to present oral argue.

What is said in closing argument 1is rnot evidence.
The arguments are designed to summarize and interpret the

evidence. Since the State hasg the'burdén_of_proﬁinq the

defendant guilty beyond & reasonable doubt, the State has the’

right to open and close the arguments.
After the arguments have been completed, Yyou will

then retire to deliberate upon your verdict. Again, let me

remind you that until this dase. is submitted to you, do not
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talk to each other about it or abbout anyone who has anything
to 'do with it uwntil the end of the case when you go to the
Jury room to decide upern your verdict.

Do not talk with anyone else about this case or

about anyone who has anything to do with it until the trial

has ended and you've been discharged jurors. Anyone else

includes members of your family and your friends. You may
tell them you are a jurer in a criminial case, but don't tell
them anything else about it until you ‘have been discharged by
myself.

Do not let anyone talk to you about the case or
about anyone whe has anything to do with it. If somegne

should try to talk te vow,; please report it te me immediately

by contacting the court marshal.

Do hot read any news stories or articles or listen
to any radio or television reports about the case or about

anyong who has'anything to do with it. Aas jurors, you'll be

given the opportunity to ask written guestions of any of the

witnesses called to testify in this case.

You are not encouraged to ask large numbers of

queéstions because that 1s the primarily responsibility of

courisel.. Questions may be asked, but only in the following

manner: -After poth lawyers have finished gquestioning the

witness and only in this time, if there are additional

questions you would l1ike to ask the witness, you may then
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seek permission to ask that witness & written questicn.
Should you desire to ask 4 question, write your

gquestion down with your juror numper on a full sheet of clean

paper and raise your hand. ALl questions from jurers must be

factual im mature and desighed to clarify ‘information already

presented.

In addition, jurers must not place, undue welght on

the résponses to their questions. The marshal will pick up

your question and present it to the Court, All guestions

must be directed to the witness and not to the lawyers er to

the Court.

After consulting with counsel, T will then

determine if your question is legally proper. If T determine

that your question may properly be asked, I will ask it. No
adverse inference shoulkd be drawn if the Court does not allow
a particular guestion.

When each witness gets called in te testify, State

will do what we call direct examination. The defense may

cross—~examine. If the defense cross-examings, the State may
do what we redirect and the defense may do DeCross, which
means the persen propably will.get-questioned about four
times. They go back and forth.

1f you want to ask a question, you just need to
write it down on your sheet of paper, but Jjust det my

attention before I excuse the witness. When they're done
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with the guestioning, 1I'1l look at the witness, ‘I'1l thank
them for being here, and I will excuse them from their
subpoena. That's when ycu need to. get my attertion.

1f you.have a question, I will hold them here.
Once I let a witness leave: the courthousge and excuse them
from their subpoena, I will not ask them to come back to
answer any guestions of the jury. 8o in other words, 1if yol
have a questien of a witnessf'y@uaneed-to ask it at the time
because if you let time go by, you won't be permitted to ask
any gquestions.

You can get my atfention by just'raisingjyour-hand
or letting the court marshal xrow. Dkay, at this time, the
State may address the jury panel in their opening statement.

MS. JORE: Thank you, Yeur Hondr.

STATE'S OPENING STATEMENT

MS. JOBE: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.
You are the lucky cnes who Have been selected for jury
selection in this case, This is the case of the State of
Nevada versus Denovine Mathews.

As you learned yesterday, myself and Mr. Burton
represent the State, and it 15 our burden of proof ta
establish this case for you. As the Judge said, our opening

statements are for the State to lay out the evidence we

believe we'll be able to prove at trial. So that's what I'm

going te do right now.
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This is Chance Jacksper. This photc was taken on
January 5th of 2016. Chance was two years and approximately
11 months old at the time. He was born January 30th of 2013.
He was Jjust under three years of age. Chance Jacksper lived
at 1029 Lisbon Avenue, No. 5, with his mother, Jasmin
Cathcart. He also lived there with his sibling, his sister,
Jordyn.

Jordyn is roughly & year-and-a-half or so in

January of 2016, when these events take place. Jasmin had a

YBoyfriend at the time named Donovine Mathews, the defendant,

who was in fhe home freguently. He stayed the night

sometimes. an as you will hear from the evidence on this

particular date, he was helping out te watch both the

children.

What you'll learn is that Chance hadn't been in the
home for very leng. Be had been in California with other

family members, and he had been back in the home for

appreximately one week, maybe a little less, on January 5th

of 2016, and it was the very first time the defendant was

Teft alone with Chance and had to déal with Chance and Jordyn

together.

So let's talk about January 5th, 2016. That
morning Jasmin gets up with her children, approximately,
£:45. She changes the diapérs of both Chance, the

two-year-old, and Jordyn, the one-year-old. She gets them
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ready for the day, éssentially, and takes care of them.

She leaves the apartment pecause she has a-méeting
at the apartment office at about 2:00 a.m. that morning. 5o
she leaves the apartment, leaves the defendant with her two
children that morning. $She -- around 4:19 she gets a phone
call from Dorovine calling her saying she needs to come home.
This isn't really the apartment. This is cobvicusly, just an
icon of the house.

Bat when's important to remember 1is your listening
to the evidence of during this time when the injuries happen,
Dongoving ls the only adult in that residence. It's Doneovine,.
Chance, who's almost three -- two, almest three, and Jordyn,
who's less than two. So between 9:00 a.m., when Jasmin
leaves or approximately leaves at 9:19, when she getls that
phone call, the facts that you'll learn is that Chance was
absolutely not injurad-at the time Jasmin left that
apartment. No problems with his hands, these injuries,
nothing had happened, no worries of concerns about Chance.

That Donovine was alone watching Chance and Jordyn
during that time window when the injuries occurred. BAs I
said, Chance is almost three, Jordyn's one—and-a-half. It's
the first time Donovine's watched Chance by himself. And in
this window, both of Chance's hands are burned by the time
Jasmin comes back to the residence. And both his hands are

burned by the time Donovine places that call to Jasmin
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relling her to come back, Chance's hands are burned.

There are only a few seurces, potential sources of
hot water or hot liquids in that apartment during this time
frame. There's —- you'll hear this version of events about a
mug that had watér that had been boiled on the stovetop.
There is a sink in the kitchen. There's a sink in the
pathtub, and there's a pathtub that obviously, alsc rTuns
water. Those are the only sources of hot water -and hot
liquids based on the investigation of Metro.

and again, it's just Donovine, Chance and Jotdyn at
rhis time. Jasmin comes back after she's called by Donovine.
She decides they need to go to the hospital. Chance needs to
have some medical attention for  the burns on the tops of both
of his hands. So they take him te Sunrise pediatric
emergency~department where Chance sees a physician by the
name of Dr. Olson. Dr. Olson's the treating physician at the
Emergency department, The hospital contacts LVMED, stands
For Las Vegas-Metropalitan-PolicejDepartment. But the
hospital contacts LVMPD due to the injuries that Chance has
because of SuSPigions of somethirng's not right with these
burns.

LVMPD responds to investigate, and as they're

investigating, they talked to Jasmini, they talked to the

defendant; they go back to the house, they take photograplis

of the house, they do a reenactment with the defendant.
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You're going to hear ail the evidence and all the information

that they gather.
They also talk to Dr. Olson. They consulted a
pediatric abuse specialist, DBr. cetl. They also consulied

eventually, someone by the name of Philip Peltiar, who 1s a

burn expert, But on January -Sth of 2016, it was learned

Chance had second degres burns toe: the top of both hands.

That was the extent of his injuries. .No other location on
his body.
and this is & pieture of his left hand that was

taken at the hospital at Sunrise on the 5th. And that's a

picture of his right hand and the injuries he sustained taken

on January 5th of 2016 as well.

You'll hear that once Chance is discharged from
Sunrise, he has to go recelve additional treatment at the UMC
Burn Center, and he does. But the focus is that 19,
20-minute time period of when these injuries occurred to
Chance and what happened.

Jasmin's timeline, as she explains to Metro, is
that she fed both of the children, Chance and Jordyil, changed
their diapers around 8:45, She left to go to her 9:00 a.m.

appointment somewhere between 8:50 and 8:59%9 a.m. That there

are ne injuries to Chance whern she left. Donovine called,

told her to come back bécause His nands ~~ Chance's hands are

purned. And Jasmin tells Metro that when she returns to the
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